
 

 

OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED APRIL 5, 2011 
 

 Rating: See “Rating” herein. 
 Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.: Aaa 
 

New Issue 
 

In the opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing law and assuming, among 
other matters, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes 
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when 
calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income.  Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts 
personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  The Bonds will be designated as 
“qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any 
other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds.  See “Tax 
Exemption” herein. 
 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 

$5,770,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2011 BONDS 
 

 DATED DUE 

 Date of Delivery April 1 
(as shown on the inside cover page hereof)  

   
 

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., 
as Bondholder and nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York.  DTC will act as securities depository for 
the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. (See 
"Book-Entry-Transfer System" herein.) 
 
Principal of the Bonds will be paid on April 1 of the years in which the Bonds mature.  Interest on the Bonds will be payable 
semiannually on April 1 and October 1, commencing October 1, 2011, until the principal amount is paid. Principal and semiannual 
interest on the Bonds will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, or its successor, as Paying Agent.  So 
long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be made directly to such Bondowner.  Disbursement of 
such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the 
responsibility of the DTC Participants and Indirect Participants, as more fully described herein. 
 
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates as set forth herein. 
 
The Bonds will be valid general obligations of the City of Newton, Massachusetts, and will be payable as to both principal and interest 
from taxes that may be levied upon all the property within the territorial limits of the City, subject to the limit imposed by Chapter 59, 
Section 21C of the General Laws. 

 

Due Principal Cusip Due Principal Interest Cusip

April 1 Amount Yield 653063 Apri l 1 Amount Yield 653063

2012 415,000$   3.00 % 0.45 % S73 2017 455,000$    4.00 % 2.19      % T49

2013 530,000    3.00 0.73 S81 2018 450,000      4.00 2.52      T56

2014 520,000    3.00 1.05 S99 2019 450,000      4.00 2.84      T64

2015 520,000    3.00 1.52 T23 2020 445,000      4.50 3.09      T72

2016 510,000    4.00 1.85 T31 2021 445,000      4.50 3.26      T80

$500,000 Coupon Rate 4.000% Term Bond Maturing April 1, 2031 Yield @ 4.05% Cusip #653063 V20

Rate

Interest

Rate

$530,000 Coupon Rate 3.625% Term Bond Maturing April 1, 2026 Yield @ 3.70% Cusip #653063 U54

 

 
The Bonds are offered subject to the final approving opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond 
Counsel, as aforesaid, and to certain other conditions referred to herein and in the Notice of Sale.  First Southwest Company, Boston, 
Massachusetts has acted as Financial Advisor to the City with respect to the Bonds.  The Bonds in definitive form will be delivered to 
DTC, or its custodial agent, on or about April 14, 2011, against payment to the City in federal reserve funds. 
 
 
 

PIPER JAFFRAY 
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The information set forth herein has been obtained from the City and from other sources which are believed to be reliable but it is not guaranteed as to 
accuracy or completeness.  Any statements made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are intended 
merely as opinion and not as representations of fact.  The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither 
the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale of the Bonds described herein shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has 
been no change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT 
 
The information set forth below is qualified in its entirety by the information and financial statements appearing elsewhere 
in the Official Statement. 
 
Date and Time of Sale: Tuesday, April 5, 2011, at 11:00 A.M. (Eastern Time). 
   
Location of Sale: First Southwest Company, 54 Canal Street, Suite 320, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Issuer: City of Newton, Massachusetts. 
 
Issues: $5,770,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds. 
  
Official Statement Dated: April 5, 2011. 
 
Dated Date of Bonds: Date of Delivery. 
 
Principal Due:   Serially on April 1, 2012 through April 1, 2021; Term Bond April 1, 2026 and April 1, 2031, as 

detailed herein. 
 
Interest Payable: Semiannually on April 1 and October 1, commencing October 1, 2011. 
  
Redemption: The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates as set forth herein. 
 
Security for the Bonds: The Bonds will be valid general obligations of the City of Newton, Massachusetts, and will be 

payable as to both principal and interest from taxes that may be levied upon all the property 
within the territorial limits of the City and taxable by it, subject to the limit imposed by Chapter 
59, Section 21C of the Massachusetts General Laws (Proposition 2 1/2). 

 
Credit Rating: Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. has assigned a rating of Aaa on the Bonds. 
 
Basis of Award: Lowest True Interest Cost (TIC), as of the dated date.   
 
Tax Exemption: Refer to "THE BONDS - Tax Exemption," herein and Appendix B, "Proposed Forms of Legal 

Opinions.” 
 
Continuing Disclosure: Refer to "THE BONDS - Continuing Disclosure" herein and Appendix C, "Proposed Form of 

Continuing Disclosure Certificate.” 
 
Bank Qualification: The Bonds WILL BE designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 

265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
Paying Agent: U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Bond Counsel: Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Financial Advisor: First Southwest Company, Boston, Massachusetts. 
 
Delivery and Payment: It is expected that delivery of the Bonds in book-entry only form will be made to The 

Depository Trust Company, or to its custodial agent, on or about April 14, 2011 against 
payment in Federal Funds. 

 
Additional Information: Questions concerning the Official Statement should be addressed to: Mr. James Reardon, 

Treasurer, City of Newton, MA. Tel: (617) 796-1338 or Cynthia McNerney, Managing 
Director, First Southwest Company, Boston, MA. Tel: (617) 619-4408. 

 

Final Official Statement: Within seven (7) business days following the award of the Bonds in accordance herewith, at 
least 100 copies of the Final Official Statement will be available from First Southwest 
Company to the successful bidder for each series for use in reoffering such series of the 
Bonds.  Upon request, additional copies will be provided to the successful bidders to a 
maximum of one per $100,000 of par amount purchased. 
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NOTICE OF SALE 
 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
The City of Newton, Massachusetts, will receive sealed or electronic (as described herein) proposals until 11:00 A.M. 
(Eastern Time) on Tuesday, April 5, 2011, for the purchase of the following described Bonds of the City: 
 

$5,770,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds, payable on April 1 in the years 
and amounts as follows: 

 

Due Principal Due Principal

April 1 Amount April 1 Amount

2012 415,000$     2022 * 110,000$      

2013 530,000       2023 * 110,000        

2014 520,000       2024 * 110,000        

2015 520,000       2025 * 100,000        

2016 510,000       2026 * 100,000        

2017 455,000       2027 * 100,000        

2018 450,000       2028 * 100,000        

2019 450,000       2029 * 100,000        

2020 445,000       2030 * 100,000        

2021 445,000       2031 * 100,000         
 

*Callable maturities.  May be combined into one or two Term Bonds as described herein. 
 
The Bonds will be dated as of their delivery date.  Principal of the Bonds will be payable on the dates shown above of the 
years in which the Bonds mature.  Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1, 
commencing October 1, 2011. 
 
The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of the Bonds made to the public.  
One certificate for each maturity of the Bonds will be issued to The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York 
("DTC"), and immobilized in its custody.  Ownership of the Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples 
thereof, will be evidenced by a book-entry system with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its 
Participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC and its Participants.  The winning bidder, as a condition 
to delivery of the Bonds, shall be required to deposit the Bonds with DTC, registered in the name of Cede & Co.  Interest 
and principal on the Bonds will be payable to DTC or its nominee as Registered Owner of the Bonds.  Transfer of principal 
and interest payments to Participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC.  Transfer of principal and interest payments 
to Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of such Participants and other nominees of Beneficial Owners.  The City will 
not be responsible or liable for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its Participants or 
persons acting through such Participants. 
 
The original Bonds to be immobilized at DTC will be prepared under the supervision of First Southwest Company and 
their legality will be approved by Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, whose opinion will be 
furnished to the purchaser without charge. 
 
Principal and semiannual interest on the Bonds will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts as 
Paying Agent.  So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be made directly to 
DTC.  Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC and disbursements of such 
payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants, as more fully 
described herein. 
 
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates, as described herein. 
 
Redemption Provisions 
 
Bonds maturing on or prior to April 1, 2021 shall not be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates.  Bonds 
maturing on or after April 1, 2022 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on or after April 
1, 2021, either in whole or in part at any time, and if in part, by lot within a maturity, at the par amount of the Bonds to be 
redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption. 
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For Bonds maturing on and after April 1, 2022, bidders may specify that all of the principal amount of such Bonds in any 
two or more consecutive years may, in lieu of maturing in each such year, be combined to comprise one or two Term 
Bonds, and shall be subject to mandatory redemption or mature at par, as described above, in each of the years and in 
the principal amounts specified in the foregoing maturity schedule.  Each mandatory redemption shall be allocated to the 
payment of the Term Bond maturing in the nearest subsequent year.  Bidders may specify no more than two Term Bonds. 
Term Bonds, if any, shall be subject to mandatory redemption on April 1, of the year or years immediately prior to the 
stated maturity of such Term Bonds (the particular Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed to be selected by lot), as 
indicated in the foregoing maturity schedule at the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, 
without premium. 
 
Bidding Parameters 
 
Bidders shall state the rate or rates of interest per annum which the Bonds are to bear in a multiple of 1/20 or 1/8 of one 
percent, but shall not state (a) more than one interest rate for any Bonds having a like maturity or (b) any interest rate 
which exceeds the interest rate stated for any other Bonds by more than 3 percent.  No bid of less than par and accrued 
interest to date of delivery will be considered.   
 
As between proposals which comply with this Notice of Sale, the award will be to the bidder who offers to purchase all the 
Bonds at the lowest net effective interest rate to the City.  Such interest rate shall be determined on a true interest cost 
(TIC) basis, which shall mean that rate which, as of the delivery date of the Bonds, discounts semiannually all future 
payments on account of principal and interest to the price bid, not including interest accrued to date of delivery, which 
accrued interest shall be paid by the successful bidder.  In the event there is more than one proposal specifying the lowest 
such rate, the Bonds will be awarded to the bidder whose proposal is selected by the City Treasurer by lot among all such 
proposals. 
 
Bids for a series of the Bonds must be submitted either: 
 

(a) In a sealed envelope marked “Proposal for Bonds” and addressed to Mr. James Reardon, Treasurer, City of 
Newton, Massachusetts c/o First Southwest Company, 54 Canal Street, 3

rd

 Floor, Boston, Massachusetts 02114. 
Proposals by telegram delivered as specified above will be accepted.  Signed blank bid forms may be faxed to 
(617) 619-4411 prior to submitting bids, and actual bids may be telephoned to First Southwest Company, 
telephone (617) 619-4400 at least one-half hour prior to the 11:00 a.m. sale and after receipt of the faxed bid form 
by First Southwest Company.  Any bidder who submits a winning bid by telephone in accordance with this Notice 
of Sale shall be required to provide written confirmation of the terms of the bid by faxing or e-mailing a completed, 
signed bid form to First Southwest Company by not later than 12:00 p.m. on the date of sale.  First Southwest 
Company will act as agent for the bidder, but neither the City nor First Southwest Company shall be responsible 
for any errors in connection with bids submitted in this manner; or 

 
(b) Electronically via PARITY in accordance with this Notice of Sale.  To the extent any instructions or directions set 

forth in Parity conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall control.  For further information 
about Parity, potential bidders may contact the Financial Advisor to the City or Dalcomp at 395 Hudson Street, 
New York, New York 10014, telephone (212) 404-8102. 

 
The award of the Bonds to the winning bidder will not be effective until the bid has been approved by the Treasurer and 
the Mayor of the City. 
 
The right is reserved to reject any or all proposals and to reject any proposal not complying with this Notice of Sale and, 
so far as permitted by law, to waive any irregularity with respect to any proposal. 
 
An electronic bid made in accordance with this Notice of Sale shall be deemed an offer to purchase the Bonds in 
accordance with the terms provided in this Notice of Sale and shall be binding upon the bidder as if made by a signed and 
sealed written bid delivered to the City. 
 
It shall be a condition of the successful bidder’s obligation to accept delivery of and pay for a series of the Bonds that, 
contemporaneously with or before accepting such series of the Bonds and paying therefore, it shall be furnished, without 
cost, with (a) the approving opinion of the firm of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, 
substantially in the form presented in Appendix B to the Preliminary Official Statement dated March 29, 2011 with respect 
to such series of the Bonds, (b) a certificate in form satisfactory to said firm, dated as of the date of delivery of such series 
of the Bonds and receipt of payment therefore, to the effect that there is no litigation pending, or to the knowledge of the 
signer or signers thereof, threatened affecting the validity of such series of the Bonds or the power of the City to levy and 
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collect taxes to pay them, (c) a certificate of the City Treasurer to the effect that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, 
both the Preliminary Official Statement as of the date of sale and the Final Official Statement as of the date of delivery of 
such series of the Bonds referred to below, do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and do not omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were 
made, not misleading, and (d) a Continuing Disclosure Certificate substantially in the form presented in the Preliminary 
Official Statement. 
 
On or prior to the date of delivery of the Bonds, the successful bidder shall furnish to the City a certificate acceptable to 
Bond Counsel generally to the effect that (i) as of April 5, 2011 (the “Sale Date”), the Purchaser had offered or reasonably 
expected to offer all of the Bonds to the general public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons acting in the 
capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) in a bona fide public offering at the prices set forth in such certificate, plus 
accrued interest, if any, (ii) such prices represent fair market prices of the Bonds as of the Sale Date, and (iii) as of the 
date of such certificate, all of the Bonds have been offered to the general public in a bona fide offering at the prices set 
forth in such certificate, and at least 10% of each maturity of the Bonds actually has been sold to the general public at 
such prices.  To the extent the certifications described in the preceding sentence are not factually accurate with respect to 
the reoffering of the Bonds, Bond Counsel should be consulted by the bidder as to alternative certifications that will be 
suitable to establish the “issue price” of the Bonds for federal tax law purposes.  If a municipal bond insurance policy or 
similar credit enhancement is obtained with respect to the Bonds by the successful bidder, such bidder will also be 
required to certify as to the net present value savings on the Bonds resulting from payment of insurance premiums or 
other credit enhancement fees. 
 
The City of Newton has not contracted for the issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance for the Bonds.  If the 
Bonds qualify for issuance of any such policy or commitment therefor, any purchase of such insurance or commitment 
shall be at the sole option and expense of the bidder.  Proposals shall not be conditioned upon the issuance of any such 
policy or commitment.  Any failure of the Bonds to be so insured or of any such policy or commitment to be issued shall 
not in any way relieve the purchaser of his contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of his proposal for the 
purchase of the Bonds.  Should the bidder purchase municipal bond insurance, all expenses associated with such policy 
or commitment will be borne by the bidder, except for the fee paid to Moody's Investors Service for the rating on the 
Bonds.  Any such fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service would be borne by the City. 
 
Additional information concerning the City of Newton and the Bonds is contained in the Preliminary Official Statement 
dated March 29, 2011, to which prospective bidders are directed.  The Preliminary Official Statement is provided for 
informational purposes only and is not a part of this Notice of Sale.  The Preliminary Official Statement is deemed final by 
the City as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(1) except for the omission of the reoffering price(s), interest 
rate(s), delivery date, any other terms of the Bonds depending on such matters, and the identity of the underwriter(s), but 
is subject to change without notice and to completion or amendment in a Final Official Statement. 
 
Copies of the Preliminary Official Statement and a suggested form of proposal for each series of the Bonds may be 
obtained from First Southwest Company, 54 Canal Street, Suite 320, Boston, Massachusetts 02114 (telephone: 617-619-
4400).  Within seven business days following award of the Bonds and receipt of the necessary information from the 
successful bidder, 100 copies of the Final Official Statement will be available to the successful bidder of each series for 
use in reoffering the Bonds. Upon request, additional copies will be provided to the successful bidder to a maximum of 
one per $100,000 of par amount purchased. 
 

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Bonds, but neither the failure to print such number 
on any Bond, nor any error with respect thereto, shall constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the purchaser thereof to 
accept delivery of and pay for the Bonds.  The City assumes no responsibility for any CUSIP Service Bureau or other 
charges that may be imposed for the assignment of such numbers. 
 
The Bonds will be designated as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986 as amended (the "Code").   
 

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, 
the City will undertake to provide annual reports and notices of certain material events.  A description of this undertaking 
is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement. 
 

The Bonds, in definitive form, will be delivered to The Depository Trust Company on or about April 14, 2011 against 
payment to the City in federal reserve funds. 
  CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
  /s/ James Reardon, Treasurer 
 
March 29, 2011 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 
 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
 

$5,770,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
This Official Statement is provided for the purpose of presenting certain information relating to the City of Newton, 
Massachusetts (the "City") in connection with the sale of its $5,770,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 
2011 Bonds, referred to herein collectively as the “Bonds".  The information contained herein has been furnished by the 
City, except information attributed to another governmental agency or official as the source. 
 
The Bonds are being offered for sale at public bidding on Tuesday, April 5, 2011, and a Notice of Sale dated March 29, 
2011 has been furnished to prospective bidders.  Reference is hereby made to the Notice of Sale for the terms and 
conditions of bidding. 
 
The Bonds will be general obligations of the City of Newton, Massachusetts for which its full faith and credit are pledged.  
Their payment is not limited to a particular fund or revenue source.  For details, see "THE BONDS - Security and 
Remedies," below. 
 

THE BONDS 
Description of the Bonds 
 
The Bonds will be dated as of their delivery date and will bear interest payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 of 
each year until maturity, commencing October 1, 2011, each at the rate or rates of interest determined upon their sale in 
accordance with the Notice of Sale of the City dated March 29, 2011.  The Bonds shall mature on April 1 of the years and 
in the principal amounts as set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. 
 
The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form, without coupons, and, when issued, will be registered in the name of 
Cede & Co., as Bondowner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York.  DTC will act 
as securities depository for the Bonds.  Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in the denomination of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interests in Bonds 
purchased.  So long as Cede & Co. is the Bondowner, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the Bondowners or 
registered owners shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners (as defined herein) of 
the Bonds.  (See "Book-Entry Transfer System" herein.) 
 
Principal of and interest on the Bonds will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, or its 
successor, as Paying Agent.  So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the Bondowner, such payments will be made 
directly to such Bondowner.  Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of DTC and 
disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants and the indirect 
Participants, as more fully described herein. 
 
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates, as described herein. 
 
Redemption Provisions 
 
 Optional Redemption 

 

Bonds maturing on or prior to April 1, 2021 shall not be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity dates.  Bonds 
maturing on or after April 1, 2022 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the City, on or after April 
1, 2021, either in whole or in part at any time, and if in part, by lot within a maturity, at the par amount of the Bonds to be 
redeemed, plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption. 
 

Mandatory Redemption  
 

The Bonds maturing April 1, 2026 and April 1, 2031 respectively (the “Term Bonds”) are subject to mandatory redemption 
or maturity on each of the dates and in each of the principal amounts set forth below “the particular portion of each Term 
Bond to be redeemed or to mature on the final maturity date to be delivered by lot), at a redemption price of par, plus 
accrued interest, if any, to the redemption date. 
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$530,000 Term Bonds Maturing April 1, 2026 

 Principal

Year Amount

2022 $110,000

2023 110,000       

2024 110,000       

2025 100,000       

2026 * 100,000        
*Final maturity. 
 
$500,000 Term Bonds Maturing April 1, 2031 

 

 Principal

Year Amount

2027 $100,000

2028 100,000       

2029 100,000       

2030 100,000       

2031 * 100,000        
 

*Final maturity. 
 Notice of Redemption 
 
So long as DTC is the registered owner of the Bonds, notice of any redemption of Bonds prior to their maturities, 
specifying the Bonds (or the portion thereof) to be redeemed shall be mailed to DTC not more than 60 days nor less than 
30 days prior to the redemption date.  Any failure on the part of DTC to notify the DTC Participants of the redemption or 
failure on the part of the DTC Participants, Indirect Participants, or of a nominee of a Beneficial Owner (having received 
notice from DTC Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial Owner shall not affect the validity of the redemption. 
 
Record Date 
 
The record date for each payment of interest is the fifteenth day of the month preceding the interest payment date, 
provided that with respect to overdue interest or interest on any overdue amount, the Paying Agent may establish a 
special record date.  The special record date may not be more than twenty (20) days before the date set for payment.  
The Paying Agent will mail notice of a special record date to the bondholders at least ten (10) days before the special 
record date. 
 
Book-Entry Only System 
 
The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be 
issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other 
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One-fully registered certificate will be issued for each 
maturity of each series of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with 
DTC.  
 
DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a 
"banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a 
"clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "clearing agency" registered 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing 
for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market 
instruments from over 100 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates 
the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, 
through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates 
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities 
brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of 
Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing 
Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (NSCC, FICC and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well 
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as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities 
Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a 
Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The 
DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about 
DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.  
 
Purchases of securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit 
for such securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each security held by DTC 
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners will not 
receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or 
Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in 
securities held by DTC are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on 
behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in 
securities held by DTC, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for such securities is discontinued. 
 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of 
DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC. The deposit of securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other nominee do not 
effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the securities held 
by it, DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such securities are credited, 
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping 
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 
 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect 
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements 
among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  
 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of a maturity is being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine 
by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed. 
 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to securities held by it unless 
authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an 
Omnibus Proxy to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus 
Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts such securities are 
credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 
 
Principal and interest payments on securities held by DTC will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct Participants' accounts upon DTC's 
receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, on the payable 
date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the 
accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of such Participant and 
not of DTC (nor its nominee), the issuer of such securities or its paying agent, subject to any statutory or regulatory 
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the issuer of such securities 
or its paying agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and 
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 
 
DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to securities held by it at any time by giving 
reasonable notice to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, physical certificates are required to be printed and delivered to Beneficial Owners. 
 
The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor securities 
depository). In that event, physical certificates will be printed and delivered to Beneficial Owners. 
 
The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that the 
City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
 



 

10 

Rating 
 
Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. has assigned a rating of Aaa on the Bonds.  Said rating reflects only said rating agency’s 
views, and will be subject to revision or withdrawal which could affect the market price of the Bonds.  
 
 
Authorization of the Bonds and Use of Proceeds 
 
The following table sets forth the principal amount, purpose, statutory reference and date of Mayoral approval for the 
current offering of Bonds. 

 

Purpose This Issue

Total 

Authorization Statutory Reference

Dates of Mayoral 

Approval

Water Meter Replacement 3,000,000$     11,528,000$   Ch. 44 s. 8(7A) 5/8/2008

School Roof Repairs 810,000          810,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(3A) 1/18/2011

School Masonry Repairs 450,000          450,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(3A) 1/18/2011

School Boiler Replacement 350,000          350,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(3A) 1/18/2011

School Roof Top Exhaust Units 100,000          100,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(3A) 1/18/2011

Horace Mann School Window/ Doors 500,000          500,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(3A) 1/18/2011

Trommel Screen Purchase 170,000          170,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(9) 6/21/2010

City Hall Window Repairs 125,000          125,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(3A) 1/18/2011

DPW Equipment Replacement 265,000          265,000          Ch. 44 s. 7(9) 1/18/2011

Total 5,770,000$    

 
 
Principal Payments by Purpose  
 

Year Water School General Total 

2012 300,000$           45,000$               70,000$          415,000$         

2013 300,000             135,000               95,000            530,000           

2014 300,000             130,000               90,000            520,000           

2015 300,000             130,000               90,000            520,000           

2016 300,000             125,000               85,000            510,000           

2017 300,000             125,000               30,000            455,000           

2018 300,000             125,000               25,000            450,000           

2019 300,000             125,000               25,000            450,000           

2020 300,000             120,000               25,000            445,000           

2021 300,000             120,000               25,000            445,000           

2022 -                     110,000               -                  110,000           

2023 -                     110,000               -                  110,000           

2024 -                     110,000               -                  110,000           

2025 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

2026 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

2027 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

2028 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

2029 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

2030 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

2031 -                     100,000               -                  100,000           

Total 3,000,000$        2,210,000$          560,000$        5,770,000$      
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Opinion of Bond Counsel 
 
The purchaser of the Bonds will be furnished, without cost, the applicable legal opinion of the firm of Edwards Angell 
Palmer & Dodge LLP, of Boston, Massachusetts.  The opinion will be dated and given on and will speak only as of the 
date of original delivery of the Bonds to the successful bidder.  The proposed form of legal opinion is included herein as 
Appendix B. 
 
Other than as to matters expressly set forth herein as the opinion of Bond Counsel, Bond Counsel are not passing upon 
and do not assume any responsibility for the accuracy or adequacy of the statements made in this Official Statement and 
make no representation that they have independently verified the same. 
 
Tax Exemption 
 
In the opinion of Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel to the City (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an 
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance with 
certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 
103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”).  Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the Bonds 
is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although 
Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative 
minimum taxable income.   In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the Bonds are “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes 
of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences 
arising with respect to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds. 
 
The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of 
interest on obligations such as the Bonds.  Failure to comply with these requirements may result in interest on the Bonds 
being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the Bonds.  
The City has covenanted to comply with such requirements to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not be included in 
federal gross income.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these requirements.   
 
Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts 
personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  Bond Counsel has not 
opined as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.  Prospective Bondholders should 
be aware, however, that the Bonds are included in the measure of Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the 
Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise 
taxes.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences nor as to the taxability 
of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.  A complete copy of the 
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix B hereto. 
 
To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of such Bonds 
(excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Bonds), the difference 
constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each owner thereof, is treated 
as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from 
Massachusetts personal income taxes.  For this purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Bonds is the first 
price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or 
similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers).  The original 
issue discount with respect to any maturity of the Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the 
basis of a constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates).  
The accruing original issue discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon 
disposition (including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds.  Bondholders should consult their own tax 
advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment 
of purchasers who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at which a substantial 
amount of such Bonds is sold to the public. 
 
Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount greater than the stated principal amount to be 
paid at maturity of such Bonds, or, in some cases, at the earlier redemption date of such Bonds ("Premium Bonds"), will 
be treated as having amortizable bond premium for federal income tax purposes and Massachusetts personal income tax 
purposes.  No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond premium in the case of obligations, such as the Premium 
Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. However, a Bondholder’s 
basis in a Premium Bond will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such 
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Bondholder. Holders of Premium Bonds should consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of 
amortizable bond premium in their particular circumstances. 
 
Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or 
events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax 
status of interest on, the Bonds.  Further, no assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, including 
amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any 
future judicial, regulatory or administrative interpretation or development with respect to existing law, will not adversely 
affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.  Prospective Bondholders are urged to consult their own tax 
advisors with respect to proposals to restructure the federal income tax. 
 
Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or 
receipt of interest on, the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal or state tax liability of a Bondholder. Among other 
possible consequences of ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds, the Code 
requires recipients of certain social security and certain railroad retirement benefits to take into account receipts or 
accruals of interest on the Bonds in determining the portion of such benefits that are included in gross income.  The 
nature and extent of all such other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status of the Bondholder or the 
Bondholder’s other items of income or deduction.  Except as indicated in the following paragraph, Bond Counsel 
expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, and Bondholders should consult with their own tax 
advisors with respect to such consequences. 
 
Security and Remedies 
 
Full Faith and Credit.  General obligation bonds and notes of a Massachusetts city or town constitute a pledge of its full 
faith and credit.  Payment is not limited to a particular fund or revenue source.  Except for "qualified bonds" as described 
below (see "Serial Bonds and Notes" under "INDEBTEDNESS - Types of Obligations") and setoffs of state distributions as 
described below (see "Use of State Distributions to Pay Debt Service" below), no provision is made by the Massachusetts 
statutes for priorities among bonds and notes and other general obligations, although the use of certain moneys may be 
restricted. 
 
Tax Levy.  The Massachusetts statutes direct the municipal assessors to include annually in the tax levy for the next fiscal 
year "all debt and interest charges matured and maturing during the next fiscal year and not otherwise provided for [and] 
all amounts necessary to satisfy final judgments."  Specific provision is also made for including in the next tax levy 
payment of rebate amounts not otherwise provided for and payment of notes in anticipation of federal or state aid if the aid 
is no longer forthcoming. 
 
The total amount of a tax levy is limited by statute.  However, the voters in each municipality may vote to exclude from the 
limitation any amounts required to pay debt service on indebtedness incurred before November 4, 1980.  Local voters may 
also vote to exempt specific subsequent bond issues from the limitation.  (See "Tax Limitations" under "PROPERTY 
TAXATION" below.)  In addition, obligations incurred before November 4, 1980 may be constitutionally entitled to payment 
from taxes in excess of the statutory limit. 
 
Except for taxes on the increased value of certain property in designated development districts which may be pledged for 
the payment of debt service on bonds issued to finance economic development projects within such districts, no provision 
is made for a lien on any portion of the tax levy to secure particular bonds or notes or bonds and notes generally (or 
judgments on bonds or notes) in priority to other claims.  Provision is made, however, for borrowing to pay judgments, 
subject to the General Debt Limit.  (See "Debt Limits" below.)  Subject to the approval of the State Director of Accounts for 
judgments above $10,000, judgments may also be paid from available funds without appropriation and included in the 
next tax levy unless other provision is made. 
 
Court Proceedings.  Massachusetts cities and towns are subject to suit on their general obligation bonds and notes and 
courts of competent jurisdiction have power in appropriate proceedings to order payment of a judgment on the bonds or 
notes from lawfully available funds or, if necessary, to order the city or town to take lawful action to obtain the required 
money, including the raising of it in the next annual tax levy, within the limits prescribed by law.  (See "Tax Limitations" 
under "PROPERTY TAXATION " below.)  In exercising their discretion as to whether to enter such an order, the courts 
could take into account all relevant factors including the current operating needs of the city or town and the availability and 
adequacy of other remedies.  The Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court has stated in the past that a judgment against a 
municipality can be enforced by the taking and sale of the property of any inhabitant.  However, there has been no judicial 
determination as to whether this remedy is constitutional under current due process and equal protection standards. 
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Restricted Funds  Massachusetts statutes also provide that certain water, gas and electric, community antenna television 
system, telecommunications, sewer, parking meter and passenger ferry, community preservation and affordable housing 
receipts may be used only for water, gas and electric, community antenna television system, telecommunications, sewer, 
parking, mitigation of ferry service impacts, and community preservation and affordable housing purposes, respectively; 
accordingly, moneys derived from these sources may be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds and notes issued for 
other purposes.  A city or town that accepts certain other statutory provisions may establish an enterprise fund for a utility, 
health care, solid waste, recreational or transportation facility and for police or fire services; under those provisions any 
surplus in the fund is restricted to use for capital expenditures or reduction of user charges.  In addition, subject to certain 
limits, a city or town may annually authorize the establishment of one or more revolving funds in connection with use of certain 
revenues for programs that produce those revenues; interest earned on a revolving fund is treated as general fund revenue.  
A city or town may also establish an energy revolving loan fund to provide loans to owners of privately-held property in the city 
or town for certain energy conservation and renewable energy projects, and may borrow to establish such a fund.  The loan 
repayments and interest earned on the investment of amounts in the fund shall be credited to the fund.  Also, the annual 
allowance for depreciation of a gas and electric plant or a community antenna television and telecommunications system is 
restricted to use for plant or system renewals and improvements, for nuclear decommissioning costs, and costs of contractual 
commitments, or, with the approval of the State Department of Telecommunications and Energy, to pay debt incurred for plant 
or system reconstruction or renewals. Revenue bonds and notes issued in anticipation of them may be secured by a prior lien 
on specific revenues.  Receipts from industrial users in connection with industrial revenue financings are also not available for 
general municipal purposes. 
 
State Distributions  State grants and distributions may in some circumstances be unavailable to pay general obligation bonds 
and notes of a city or town in that the State Treasurer is empowered to deduct from such grants and distributions the amount 
of any debt service paid on “qualified bonds” (See “Serial Bonds and Notes” under “TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS” below) and 
any other sums due and payable by the city or town to the Commonwealth or certain other public entities, including any unpaid 
assessments for costs of any public transportation authority (such as the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority or a 
regional transit authority) of which it is a member, for costs of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority if the city or town 
is within the territory served by the Authority, for any debt service due on obligations issued to the Massachusetts School 
Building Authority, or for charges necessary to meet obligations under the Commonwealth’s Water Pollution Abatement or 
Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs, including such charges imposed by another local governmental unit that provides 
wastewater collection or treatment services or drinking water services to the city or town. 
 
Bankruptcy.  Enforcement of a claim for payment of principal or interest on general obligation bonds or notes would be 
subject to the applicable provisions of Federal bankruptcy laws and to the provisions of other statutes, if any, hereafter 
enacted by the Congress or the State legislature extending the time for payment or imposing other constraints upon 
enforcement insofar as the same may be constitutionally applied. Massachusetts municipalities are not currently authorized 
by the Massachusetts General Laws to file a petition for bankruptcy under Federal bankruptcy laws.  In cases involving 
significant financial difficulties faced by a single city, town or regional school district, the Commonwealth has enacted special 
legislation to permit the appointment of a fiscal overseer, finance control board or, in the most extreme cases, a state receiver.  
In a limited number of these situations, such special legislation has also authorized the filing of federal bankruptcy 
proceedings, with the prior approval of the Commonwealth.  In each case where such authority was granted, it expired at the 
termination of the Commonwealth’s oversight of the financially distressed city, town or regional school district.  To date, no 
such filings have been approved or made.   
 
Financial Advisory Services of First Southwest Company 
 
First Southwest Company, Boston, Massachusetts serves as financial advisor to the City. The City has consented to 
participation by First Southwest Company in the public bidding on the Bonds if it so desires. 
 
Continuing Disclosure 
 
In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the "Rule"), the City will covenant for the benefit of the owners of the Bonds to provide certain financial 
information and operating data relating to the City by not later than 270 days after the end of each fiscal year (the "Annual 
Report"), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events, if material.  The covenants will be 
contained in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the proposed form of which is provided in Appendix C.  The Certificate 
will be executed by the signers of the Bonds, and is incorporated by reference in the Bonds. 
The City has never failed to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings to provide annual 
reports or notices of material events in accordance with the Rule. 
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
General 
 
The City is located in eastern Massachusetts in Middlesex County approximately 7 miles from downtown Boston, 
bordered by the West Roxbury section of Boston on the southeast, Needham on the southwest, Wellesley and Weston on 
the west, Waltham and Watertown on the north, and by Brookline and the Allston-Brighton section of Boston on the east.  
The City has a population of 85,146 according to the 2010 federal census and occupies a land area of 18.33 square 
miles.  Settled in 1639, Newton was incorporated as a city in 1873.  Government is by an elected mayor and a twenty-four 
member board of aldermen.  The principal executive officers of the City are as follows: 
 
 

PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 
 
      Current Term 
 Title Name Manner of Selection     Expires  
 
Mayor Setti D. Warren Elected 2014 
Treasurer/Collector James Reardon Appointed by Mayor and confirmed by 
  Board of Aldermen 2014 
Comptroller David C. Wilkinson Appointed by Board of Aldermen 2012 
Clerk David A. Olson Appointed by Board of Aldermen 2012 
Chief Operating Officer Robert Rooney Appointed by Mayor Indefinite 
Chief Financial Officer Maureen Lemieux Appointed by Mayor Indefinite 
Director of Community Relations Sarah Ecker Appointed by Mayor Indefinite 
 
Municipal Services 
 

The City provides general governmental services for the territory within its boundaries, including police and fire protection, 
collection, disposal, and recycling of solid waste, public education, street maintenance, parks and recreational facilities 
and public library facilities.  Complete sewer and water services are provided by the City via connections to the 
Massachusetts Water Resources Authority.  These services are funded completely from user revenues. 
 
Transportation services include commuter bus, commuter rail, and trolley service to Boston which is provided by the 
Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  Riverside Station, which is the terminus for the MBTA rapid transit Green 
Line as well as a stop for the MBTA, Greyhound, and Peter Pan bus lines, are located in Newton. 
 
Education 
 
The City’s public school facilities presently include 15 elementary schools, 4 middle schools and 2 senior high schools.  
The following table sets forth the trend in public school enrollments for the current and past four school years and 
projections for the next two years.  The total capacity of the City’s school system is approximately 12,949 students.  
 

PUBLIC SCHOOL ENROLLMENTS AS OF – OCTOBER 1, 
 

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Grades K-5 5,318        5,408      5,498     5,527      5,646     5,670     5,701     

Grades 6-8 2,474        2,453      2,480     2,556      2,550     2,671     2,725     

Grades 9-12 3,709        3,695      3,592     3,524      3,579     3,557     3,621     

Totals 11,501      11,556    11,570   11,607    11,775   11,898   12,047   

ProjectedActual

 
____________ 
SOURCE: Office of the Superintendent of Schools. 
 
The City is also the site of Boston College, a private (Roman Catholic) educational institution which is situated on a 200 
acre campus in the City's Chestnut Hill section.  With an enrollment of approximately 9,000 undergraduate and 4,600 
graduate students, Boston College consists of 10 schools, colleges and institutes, including Boston College Law School.  
In addition, the City is home to LaSalle College, Mt. Ida College, and 17 private/parochial schools serving students in 
grades K-12. 
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History 
 
Newton was permanently settled in 1639 and incorporated as a city in 1873.  As soon as farming became established and 
roads were laid out, mills to grind corn and saw lumber were constructed.  Newton's industrial development had its start at 
Newton Upper and Lower Falls.  Iron works were established in 1703 and one of the first paper mills in the country was 
erected in 1791 at the Lower Falls.  In Newton's early days, farming was a principal occupation and friendly Indians 
helped introduce settlers to such new crops as potatoes, maize, squash, pumpkins, and beans.  Some of the settlers built 
looms or forges or engaged in fishing.  Newton Upper Falls and Newton Lower Falls became busy industrial centers in the 
19th century, with two year-round hotels, many stores, and on the Needham side of the river, a cotton mill with three 
thousand spindles.  At present, there are very few of these old industries extant.  Newton has always been a center of 
prosperity and though it is one of the largest cities in Massachusetts, it has maintained its suburban character.  Its seven 
hills and many villages provide many of the finest residential neighborhoods in the Boston area. 
 
 
Industry and Commerce 
 
Newton has a diversified economic base with 47,479 people employed in 3,604 establishments in the City as of 2009 with 
an estimated annual payroll of approximately $2,854,012,299.  Businesses are generally small and service-oriented, with 
professional, business, education and health services accounting for over 50 percent of all jobs.   
 
Newton has numerous industrial, research and development and office areas:  the Wells Avenue Industrial Park (123.1 
acres), Newton Executive Office Park (5.9 acres), the Needham Street Corridor (108 acres) and, in addition, 86 acres of 
manufacturing land in other areas throughout the City.  In addition, there are approximately 2,000 commercial 
establishments located within the City's village commercial centers. 
 
The following table lists the major categories of employment with payrolls in the City. 
 

Industry 2006 2007 2008 2009

Construction 1,895                    1,907                   1,789                   1,569                   

Manufacturing 1,535                    1,314                   1,173                   1,012                   

Trade, Transportation and Utilities 6,899                    7,085                   7,275                   6,829                   

Information 1,049                    1,038                   1,100                   1,232                   

Financial Activities 2,547                    2,624                   2,865                   2,987                   

Professional and Business Services 8,217                    8,842                   9,404                   8,986                   

Education and Health Services 16,301                  16,831                 17,528                 17,993                 

Leisure and Hospitality 4,491                    4,870                   5,124                   4,663                   

Other Services 2,170                    2,177                   2,177                   2,208                   

Total Employment 45,104                  46,688                 48,435                 47,479                 

Number of Establishments 3,571                    3,588                   3,594                   3,604                   

Average Weekly Wages 1,042$                  1,083$                 1,114$                 1,133$                 

Total Wages 2,488,447,561$    2,672,888,450$   2,854,896,754$   2,845,012,299$   

Calendar Year Average

 
______________ 
SOURCE: Massachusetts Department of Employment and Training.  Data based upon place of employment, not place of residence.  Due to the 

reclassification the U.S. Department of Labor now uses the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) as the basis for the 
assignment and tabulation of economic data by industry. 
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The following table sets forth the City's largest employers, excluding the City itself.  
 

Newton’s Largest Employers* 2011 

 
Employers with 1000+ Employees 

 
Boston College 
Newton Wellesley Hospital 
 
 

Employers with 500-999 Employees 

 

Education Development Center, Inc. 
Northeast Securities 
 
 

 

 

 

Employers with 250-499 Employees 

 
ACI Worldwide Inc. 
Adobe Systems 
Bloomingdale’s 
Cheesecake Factory 
Clark’s Companies of North America 
D’Agostino Associates 
EMC Corp. 
Harvard Vanguard Medical Associates 
Marriott (Newton CP/TPG Hotels) 
Tech Target Inc. 
UPromise, Inc. 
Whole Foods 

 
_______________ 
*Source: InfoUSA for the Massachusetts Division of Local Services – Labor and Workforce Development. 
 
The following table compares retail trade data of the City with that of the Commonwealth as a whole. 
 

RETAIL SALES 
 

Newton Massachusetts

Establishments:

1997 390 26,209

1992 607 38,490

1987  609 38,905

Sales(000):

1997 $978,074 $58,578,048

1992 970,792 47,663,248

1987 808,653 44,818,481

Per Capita Sales:

1997 $11,843 $5,663

1992 11,755 7,922

1987 9,670 7,731

 
_______________ 
SOURCE: 1997, 1992, 1987 U.S. Census of Retail Trade, and the 1980 and 1990 Federal Census. 
 
The Mall at Chestnut Hill and The Atrium are two retail centers in the City and house approximately 65 stores (including 
Bloomingdale's) and 66 stores, respectively.   
 
 
Unemployment 
 
According to the Massachusetts Department of Employment and Training preliminary data in December 2010, the City 
had a total labor force of 46,281 of which 43,804 were employed and 2,477 or 5.4% were unemployed as compared to 
8.0% for the Commonwealth. 
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The table below sets forth recent trend in the City's average labor force, employment and unemployment rates for the 
following calendar years and also the unemployment rates for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the United 
States.  
 

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES 
 

     Massachusetts United States
Year Labor Force Employment Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate Unemployment Rate

2009 45,604 42,972 5.8 % 8.1 % 9.3 %
2008 46,528 44,935 3.4 5.3 5.8

2007 46,343 44,979 2.9 4.5 4.6
2006 46,781 45,185 3.4 4.9 4.6

2005 46,329 44,704 3.3 4.8 4.6

City of Newton

 
 

_______________ 
 

SOURCE: Mass. Department of Employment and Training, Federal Reserve Bank of Boston and U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics.  Data based upon place of residence, not place of employment.  Monthly data are unadjusted. 

 
 

Building Permits 
 
The table below sets forth the number of building permits issued and the estimated dollar value of new construction and 
alterations for the following calendar years.  The estimated dollar values are builders' estimates and are generally 
considered to be conservative.  Permits are filed and estimated valuations are shown for both private construction and 
City projects. 
 

BUILDING PERMITS 
 

New Construction

Fiscal Residential Non-Residential Additions/Alterations Total

Year No. Value No. Value No. Value No. Value

2010 62 $34,125,255 4 $5,993,828 1,972 $113,172,077 2,038 153,291,160$    

2009 45 20,476,404     1 9,000,000      1,786 91,078,537      1,832 120,554,941      

2008 53 25,741,430     3 3,356,684      2,296 147,703,229    2,352 176,801,343      

2007 46 27,092,422 5 21,803,906 2,242 163,507,437 2,293 212,403,765

2006  53 47,498,576 3 15,100,661 2,316 152,280,106 2,372 214,879,343  
_____________ 

SOURCE: City of Newton Building Department. 
 
 
Transportation and Utilities 
 
Newton’s proximity to Boston makes the resources of this regional center and seaport readily available.  The City is less 
than 10 miles from Boston’s Logan International Airport, with its intercity and international air carrier service.  Commuter 
bus and train service to Boston is provided by the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority.  The principal highways 
serving Newton are State Route 30 (Commonwealth Avenue — a portion of which is a part of the course for the Boston 
Marathon), cross-state Route 9, and Interstate Route 90—the Massachusetts Turnpike—with 3 interchanges available to 
the City.  Water is supplied to the City by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority.  Gas and electric service is 
provided by private utilities. 
 
 
Development 
 
The continued development and redevelopment of commercial and industrial parcels within the City has been fostered by 
the City’s commitment to enhancing the quality of life for its residents and businesses.  The City has played an active role 
by investing approximately $8 million annually in road and infrastructure improvements.  Furthermore, the City’s 
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Community Development Block Grant Program has spent nearly $3 million in the past decade on street, sidewalk and 
other infrastructure improvements in the City’s commercial centers. 

 

 
The following tables list the major construction projects which are either completed, under construction, or pending. 
 

Major Office/Commercial/Residential Construction 

(Approved, permitted or under construction – February 2011) 
 
 

Location   Type      Description    

70 Union Street  Commercial   90-seat restaurant 
1239-1243 Centre Street  Commercial  105-seat restaurant 
225 Boylston Street Commercial  Convert 2,500 square feet of existing retail space to 50-seat restaurant 
(Chestnut Hill Mall) 
33-41 Boylston Street Commercial  Convert 5,400 square feet of existing retail to 175-seat restaurant 
(Chestnut Hill Shopping Center) 
244 Adams Street Commercial  Six (6) 2.5 story attached-dwelling residential units 
192 Lexington Street Commercial  40B development of ten (10) residential units 
152 Adams Street  Commercial  5 units residential, 3,000 square feet of retail on ground floor 
1479 Washington Street Commercial  4,400 square foot addition to existing funeral home 
187 North Street  Commercial  Expansion of existing 64 seat restaurant to 114 seats 
1349 Washington Street Commercial  Expansion of existing 48 seat restaurant to 76 seats 
 
 

INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

 

Location          Description    

Beth Menachem Chabad Special permit approved for demolition of existing residence and construction of 12,000 
square foot new temple at 349 Dedham Street 

Boston College    Construction of 183,000 square foot Stokes Hall 
35 Morseland Road   Special permit approved for expansion of Temple Shaarei Tefillah 
481 Hammond Street   8,350 square foot addition to existing religious educational and residential use 
1897 Washington Street   Replacement of existing 1,972 square foot pool house at Country Club 
117 Woodland Avenue   Construction of 22,000 square foot dorm Lasell College 
     
 
 

PENDING MAJOR DEVELOPMENT  

 
Location   Type      Description    

355 Grove Street  Mixed use Anticipated special permit filing for transportation-oriented development with office, retail 
and housing on 23-acre site at Riverside MBTA station  

116 Dedham Street Residential Anticipated 40B development of 16 affordable housing units 
200-230 Boylston Street Mixed Use Recently approved special permit for approximately 245,000 square feet of 
                                                                        retail/office/grocery/health club plus up to 100 residential units 
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Income Levels and Population 
 
The following table compares federal census data for the City, the Commonwealth and the United States. 
 

Newton Massachusetts United States

Median Age:

2000 38.7 36.5 35.3

1990 35.7 33.6 32.9

1980 33.4 31.2 30.0

1970 36.2 29.0 28.1

Median Family Income:

2000 $105,289 $61,664 $50,046

1990 70,071 44,367 35,225

1980 30,436 21,166 19,908

1970 15,381 10,835 9,867

Per Capita Income:

2000 $45,708 $25,952 $21,587

1990 28,840 17,224 14,420  
_____________________ 
SOURCE: Federal Bureau of the Census. 
 
 
 
On the basis of the 2010 federal census, the City has a population density of 4,645 persons per square mile. 
 
 

POPULATION TRENDS 
 

Middlesex

Year Newton(1) % Change County % Change Commonwealth % Change

2010 (Preliminary) 85,146 1.6            % 1,503,085 2.6                % 6,547,629 3.1       %

2000 83,829 1.5            1,465,396   4.8                6,349,097 5.5       

1990 82,585 (1.2)           1,398,468   2.3                6,016,426 4.9       

1980 83,622 (8.4)           1,367,034   (2.2)               5,737,037 0.8       

1970 91,263 (1.2)           1,398,397   12.9              5,689,170 10.5      
 
______________________ 
SOURCE: Federal Census 2010, 2000, 1990, 1980 and 1970. 
 
(1) The decrease in City population through 1990 was attributable to a decrease in the size of the average household, 

not to a decline in the number of housing units. 
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PROPERTY TAXATION 
 
Tax Levy Computation 
 
The principal tax of Massachusetts cities and towns is the tax on real and personal property.  The amount to be levied in each 
year is the amount appropriated or required by law to be raised for municipal expenditures less estimated receipts from other 
sources and less appropriations voted from funds on hand. The total amount levied is subject to certain limits prescribed by 
law; for a description of those limits see “Tax Limitations” below.   
 
The estimated receipts for a fiscal year from sources other than the property tax may not exceed the actual receipts during the 
preceding fiscal year from the same sources unless approved by the State Commissioner of Revenue. Excepting special 
funds the use of which is otherwise provided for by law, the deduction for appropriations voted from funds on hand for a fiscal 
year cannot exceed the “free cash” as of the beginning of the prior fiscal year as certified by the State Director of Accounts 
plus up to nine months’ collections and receipts on account of earlier years’ taxes after that date.  Subject to certain 
adjustments, free cash is surplus revenue less uncollected overdue property taxes from earlier years. 
 
Although an allowance is made in the tax levy for abatements (see “Abatements and Overlay” below) no reserve is generally 
provided for uncollectible real property taxes.  Since some of the levy is inevitably not collected, this creates a cash deficiency 
which may or may not be offset by other items (see “Taxation to Meet Deficits” below). 
 
The table below illustrates the manner in which the tax levy was determined for each of the following fiscal years.   

 
TAX LEVY COMPUTATION 

 

        Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2011

Total Appropriations(1) 295,747,982$  317,549,631$  325,917,013$  341,818,029$  340,288,840$  
Additions:

   State and County Assessments 5,478,619        5,615,196        5,603,855        5,664,218        5,589,086        

   Overlay for Current Year 2,900,130        2,101,831        2,771,614        2,828,818        2,955,334        

   Other Amounts to be Raised 178,295           182,205           173,631           134,591           122,622           
Total Additions 8,557,044        7,899,232        8,549,100        8,627,627        8,667,042        

Gross Amount to be Raised 304,305,026 325,448,863 334,466,113 350,445,657 348,955,882

Deductions:

   Local Estimated Receipts 63,047,211      68,223,637      66,233,228      67,302,401      67,652,268      

   Community Preservation revenues(2) 4,993,044        4,872,432        3,749,970        6,841,524        4,018,864        
State Aid(3):

   Current Year 21,801,107      23,773,433      27,987,266      24,106,766      18,871,372      

Available Funds(4):
   Free Cash 3,894,596        8,539,800        6,700,252        11,770,246      6,461,611        
   Other Available Funds 2,064,940        4,267,135        4,898,889        7,124,436        10,243,913      

Total Other Revenue 95,800,898      109,676,437    109,569,604    117,145,373    107,248,028    
Net Amount to be Raised (Tax Levy) $208,504,128 $215,772,425 $224,896,509 $233,300,284 $241,707,854

  
_____________________ 

(1) Includes additional appropriations from taxation voted subsequent to adoption of the annual budget but prior to setting of the tax 
rate. 

(2) Includes appropriations of fund balance to fund continuing appropriations of prior years.  See “Community Preservation Fund 
Major Revenues” herein. 

(3) Estimated by various state agencies and required by law to use in setting of the tax rate.  Actual state aid payments may vary 
upward or downward from said estimates, and the State may withhold payments pending receipt of State and County 
assessments.  See “CITY FINANCES–Revenues –State Aid”.  Transfers from other available funds, including “Free Cash” (see 
“CITY FINANCES”) generally made as an offset to a particular appropriation item. For purposes of preliminary fiscal year 2012 
General Fund budget planning, the City is assuming a 5% reduction in “Cherry Sheet” state aid.  

(4) Includes overlay surplus reserve fund for each year and transfers from the water and sewer accounts to cover indirect costs 
incurred in the general fund. 
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Assessed Valuations and Tax Levies 
 

Property is classified for the purpose of taxation according to its use. The legislature has in substance created three classes of 
taxable property: (1) residential real property, (2) open space land, and (3) all other (commercial, industrial and personal 
property). Within limits, cities and towns are given the option of determining the share of the annual levy to be borne by each 
of the three categories.  The share required to be borne by residential real property is at least 50 per cent of its share of the 
total taxable valuation; the effective rate for open space must be at least 75 per cent of the effective rate for residential real 
property; and the share of commercial, industrial and personal property must not exceed 175 percent of their share of the total 
valuation. A city or town may also exempt up to 20 percent of the valuation of residential real property (where used as the 
taxpayer’s principal residence) and up to 10 percent of the valuation of commercial real property (where occupied by certain 
small businesses). Property may not be classified in a city or town until the State Commissioner of Revenue certifies that all 
property in the city or town has been assessed at its fair cash value.  Such certification must take place every three years. 
 
Related statutes provide that certain forest land, agricultural or horticultural land (assessed at the value it has for these 
purposes) and recreational land (assessed on the basis of its use at a maximum of 25 percent of its fair cash value) are all to 
be taxed at the rate applicable to commercial property.  Land classified as forest land is valued for this purpose at five percent 
of fair cash value but not less than ten dollars per acre. 
 
In order to determine appropriate relative values for the purposes of certain distributions to and assessments upon cities and 
towns, the Commissioner of Revenue biennially makes a redetermination of the fair cash value of the taxable property in each 
municipality.  This is known as the “equalized value”. See “DEBT LIMITS” above. 
 
Professional revaluations of all property in the City to full and fair value in compliance with Massachusetts law was most 
recently completed for use in fiscal year 2008. (See “Property Tax Limitation”).   
 

The following table sets forth the trend in the City’s assessed valuations, tax rates, tax levies, and tax levies per capita. 
 

Tax Rate Per

$1,000 Valuation

Commercial,

   Real Personal Total Industrial,
Fiscal Estate Property Assessed Residential Personal Gross Tax Levy

Year Valuation Valuation Valuation Property Property Levy Per Capita (1)

2011 19,943,714,300$     289,095,700$     20,232,810,000$     10.90$     20.89$       241,707,854$        2,883$       
2010 20,204,657,700       283,174,000       20,487,831,700       10.41       19.93         233,300,284          2,783         

2009 20,447,924,600       266,624,600       20,714,549,200       9.96         19.00         224,896,509          2,683         
2008(2) 20,246,168,400       211,461,100       20,457,629,500       9.70         18.46         215,772,425          2,574         
2007 20,471,496,400       195,725,500       20,667,221,900       9.33         17.64         208,504,128          2,487          
____________________ 
(1) 2000 federal census (83,829). 
(2) Revaluation year. 
 
 
Classification by Property 
 
The following is a breakdown of the City’s fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009 real estate valuation by type of property. 
 

2010 2009

Property Type Amount % of Total Amount % of Total Amount % of Total

Residential (1) $18,402,764,063 91.0 % $18,667,859,100 91.1 % $18,925,908,407 91.4 %

Commercial 1,683,339,437 8.3 1,670,748,000 8.2 1,642,708,593 7.9

Indus trial 146,706,500 0.7 149,224,600 0.7 145,932,200 0.7

Total Real Estate $20,232,810,000 100.0 $20,487,831,700 100.0 $20,714,549,200 100.0

2011

_________________ 
(1) Includes personal property. 
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Largest Taxpayers 
 
The following is a list of the ten largest taxpayers in the City based upon assessed valuations for fiscal 2011.  All of the 
taxpayers listed below are current in their tax payments. 
 

 

LARGEST TAXPAYERS 
 

Name Nature of Business

FY 2011 Amount 

of Tax

% of Total 

Levy

Riverside Project LLC Office Building $          2,221,213 0.92           %

Nstar Electric Utility Company 1,518,619 0.63           

Rothenburg, Daniel E. Chestnut Hill Mall 1,454,856 0.60           

Mayflower Atrium LLC Atrium Mall 1,440,967 0.60           

Verizon New England Inc. Utility Company 1,150,893 0.48           

Cohen, Julian & Rothenberg D TRS Chestnut Hill Mall 1,142,551 0.47           

NS Wells Acquisition LLC Office Building 905,377 0.37           

Chesapeake Hotel Lmt Partnership Marriott Hotel 841,880 0.35           

Thomas J. White TRS Hotel and Office Building 799,101 0.33           

Lasell College Independent Living 675,832 0.28           

12,151,288$        5.03          %
 

 

State Equalized Valuation 
 
In order to determine appropriate relative values for the purposes of certain distributions to and assessments upon cities 
and towns, the Commissioner of Revenue biennially makes a redetermination of the fair cash value of the taxable 
property in each municipality as of January 1 of even numbered years.  This is known as the “equalized value”.   
 
The following table sets forth the trend in State equalized valuations of the City.  The City of Newton has the third highest 
equalized valuation in Massachusetts, after the Cities of Boston and Cambridge. 
 

 

State Equalized %

Year Valuation Increase

2010 $22,520,035,100 1.34 %

2008 22,221,420,100 2.86

2006 21,604,607,900 12.93

2004  19,131,654,600 20.66

2002 15,856,203,000 31.82  

2000  12,028,714,200   21.17   
____________ 
SOURCE: State Department of Revenue. 
 
 
Abatements and Overlay 
 
A city or town is authorized to increase each tax levy by an amount approved by the State Commissioner of Revenue as an 
“overlay” to provide for tax abatements. If abatements are granted in excess of the applicable overlay, the excess is required 
to be added to the next tax levy. 
 
Abatements are granted where exempt real or personal property has been assessed or where taxable real or personal 
property has been overvalued or disproportionately valued. The assessors may also abate uncollectible personal property 
taxes. They may abate real and personal property taxes on broad grounds (including inability to pay) with the approval of the 
State Commissioner of Revenue. But uncollected real property taxes are ordinarily not written off until they become municipal 
“tax titles” by purchase at the public sale or by taking, at which time the tax is written off in full by reserving the amount of the 
tax and charging surplus. 
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The table below sets forth the amount of the overlay reserve for the following fiscal years and actual abatements granted 
during the fiscal year against each levy. 

Overlay Reserve Abatements

Fiscal Net Tax Dollar As a % of Granted Through

Year Levy(1) Amount Net Levy June 30, 2010

2010 $230,471,466 $2,828,818 1.23 % $694,241

2009 222,124,896 2,771,614 1.25 812,612

2008 213,670,595 2,101,831 0.98 997,554

2007 205,603,998 2,900,130 1.41 923,456

2006 198,431,418 2,806,623 1.41 622,568  
_________________ 

(1) Tax levy prior to addition of overlay reserve. 

Municipal Tax Amnesty 
 
Pursuant to recent legislation, a municipality may establish a municipal tax amnesty program expiring not later than June 30, 
2011. Under such program, the municipality may waive, during the amnesty period, certain penalties, fees, charges and 
accrued interest, provided the taxpayer pays the amount of the tax to which such penalties, fees, charges, and accrued 
interest relates. 
 
 
Tax Collections 
 
The taxes for each fiscal year are due in quarterly installments on August 1, November 1, February 1, and May 1. Interest 
accrues on delinquent taxes currently at the rate of 14 percent per annum retroactive to the due date.  Real property (land 
and buildings) is subject to a lien for the taxes assessed upon it (subject to any paramount federal lien and subject to 
bankruptcy and insolvency laws).  If the property has not been transferred, an unenforced lien expires on the third 
November 15 after the first year.  If the property has not been transferred by the third November 15, an unenforced lien 
expires upon a later transfer of the property.  Provision is made, however, for continuation of the lien where it could not be 
enforced because of a legal impediment.  The persons against whom real or personal property taxes are assessed are 
personally liable for the tax (subject to bankruptcy and insolvency laws).  In the case of real property, this personal liability 
is effectively extinguished by sale or taking of the property as described below. 
 
The table below compares the City’s net tax collections with its net (gross tax levy less overlay reserve for abatements) 
tax levies for the following fiscal years.   

Collections D uring Col lections as of

Overlay Fiscal Year Payable(1)(2) January 31, 2011 (1)(2)

Fiscal Gross Tax Reserve for Net Dollar % of Dollar % of

Year Levy Abatements Tax Levy Amount Net Levy Amount Net Levy

2010 $233,300,284 $2,828,818 $230,471,466 $228,861,998 99.30 % $230,532,115 100.03 %

2009 224,896,509   2,771,614      222,124,895     221,179,256     99.57 221,579,199       99.75

2008 215,772,425 2,101,831 213,670,594 211,782,357 99.12 211,887,115 99.17

2007 208,504,128 2,900,130 205,603,998 204,425,747 99.43 204,475,645 99.45

2006 201,238,041 2,806,623 198,431,418 197,604,301 99.58 197,604,318 99.58  
___________ 
(1) Net after deduction of overlay reserve for abatements. 
(2) Actual dollar collections, net of refunds.  Does not include abatements, proceeds of tax titles or tax possessions attributable to each levy or other 

non-cash credits.  Fiscal 2010 collections are comparable with prior years. 

 
 
Tax Titles and Possessions 
 
Massachusetts law permits a municipality either to sell by public sale (at which the municipality may become the 
purchaser) or to take real property for nonpayment of taxes thereon.  In either case the property owner can redeem the 
property by paying the unpaid taxes, with interest (at a rate of 16%) and other charges, but if the right of redemption is not 
exercised within six months (which may be extended an additional year in the case of certain installment payments) it can 
be foreclosed by petition to the land court. 
 
 
 



 

24 

Upon such foreclosure, a tax title purchased or taken by the municipality becomes a “tax possession” and may be held 
and disposed of like any land held for municipal purposes.  Uncollectible real property taxes are ordinarily not written off 
until they become municipal tax titles (either by purchase at the public sale or by taking), at which time the tax is written off 
in full by reserving the amount of tax and charging surplus.  
  
The table below sets forth the balances of tax titles and possessions at the end of the following fiscal years. 
 

 

  Total Tax 
 Fiscal Titles and 
  Year  Possessions 
 
        2011  (1)          $3,698,419 
 2010 3,363,990 
 2009 1,769,451 
 2008 2,188,223 
 2007 1,834,707 
 2006 1,564,006  
_______________ 
(1) As of January 31, 2011. 
 
 
Taxation to Meet Deficits 
 
As noted elsewhere (see “Abatements and  Overlay” above) overlay deficits, i.e. tax abatements in excess of the overlay 
included in the tax levy to cover abatements, are required to be added to the next tax levy. It is generally understood that 
revenue deficits, i.e. those resulting from non-property tax revenues being less than anticipated, are also required to be added 
to the tax levy (at least to the extent not covered by surplus revenue). 
 
Amounts lawfully expended since the prior tax levy and not included therein are also required to be included in the annual tax 
levy. The circumstances under which this can arise are limited since municipal departments are generally prohibited from 
incurring liabilities in excess of appropriations except for major disasters, mandated items, contracts in aid of housing and 
renewal projects and other long-term contracts. In addition, utilities must be paid at established rates and certain established 
salaries, e.g. civil service, must legally be paid for work actually performed, whether or not covered by appropriations. 
 
Cities and towns are authorized to appropriate sums, and thus to levy taxes, to cover deficits arising from other causes, such 
as “free cash” deficits arising from a failure to collect taxes.  This is not generally understood, however, and it has not been the 
practice to levy taxes to cover free cash deficits.  Except to the extent that such deficits have been reduced or eliminated by 
subsequent collections of uncollected taxes (including sales of tax titles and tax possessions), lapsed appropriations, 
non-property tax revenues in excess of estimates, other miscellaneous items or funding loans authorized by special act, they 
remain in existence. 
 
 
Tax Limitations 
 
Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, also known as Proposition 2 1/2, imposes two separate limits on the annual tax 
levy of a city or town. 
 
The primary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2½ percent of the full and fair cash value. If a city or town exceeds the 
primary limitation, it must reduce its tax levy by at least 15 percent annually until it is in compliance, provided that the reduction 
can be reduced in any year to not less than 7½ percent by majority vote of the voters, or to less than 7½ percent by two-thirds 
vote of the voters. 
 
For cities and towns at or below the primary limit, a secondary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed the maximum levy 
limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by the State Commissioner of Revenue by more than 2½ percent, subject to 
exceptions for property added to the tax rolls or property which has had an increase, other than as part of a general 
revaluation, in its assessed valuation over the prior year’s valuation. 
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This “growth” limit on the tax levy may be exceeded in any year by a majority vote of the voters, but an increase in the 
secondary or growth limit under this procedure does not permit a tax levy in excess of the primary limitation, since the two 
limitations apply independently. In addition, if the voters vote to approve taxes in excess of the “growth” limit for the purpose of 
funding a stabilization fund, such increased amount may only be taken into account for purposes of calculating the maximum 
levy limit in each subsequent year if the board of selectmen of a town or the city council of a city votes by a two-thirds vote to 
appropriate such increased amount in such subsequent year to the stabilization fund. 
The applicable tax limits may also be reduced in any year by a majority vote of the voters. 
 
The State Commissioner of Revenue may adjust any tax limit “to counterbalance the effects of extraordinary, non-recurring 
events which occurred during the base year”. 
 
The statute further provides that the voters may exclude from the taxes subject to the tax limits and from the calculation of the 
maximum tax levy (a) the amount required to pay debt service on bonds and notes issued before November 4, 1980, if the 
exclusion is approved by a majority vote of the voters, and (b) the amount required to pay debt service on any specific 
subsequent issue for which similar approval is obtained.  Even with voter approval, the holders of the obligations for which 
unlimited taxes may be assessed do not have a statutory priority or security interest in the portion of the tax levy attributable to 
such obligations.  It should be noted that Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 20 requires that the taxes 
excluded from the levy limit to pay debt service on any such bonds and notes be calculated based on the true interest cost of 
the issue.  Accordingly, the Department of Revenue limits the amount of taxes which may be levied in each year to pay debt 
service on any such bonds and notes to the amount of such debt service, less a pro rata portion of any original issue premium 
received by the city or town that was not applied to pay costs of issuance. 
 
Voters may also exclude from the Proposition 2½ limits the amount required to pay specified capital outlay expenditures or for 
the city or town’s apportioned share for certain capital outlay expenditures by a regional governmental unit. In addition, the city 
council of a city, with the approval of the mayor if required, or the board of selectmen or the town council of a town may vote to 
exclude from the Proposition 2½ limits taxes raised in lieu of sewer or water charges to pay debt service on bonds or notes 
issued by the municipality (or by an independent authority, commission or district) for water or sewer purposes, provided that 
the municipality’s sewer or water charges are reduced accordingly. 
 
In addition, Proposition 2½ limits the annual increase in the total assessments on cities and towns by any county, district, 
authority, the Commonwealth or any other governmental entity (except regional school districts, the MWRA and certain 
districts for which special legislation provides otherwise) to the sum of (a) 2½ percent of the prior year’s assessments and (b) 
“any increases in costs, charges or fees for services customarily provided locally or for services subscribed to at local option”. 
Regional water districts, regional sewerage districts and regional veterans districts may exceed these limitations under 
statutory procedures requiring a two-thirds vote of the district’s governing body and either approval of the local appropriating 
authorities (by two-thirds vote in districts with more than two members or by majority vote in two-member districts) or approval 
of the registered voters in a local election (in the case of two-member districts). Under Proposition 2½ any State law to take 
effect on or after January 1, 1981 imposing a direct service or cost obligation on a city or town will become effective only if 
accepted or voluntarily funded by the city or town or if State funding is provided.  Similarly, State rules or regulations imposing 
additional costs on a city or town or laws granting or increasing local tax exemptions are to take effect only if adequate State 
appropriations are provided.  These statutory provisions do not apply to costs resulting from judicial decisions. 
 
The City has been in full compliance with Proposition 2 ½ since fiscal 1982 following the completion of a professional revaluation 

of all real and personal property in the City to full value.  The following table sets forth the City’s tax levy for the current and each 

of the last four fiscal years, the primary levy limits based upon 2.5% of estimated full value and the maximum levy limits as 

determined by the State Department of Revenue. 
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Tax Levies and Levy Limits (1) 
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

. .

Primary Levy Limit (2) 505,820,250$    512,195,793$    517,863,730$    511,440,738$    516,680,548$    

Prior Fiscal Year Levy Limit 233,388,825      224,936,604      215,828,884      208,515,690      201,242,504      

2.5% Levy Growth 5,834,721          5,623,415          5,395,722          5,212,892          5,031,063          

New Growth (3) 2,501,206          2,828,806          3,711,998          2,100,302          2,242,123          

Overrides -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Growth Levy Limit 241,724,752      233,388,825      224,936,604      215,828,884      208,515,690      

Debt Exclusions -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Capital Expenditure Exclusions -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Other Adjustments -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Tax Levy Limit 241,724,752      233,388,825      224,936,604      215,828,884      208,515,690      

Tax Levy 241,707,854      233,300,284      224,896,509      215,772,425      208,504,128      

Unused Levy Capacity (4) 16,898               88,541               40,095               56,459               4,463                 

Unused Primary Levy Capacity (5) 264,095,498$    278,806,968$    292,927,126$    295,611,854$    308,164,858$    

_______________

(1) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue.

(2) 2.5% of assessed valuation.

(3) Allowed increase for new valuations (or required reduction) - certified by the Department of Revenue.

(4) Tax Levy Limit less Tax Levy.

(5) Primary Levy Limit less Growth Levy Limit.
 

 
Community Preservation Act 
 

The Massachusetts Community Preservation Act (the “CPA”) permits cities and towns that accept its provisions to levy a 
surcharge on its real property tax levy and to receive state matching funds for the acquisition, creation, preservation, 
rehabilitation and restoration of open space, historic resources and affordable housing. The provisions of the CPA must 
be accepted by the voters of the city or town at an election after such provisions have first been accepted by either a vote 
of the legislative body of the city or town or an initiative petition signed by 5% of its registered voters. 
 

A city or town may approve a surcharge of up to 3% of the real property tax levy, and it may accept one or more 
exemptions to the surcharge under the CPA, including an exemption for low-income individuals and families and for low 
and moderate-income senior citizens, an exemption for $100,000 of the value of each taxable parcel of residential real 
property, and an exemption for commercial and industrial properties in cities and towns with classified tax rates.  The 
surcharge is not counted in the total taxes assessed for the purpose of determining the permitted levy amount under 
Proposition 2½ (see “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY TAX” above).  A city or town may revoke its acceptance of the 
provisions of the CPA at any time after 5 years from the date of such acceptance and may change the amount of the 
surcharge or the exemptions to the surcharge at any time, provided that any such revocation or change must be approved 
pursuant to the same process as acceptance of the CPA. 
 

Any city or town that accepts the provisions of the CPA will receive annual state matching grants to supplement amounts 
raised by its surcharge on the real property tax levy.  The state matching funds are raised from certain recording and filing 
fees of the registers of deeds.  Those amounts are deposited into a state trust fund and are distributed to cities and towns 
that have accepted the provisions of the CPA, which distributions are not subject to annual appropriation by the state 
legislature.  The amount distributed to each city and town is based on a statutory formula which requires that 80% of the 
amount in the state trust fund be used to match an equal percentage of the amount raised locally by each city and town, 
and that the remaining 20% of the amount in the fund be distributed only to those cities and towns that levy the maximum 
3% surcharge based on a formula which takes into account equalized property valuation and population, resulting in 
larger distributions to those communities with low valuations and small populations.  The total state distribution made to 
any city or town may not, however, exceed 100% of the amount raised locally by the surcharge on the real property tax 
levy. 
 

The amounts raised by the surcharge on real property taxes and received in state matching funds are required to be 
deposited in a dedicated community preservation fund.  Each city or town that accepts the provisions of the CPA is 
required to establish a community preservation committee to study the community preservation needs of the community 
and to make recommendations to the legislative body of the city or town regarding the community preservation projects 
that should be funded from the community preservation fund.  Upon the recommendations of the committee, the 
legislative body of the city or town may appropriate amounts from the fund for permitted community preservation purposes 
or may reserve amounts for spending in future fiscal years, provided that at least 10% of the total annual revenues to the 
fund must be spent or set aside for open space purposes, 10% for historic resource purposes and 10% for affordable 
housing purposes. 
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The CPA authorizes cities and towns that accept its provisions to issue bonds and notes in anticipation of the receipt of 
surcharge revenues to finance community preservation projects approved under the provisions of the CPA.  Bonds and 
notes issued under the CPA are general obligations of the city or town and are payable from amounts on deposit in the 
community preservation fund.  In the event that a city or town revokes its acceptance of the provisions of the CPA, the 
surcharge shall remain in effect until all contractual obligations incurred by the city or town prior to such revocation, 
including the payment of bonds or notes issued under the CPA, have been fully discharged. 
 

The City has accepted the Act and set the rate at 1%.  The City implemented the program in fiscal 2002 and will utilize 
revenues to pay for a variety of qualifying projects. 
 

Community Preservation Fund Major Revenues (1)  
 

Property Tax State Contribution All Other Total

2010 2,288,624$      763,914$                54,643$            3,107,181$          

2009 2,200,287        1,429,080               496,757            4,126,124            

2008 2,107,392        2,045,105               334,879            4,487,376            

2007 2,034,895        1,993,228               327,642            4,355,765            

2006 1,984,081        2,017,149               235,180            4,236,410             
____________________ 
(1) Excludes investment income, state and federal grants for CPA purposes, gifts and donations. At June 30, 2010, $3,522,113 in CPA fund balance 

was available for appropriation.  As of January 31, 2011, a total of $5,022,488, including $1,999,015 in fiscal 2011 funds were available for 
appropriation. 
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CITY FINANCES 
 
Budget and Appropriation Process 
 
In a city, within 170 days after the annual organization of the city government (which is ordinarily in early January), the mayor 
or city manager is required to submit a budget of proposed expenditures for the fiscal year beginning on the next July 1. The 
city council may make appropriations for the recommended purposes and may reduce or reject any item.  Without a 
recommendation of the mayor or manager, the council may not make any appropriation for a purpose not included in the 
proposed budget, except by a two-thirds vote in the case of a failure of the mayor or manager to recommend an appropriation 
for such a purpose within 7 days after a request from the council.  The council may not increase any item without the 
recommendation of the mayor (except as provided by legislation, subject to local acceptance, under which the school budget 
or regional school district assessment can be increased upon recommendation of the school committee or regional district 
school committee and by two-thirds vote of the council, provided that such increase does not cause the total annual budget to 
exceed the property tax limitations).  If the council fails to act on any item of the proposed budget within 45 days, that item 
takes effect. 
 
City department heads are generally required to submit their budget requests to the mayor or city manager between 
November 1 and December 1.  This does not apply to the school department, which must submit its requests in time for the 
mayor or manager to include them in his submission to the council. 
 
If the mayor or manager does not make a timely budget submission, provision is made for preparation of a budget by the 
council.  Provision is also made for supplementary appropriations upon recommendation of the mayor or manager. 
 
The annual appropriations of a town are ordinarily made at the annual meeting which takes place in February, March, April, 
May or June. Appropriations may also be voted at special meetings.  Every town must have an appropriation, advisory or 
finance committee.  The committee (or the board of selectmen if authorized by by-law) is required to submit a budget of 
proposed expenditures at the annual town meeting. 
 
Under certain circumstances and subject to certain limits and requirements, the city council of a city, upon the 
recommendation of the mayor, may transfer amounts appropriated for the use of one department (except for a municipal light 
department or a school department) to another appropriation for the same department or for the use of any other department.  
In a town, town meeting may at any time vote to transfer any amount previously appropriated to any other authorized use by 
law, and, under certain circumstances and subject to certain limits and requirements, the selectmen of a town, with the 
concurrence of the finance committee, may transfer amounts appropriated for the use of any department to any other 
appropriation for the same department or to any other department. 
 
Water and sewer department expenditures are generally included in the budgets adopted by city councils and town meetings 
but electric and gas department funds may be appropriated by the municipal light boards. Under certain legislation any city or 
town which accepts the legislation may provide that the appropriation for the operating costs of any department may be offset, 
in whole or in part, by estimated receipts from fees charged for services provided by the department. It is assumed that this 
general provision does not alter the pre-existing power of an electric or gas department to appropriate its own receipts. 
 
The school budget is limited to the total amount appropriated by the city council or town meeting, but the school committee 
retains full power to allocate the funds appropriated. State legislation known as the Education Reform Act of 1993, as 
amended, imposes certain minimum expenditure requirements on municipalities with respect to funding for education.  The 
requirements are determined on the basis of formulas affected by various measures of wealth and income, enrollments, prior 
levels of local spending and state aid, and other factors. (See footnotes to “Tax Levy Computation” above and “State Aid” 
below.) 
 
State and county assessments, abatements in excess of overlays, principal and interest not otherwise provided for, and final 
judgments are included in the tax levy whether or not included in the budget. Revenues are not required to be set forth in the 
budget but estimated non-tax revenues are taken into account by the assessors in fixing the tax levy.  (See “PROPERTY 
TAXATION” above.) 
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The following table lists the City’s budgets for fiscal 2007 through 2011.  The budgets include General Fund; Water and 
Sewer Utility Funds; and Community Preservation. 
 
 

BUDGET COMPARISON (1) 
 

   Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2008  FY 2009 Budget FY 2010 Budget FY 2011 Budget (2)

General Government 12,691,856$          13,736,052$      13,166,210$          13,878,284$          13,646,873$            

Public Safety 30,972,705 31,783,453        37,753,287            34,213,477            35,601,049              

Education 142,272,140 154,415,605      158,019,758          163,673,652          166,191,767            

Public Works 19,406,927 20,774,804        21,954,508            22,169,763            21,801,796              

Water & Sewer 34,689,836 33,498,137        33,428,452            35,557,379            35,992,220              

Health & Human Services 3,328,403 3,713,117         3,765,640              3,809,161              3,853,731                

Culture & Recreation 9,694,167 10,677,115        10,461,444            10,383,975            9,194,762                

Debt Service-General 9,631,318 7,426,549         10,011,346            14,332,596            16,010,731              

Debt Service-Water & Sewer 2,488,740 2,902,976         2,820,282              4,382,457              4,668,628                

Debt Service - CPA 944,870 1,013,041         1,255,088              1,217,988              882,788                   

Pension & Employee Ben. 19,269,220 20,900,165        21,729,372            22,840,978            24,103,327              

State & County Asses. 5,478,619 5,615,196         5,603,855              5,664,218              5,589,086                

Capital Outlay from CPA  9,960,227 8,641,901         (3) 9,257,721              (3) 9,689,169              (3) 8,830,205                (3)

Capital Outlay & Other  7,148,821 8,499,407         (4) 6,639,779              (4) 5,895,533              (4) 3,891,855                (4)

Subtotal 307,977,849$        323,597,518$    335,866,742$        347,708,630$        350,258,818$          

Transfer to Other Funds  7,167,220 9,764,685         (5) 9,053,736              (5) 3,146,879              (5) 5,495,900$              (5)

Total 315,145,069$        333,362,203$    344,920,478$        350,855,509$        355,754,718$          

 

 

 
_____________________________________ 

(1)     Includes annual appropriations for General Fund; Storm Water Management Fund, Water Fund, Sewer Funds and Community Preservation Fund. 
 
(2)     Fiscal year 2011 Budget as amended through February 15, 2011. 
 
(3)     CPA Fund Capital Outlay & Other:  

                                      
2009 2010 2011

Appropriated reserves 2,273,502$   1,379,612$   1,500,395$   

Capital outlay & improvements 6,984,219     8,309,557     7,329,810     
Total 9,257,721$   9,689,169$   8,830,205$   

 
 
 (4) General Fund Capital Outlay and Other:   
 

2009 2010 2011

Municipal wage reserve 593,129$      881,022$      -$             

Budget reserve 1,337,499     2,104            287,325        
Capital outlay & improvements 4,709,151   5,012,407    3,754,530   
Total 6,639,779$   5,895,533$   4,041,855$   

 
 (5)     Transfers To Other Funds Include:   

2009 2010 2011

Workers compensation self-insurance 1,912,119$   1,035,000$   1,000,000$   

School athletic revolving subsidy 900,827        877,781        903,678        

School food service fund subsidy 1,439,944     691,847        502,648        

"Rany Day" Stabilization Fund -               2,643,271     

OPEB Fund -               137,000        

Capital stabilization fund contribution 4,685,261     133,937        143,553        

All other 115,585        408,332        165,750        

Total transfers to other funds 9,053,736$   3,146,897$   5,495,900$   
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Revenues   
 
All of the amounts below were extracted from the audited financial statements of the City, except for the MWRA 
assessments. 

 
Property Taxes: Property taxes are the major source of revenue for the City.  The total amount levied is subject to certain 
limits prescribed by law; for a description of those limits see "PROPERTY TAXATION--Property Tax Limitation" above. In 
fiscal 2011 the property tax levy totaled $241,707,853.   
 
State Aid: The City's state aid entitlement is based upon a number of different formulas, and while said formulas might 
indicate that a particular amount of state aid is owed, the amount of state aid actually paid is limited to the amount 
appropriated by the state legislature.  The state annually estimates state aid but actual payments may vary from the 
estimate.   In fiscal years 2009, 2010 and 2011 the City’s General Fund state aid, inclusive of school building assistance 
reimbursements, totaled $25,405,732 (actual); $24,779,678 (actual); and $18,748,750 (projected).  During fiscal year 
2010 Newton received its final school building assistance reimbursement.  For preliminary fiscal year 2012 budget 
planning purposes, the City is assuming a 5% additional reduction in state aid. 
 
Motor Vehicle Excise: An excise is imposed on the registration of motor vehicles (subject to exemptions) at a rate of $25 
per $1,000 of valuation.  Valuations are determined by a statutory formula based on manufacturer's list price and year of 
manufacture.  Bills not paid when due bear interest at 12 per cent per annum.  Provision is also made for non-renewal of 
registration and operating license by the registrar of motor vehicles.  The amount of excise taxes levied by the City in 
fiscal year 2009 was $10,863,897.  The amount of excise taxes levied by the City in fiscal year 2010 was $8,980,522.    
 
Water and Sewer: Since fiscal 1989, the City’s water and sewer operations have been accounted in special revenue 
funds.  The City’s policy is to set water and sewer rates to recover fully all costs of operations, including overhead and 
debt service. 
 
The latest adjustment in water and sewer rates became effective for water consumed on July 1, 2010.  Water rates are 
currently $5.14 per hundred cubic feet (hcf) for the first 20 hcf, $6.17 per hcf for the next 50 hcf; and $7.40 per hcf for all 
additional water consumption. Sewer rates are based on water consumption. Sewer rates are currently $7.25 for the first 
20 hcf of water consumption; $8.74 per hcf for the next 50 hcf; and $10.49 for all water consumed in excess of 70 hcf.  
 

Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA) charges for water supply and collection and treatment of sewage 
amount to $26.8 million for the current fiscal year – 61.8% of the combined total operating budget of the City’s water and 
sewer utilities.  

 

The fiscal 2010 Sewer utility revenues and inter-fund transfers were $24 million while expenditures and transfers to other 
funds were $23.9 million.   
 
The fiscal 2010 Water utility revenues were $14.7 million and expenditures and transfers to other funds were $16.4 
million.  Fund balances were used to fund the $1.7 million difference.  
 
Room Occupancy Tax: In 1985 the State legislature made available a room occupancy excise tax as an additional 
source of revenue for municipalities (G.L. Chapter 64G, s.3A), effective July 1, 1986.  Under this tax, local governments 
may tax the provision of hotel, motel and lodging house rooms at a rate not to exceed four percent (4%) of the cost of 
renting such rooms.  The tax is paid by the operator of the hotel, motel or lodging house to the State Commissioner of 
Revenue, who in turn pays the tax back to the municipality in which the rooms are located in quarterly distributions.  
Effective October 1, 2009, the City levies the full 6% room occupancy tax as permitted under the law.  In fiscal 2009, the 
City’s room occupancy tax generated $1.1 million in revenue to the General fund. In fiscal 2010, the City’s room 
occupancy tax generated $1.2 million in revenue to the General Fund and for fiscal year 2011 the tax is expected to 
generate $1.5 million. 
 
Local Meals Excise Tax:  Effective January 1, 2010, the City enacted a local meals excise tax on sales of restaurant 
meals.  The tax is a three-fourths percent tax on the gross receipts of a vendor from the sale of restaurant meals.  The 
vendor pays the tax to the State Commissioner of Revenue, which in turn, pays the tax to the municipality in which the 
meal was sold.  During the final five months of fiscal year 2010 the local meals tax generated $382,934 in revenue to the 
City.  For fiscal year 2011 the tax is expected to generate $1.2 million. 
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Capital Planning and Budget Forecasts 
 

As part of its budget planning process, the City prepares a capital budget and six-year capital plan.  Copies of these 
documents are available upon request from the City's Chief Budget Officer. 
 
 
Investment of City Funds 
 

Investments of funds of cities and towns, except for trust funds, are generally restricted by Massachusetts General Laws 
Chapter 44, §55.  That statute permits investments of available revenue funds and bond and note proceeds in term deposits 
and certificates of deposits of banks and trust companies, in obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the federal 
government or an agency thereof with a maturity of not more than one year, in repurchase agreements with a maturity of not 
more than 90 days secured by federal or federal agency securities, in participation units in the Massachusetts Municipal 
Depository Trust (“MMDT”), or in shares in SEC-registered money market funds with the highest possible rating from at least 
one nationally recognized rating organization. 
 
MMDT is an investment pool created by the Commonwealth.  The State Treasurer is the sole trustee, and the funds are 
managed under contract by an investment firm under the supervision of the State Treasurer’s office.  According to the State 
Treasurer the Trust’s investment policy is designed to maintain an average weighted maturity of 90 days or less and is limited 
to high-quality, readily marketable fixed income instruments, including U.S. Government obligations and highly-rated corporate 
securities with maturities of one year or less. 
 
Trust funds, unless otherwise provided by the donor, may be invested in accordance with §54 of Chapter 44, which permits a 
broader range of investments than §55, including any bonds or notes that are legal investments for savings banks in the 
Commonwealth.  The restrictions imposed by §§54 and 55 do not apply to city and town retirement systems. 
 
Breakdown of such investments may be obtained from the City Treasurer. 
 
Pension funds are under the jurisdiction of the Newton Contributory Retirement System.  Investments and the retirement 
system are discussed in appendix A. 
 
 
Annual Audits 
 

The City's accounts were independently audited for each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 1982 through 1997 by Arthur 
Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1998 through June 30, 2002 by 
Powers & Sullivan, independent public accountants and for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 by KPMG LLP.  
Subsequent audits have been performed annually by Sullivan, Rogers, & Company, LLC and incorporated into the City 
CAFR’s.  See Appendix A for fiscal 2010 audited financials.  Copies of previous fiscal year’s audits are available upon 
request from the City.  
 
The attached report speaks only as of its date, and only to the matters expressly set forth therein.  The auditors have not 
been engaged to review this Official Statement or to perform audit procedures regarding post-audit period, nor have the 
auditors been requested to give their consent to the inclusion of their report in Appendix A.  Except as stated in their 
report, the auditors have not been engaged to verify the financial information set out in Appendix A and are not passing 
upon and do not assume responsibility for the sufficiency, accuracy or completeness of the financial information presented 
in that appendix. 
 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 

See Appendix A. 
 
 
Financial Statements 
 

Set forth on the following pages are Governmental Fund Balance Sheets for fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008 and Statements 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for fiscal years 2010 through 2007, and a Comparative 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in General Fund Balance for fiscal years 2005 and 2006. All the 
financial statements are extracted from audited financial statements.   
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Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
 
The City has prepared a CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010.  This report is available on the City’s website, at 
www.Newtonma.gov.  

 
CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2010 (1)

Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 43,890,957$   -$                   -$                 23,453,528$    67,344,485$    

Interest and Dividends -                 -                     -                   3,884               3,884               

Receivables, net of Allowance for Uncollectibles

Real Estate Personal Property Taxes 4,402,009       -                     -                   -                   4,402,009        

Real Estate Tax Deferrals 2,896,319       -                     -                   -                   2,896,319        

Tax and Utility Liens 4,627,580       -                     -                   4,887               4,632,467        

Motor Vehicle Excise 647,248          -                     -                   -                   647,248           

Community Preservation Surcharges -                 45,493               -                   -                   45,493             

Charges for Services 74,010            -                     -                   772,038           846,048           

Departmental and Other 7,513,602       -                     -                   27,987             7,541,589        

Intergovernmental 995,719          616,589             2,328,858        1,882,717        5,823,883        

Special Assessments 566,653          -                     -                   -                   566,653           

Due from Other Funds 314,275          -                     -                   -                   314,275           

Due from Other Fiduciary Funds 33,861            -                     -                   -                   33,861             

Other Assets 23,895            -                     -                   30,000             53,895             

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash Equivalents -                 10,367,962        24,371,679      16,440,496      51,180,137      

Investments -                 -                     -                   611,955           611,955           

TOTAL ASSETS 65,986,128$   11,030,044$      26,700,537$    43,227,492$    146,944,201$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Warrants Payable 2,038,501$     573$                  3,071,752$      912,495$         6,023,321$      

Accrued Liabilities 4,314,955       455,856             5,216,066        410,334           10,397,211      

Accrued Payroll 13,026,715     2,459                 -                   1,318,204        14,347,378      

Revenue Refunds Payable 6,744,487       -                     -                   -                   6,744,487        

Other Liabilities -                 2,421                 -                   483,525           485,946           

Abandoned Property 581,517          -                     -                   -                   581,517           

Liabilities and Depositors 302,062          -                     -                   -                   302,062           

Deferred Revenues 19,665,346     653,002             2,328,858        464,287           23,111,493      

Due to Other Funds -                 -                     -                   99,382             99,382             

TOTAL LIABILITIES 46,673,583$   1,114,311$        10,616,676$    3,688,227$      62,092,797$    

FUND BALANCES

Reserved For:

Encumbrances and Continuing Appropriations 4,996,623$     6,836,539$        -$                 -$                 11,833,162$    

Debt Service 749,640          -                     -                   -                   749,640           

Capital Stabilization -                 -                     -                   15,783,210      15,783,210      

Perpetual Permanent Funds -                 -                     -                   441,993           441,993           

Other Specific Purposes -                 -                     -                   2,864,947        2,864,947        

Unreserved:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 2,675,133       -                     -                   -                   2,675,133        

Undesignated, Reported In: -                   

General Fund 10,891,149     -                     -                   -                   10,891,149      

Special Revenue Funds -                 3,079,194          -                   7,625,739        10,704,933      

Capital Project Funds -                 -                     16,083,861      12,083,352      28,167,213      

Permanent Funds -                 -                     -                   740,024           740,024           

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 19,312,545     9,915,733          16,083,861      39,539,265      84,851,404      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 65,986,128$  11,030,044$     26,700,537$   43,227,492$    146,944,201$ 

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statementsof the City. 
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2009 (1)

Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 42,476,214$   -$                   -$                 26,886,606$    69,362,820$    

Interest and Dividends -                 -                     -                   4,233               4,233               

Receivables, net of Allowance for Uncollectibles

Real Estate Personal Property Taxes 7,151,454       -                     -                   -                   7,151,454        

Real Estate Tax Deferrals 2,622,127       -                     -                   -                   2,622,127        

Tax and Utility Liens 2,784,962       -                     -                   8,139               2,793,101        

Motor Vehicle Excise 916,303          -                     -                   -                   916,303           

Community Preservation Surcharges -                 55,043               -                   -                   55,043             

Charges for Services 64,204            -                     -                   714,153           778,357           

Departmental and Other 7,190,191       -                     -                   23,860             7,214,051        

Intergovernmental 4,764,364       763,914             2,328,858        2,285,935        10,143,071      

Special Assessments 670,189          -                     -                   -                   670,189           

Notes -                 300,000             -                   -                   300,000           

Loans -                 -                     -                   360,000           360,000           

Due from Other Funds 718,493          -                     -                   -                   718,493           

Due from Other Fiduciary Funds 35,097            -                     -                   -                   35,097             

Other Assets 27,708            -                     -                   -                   27,708             

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash Equivalents -                 9,772,966          79,887,592      10,790,731      100,451,289    

Investments -                 -                     -                   580,330           580,330           

TOTAL ASSETS 69,421,306$  10,891,923$     82,216,450$   41,653,987$    204,183,666$ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Warrants Payable 2,506,368$     -$                       7,433,059$      1,768,175$      11,707,602$    

Accrued Liabilities 3,221,425       27,133               4,071,459        438,832           7,758,849        

Accrued Payroll 12,098,295     2,120                 -                   1,089,199        13,189,614      

Revenue Refunds Payable 6,338,401       -                     -                   338                  6,338,739        

Other Liabilities 8,059              107                    -                   384,967           393,133           

Abandoned Property 581,517          -                     -                   -                   581,517           

Liabilities and Depositors 373,062          -                     -                   -                   373,062           

Deferred Revenues 23,974,901     808,536             2,328,858        659,564           27,771,859      

Due to Other Funds -                 -                     -                   302,025           302,025           

Court Judgements 150,000          -                     -                   -                   150,000           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 49,252,028$   837,896$           13,833,376$    4,643,100$      68,566,400$    

FUND BALANCES

Reserved For:

Encumbrances and Continuing Appropriations 3,713,336$     5,200,429$        -$                 -$                 8,913,765$      

Debt Service 881,707          -                     -                   -                   881,707           

Perpetual Permanent Funds -                 -                     -                   433,156           433,156           

Other Specific Purposes -                 -                     -                   2,520,384        2,520,384        

Unreserved:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 5,051,017       -                     -                   -                   5,051,017        

Undesignated, Reported In: -                   

General Fund 10,523,218     -                     -                   -                   10,523,218      

Special Revenue Funds -                 4,853,598          -                   8,400,006        13,253,604      

Capital Project Funds -                 -                     68,383,074      24,920,663      93,303,737      

Permanent Funds -                 -                     -                   736,678           736,678           

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 20,169,278     10,054,027        68,383,074      37,010,887      135,617,266    

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 69,421,306$   10,891,923$      82,216,450$    41,653,987$    204,183,666$  

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statementsof the City. 
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2008 (1)

Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents 44,559,669$   -$                   -$                 25,416,531$    69,976,200$    

Interest and Dividends -                 -                     -                   5,866               

Receivables, net of Allowance for Uncollectibles

Real Estate Personal Property Taxes 4,672,544       -                     -                   -                   4,672,544        

Real Estate Tax Deferrals 2,652,708       -                     -                   -                   2,652,708        

Tax and Utility Liens 3,265,056       -                     -                   9,668               3,274,724        

Motor Vehicle Excise 747,180          -                     -                   -                   747,180           

Community Preservation Surcharges -                 77,138               -                   -                   77,138             

Charges for Services 57,040            -                     -                   741,028           798,068           

Departmental and Other 7,945,549       -                     -                   31,578             7,977,127        

Intergovernmental 8,406,983       1,373,703          18,612,205      2,046,707        30,439,598      

Special Assessments 637,754          -                     -                   -                   637,754           

Loans -                 -                     -                   360,000           360,000           

Due from Other Funds 1,090,903       -                     -                   -                   1,090,903        

Other Assets 23,807            -                     -                   2,890               26,697             

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash Equivalents 506,382          8,979,235          22,118,069      5,104,639        36,708,325      

Investments -                 -                   766,401           766,401           

TOTAL ASSETS 74,565,575$   10,430,076$      40,730,274$    34,485,308$    160,211,233$  

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Warrants Payable 2,910,558$     67,711$             2,855,592$      1,126,510$      6,960,371$      

Accrued Liabilities 3,421,495       9,409                 901,247           86,576             4,418,727        

Accrued Payroll 14,690,641     290                    -                   895,807           15,586,738      

Revenue Refunds Payable 6,746,157       -                     -                   1,125               6,747,282        

Other Liabilities 133,891          1,520                 -                   -                   135,411           

Abandoned Property 934,837          -                     -                   -                   934,837           

Liabilities and Depositors 506,382          -                     -                   64,736             571,118           

Deferred Revenues 25,788,398     1,432,066          18,612,205      739,378           46,572,047      

Due to Other Funds -                 -                     -                   1,090,903        1,090,903        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 55,132,359$   1,510,996$        22,369,044$    4,005,035$      83,017,434$    

FUND BALANCES

Reserved For:

Encumbrances and Continuing Appropriations 3,091,164$     5,731,667$        -$                 -$                 8,822,831$      

Perpetual Permanent Funds -                 -                     -                   414,856           414,856           

Other Specific Purposes -                 -                     -                   1,758,255        1,758,255        

Unreserved:

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures 2,900,000       -                     -                   -                   2,900,000        

Undesignated, Reported In: -                   

General Fund 13,442,052     -                     -                   -                   13,442,052      

Special Revenue Funds -                 3,187,413          -                   7,290,616        10,478,029      

Capital Project Funds -                 -                     18,361,230      20,198,932      38,560,162      

Permanent Funds -                 -                     -                   817,614           817,614           

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 19,433,216     8,919,080          18,361,230      30,480,273      77,193,799      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 74,565,575$   10,430,076$      40,730,274$    34,485,308$    160,211,233$  

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the City. 
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 (1)

Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

REVENUES:

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes 233,726,177$    -$                -$                      -$                  233,726,177$   

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes 10,222,534        -                  -                        -                    10,222,534       

Hotel Room Occupancy Taxes 1,168,095          -                  -                        -                    1,168,095         

Meals Taxes 382,934             -                  -                        -                    382,934            

Community Preservation Surcharges -                    2,296,523       -                        -                    2,296,523         

Penalties and Interest on Taxes  1,002,806          -                  -                        23,701              1,026,507         

Licenses, Permits and Fees 4,133,582          -                  -                        430,926            4,564,508         

Intergovernmental 53,332,404        763,914          -                        21,347,151       75,443,469       

Charges for Services 1,647,343          -                  -                        13,174,351       14,821,694       

Fines and Forfeitures 2,084,951          -                  -                        16,567              2,101,518         

Investment Income 887,569             46,744            -                        82,505              1,016,818         

Contributions and Donations -                    -                  -                        1,185,340         1,185,340         

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 3,095,059          -                  -                        -                    3,095,059         

Miscellaneous 235,495             -                  -                        432,045            667,540            

Special Assessments 74,274               -                  -                        84,207              158,481            

    TOTAL REVENUES 311,993,223$    $3,107,181 $0 36,776,793$     351,877,197$   

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Government:

Legislative & Executive 1,878,689$        -$                -$                      -$                  1,878,689$       

Elections 742,612 -                  -                        32,099              774,711            

Financial Administration 3,016,728 -                  -                        -                    3,016,728         

Administrative Support 4,014,936 -                  -                        1,304                4,016,240         

Planning & Development 977,929 1,867,013       -                        4,452,853         7,297,795         

Public Building Maintenance & Operations 2,816,431 92,722            -                        2,114,421         5,023,574         

Public Safety:  -                    

Police 17,107,061 -                  -                        2,994,138         20,101,199       

Fire 15,953,711 -                  -                        827,131            16,780,842       

Inspectional Services 1,035,615 -                  -                        1,548                1,037,163         

Other Public Safety 80,059 -                  -                        -                    80,059              

Education 163,733,338 -                  63,949,213 26,747,843       254,430,394     

Public Works:

Streets and Sidew alks 6,693,623 2,400              -                        5,364,153         12,060,176       

Control of Snow  & Ice 2,410,271 -                  -                        -                    2,410,271         

Collections & Disposal of Solid Waste 6,413,988 -                  -                        121,587            6,535,575         

Vehicle Maintenance 2,105,293 -                  -                        4,464                2,109,757         

Engineering 1,399,076 -                  -                        20,183              1,419,259         

Adminstrative & Support 1,822,402 -                  -                        -                    1,822,402         

Health and Human Services:

Health & Human Services 2,984,129 -                  -                        293,119            3,277,248         

Senior Services 582,315 -                  -                        226,695            809,010            

 Veteran Services 219,527 -                  -                        -                    219,527            

Culture and Recreation:

Libraries 5,175,444 -                  -                        455,473            5,630,917         

Parks & Recreation 4,784,631 15,640            -                        1,906,633         6,706,904         

New ton History Museum 238,168 48,191            -                        13,234              299,593            

Retirement Benefits 49,940,948 -                  -                        -                    49,940,948       

Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,350,000 -                  -                        -                    1,350,000         

Property and Liability Insurance 326,169 -                  -                        -                    326,169            

Claims and Judgements 100,453 -                  -                        -                    100,453            

State assessments & Charges 5,619,317 -                  -                        -                    5,619,317         

Debt Service -                    

Principal 7,493,500 1,055,000 -                        -                    8,548,500         

Interest 6,916,268 162,988 -                        -                    7,079,256         

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 317,932,631$    3,243,954$     63,949,213$         45,576,878$     430,702,676$   

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

  OVER EXPENDITURES (5,939,408) (136,773) (63,949,213) (8,800,085) (78,825,479)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 6,045,656          -                  -                        2,814,494         8,860,150         

Issuance of  General Obligation Bonds -                    -                  11,650,000           13,898,000       25,548,000       

Premium from Issuance of Bonds and Notes 815,357             -                  -                        -                    815,357            

Sale of Capital Assets 18,541               -                  -                        23,950              42,491              

Transfer Out (1,796,879)        (1,521)             -                        (5,407,981)        (7,206,381)        

    TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 5,082,675          (1,521)             11,650,000           11,328,463       28,059,617       

Net Change in Fund Balances (856,733)           (138,294)         (52,299,213)          2,528,378         (50,765,862)      

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 20,169,278        10,054,027     68,383,074           37,010,887       135,617,266     

Fund Balances at End of Year 19,312,545$      9,915,733$     16,083,861$         39,539,265$     84,851,404$     
                                  

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the City.  
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 (1)

Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

REVENUES:

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes 224,437,442$      -$                  -$                        -$                    224,437,442$      

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes 10,098,579          -                    -                          -                      10,098,579          

Hotel Room Occupancy Taxes 1,108,199            -                    -                          -                      1,108,199            

Community Preservation Surcharges -                      2,207,442         -                          -                      2,207,442            

Penalties and Interest on Taxes  1,204,641            -                    -                          18,659                1,223,300            

Licenses, Permits and Fees 4,190,692            -                    -                          384,804               4,575,496            

Intergovernmental 54,294,887          1,429,080         44,248,308             22,907,145          122,879,420        

Charges for Services 1,566,819            -                    -                          12,642,859          14,209,678          

Fines and Forfeitures 1,974,463            -                    -                          47,712                2,022,175            

Investment Income 2,427,017            183,081            -                          32,091                2,642,189            

Contributions and Donations -                      -                    -                          1,320,527            1,320,527            

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 489,108               -                    -                          -                      489,108               

Miscellaneous 728,319               306,521            -                          651,667               1,686,507            

Special Assessments 102,883               -                    -                          115,555               218,438               

    TOTAL REVENUES 302,623,049$      $4,126,124 $44,248,308 38,121,019$        389,118,500$      

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Government:

Legislative & Executive 1,746,072$          42,553$            -$                        -$                    1,788,625$          

Elections 624,687 -                    -                          21,526                646,213               

Financial Administration 3,021,319 -                    -                          -                      3,021,319            

Administrative Support 3,562,966 -                    -                          -                      3,562,966            

Planning & Development 963,813 1,112,136         -                          4,492,694            6,568,643            

Public Building Maintenance & Operations 3,314,055 501,545            -                          2,352,684            6,168,284            

Public Safety:  -                      

Police 16,225,580 -                    -                          2,872,822            19,098,402          

Fire 15,949,363 -                    -                          1,321,423            17,270,786          

Inspectional Services 983,280 -                    -                          338                     983,618               

Other Public Safety 85,332 -                    -                          -                      85,332                

Education 156,010,190 -                    69,238,754 27,668,462          252,917,406        

Public Works:

Streets and Sidewalks 5,662,840 3,600                -                          3,568,865            9,235,305            

Control of Snow & Ice 4,025,604 -                    -                          -                      4,025,604            

Collections & Disposal of Solid Waste 6,512,130 -                    -                          39,618                6,551,748            

Vehicle Maintenance 2,142,909 -                    -                          5,011                  2,147,920            

Engineering 1,274,086 -                    -                          44,386                1,318,472            

Adminstrative & Support 1,665,000 -                    -                          -                      1,665,000            

Health and Human Services:

Health & Human Services 2,890,822 -                    -                          213,067               3,103,889            

Senior Services 553,202 -                    -                          201,241               754,443               

 Veteran Services 221,981 -                    -                          -                      221,981               

Culture and Recreation:

Libraries 5,120,540 -                    -                          468,795               5,589,335            

Parks & Recreation 4,731,260 (9,843)               -                          1,802,994            6,524,411            

Newton History Museum 229,888 62,654              -                          32,318                324,860               

Retirement Benefits 47,480,693 -                    -                          -                      47,480,693          

Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,582,119 -                    -                          -                      1,582,119            

Property and Liability Insurance 309,369 -                    -                          -                      309,369               

Claims and Judgements 250,509 -                    -                          -                      250,509               

State assessments & Charges 5,453,169 -                    -                          -                      5,453,169            

Debt Service -                      

Principal 6,592,100 1,060,000 -                          -                      7,652,100            

Interest 3,499,486 195,088 -                          -                      3,694,574            

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 302,684,364$      2,967,733$       69,238,754$           45,106,244$        419,997,095$      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

  OVER EXPENDITURES (61,315) 1,158,391 (24,990,446) (6,985,225) (30,878,595)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 6,381,739            -                    26,750                    9,130,888            15,539,377          

Issuance of General Obligation Bonds -                      -                    75,000,000             11,010,000          86,010,000          

Premium from Issuance of Bonds and Notes 1,557,255            -                    -                          -                      1,557,255            

Transfer Out (7,141,617)           (23,444)             (14,460)                   (6,625,049)          (13,804,570)        

    TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 797,377               (23,444)             75,012,290             13,515,839          89,302,062          

Net Change in Fund Balances 736,062               1,134,947         50,021,844             6,530,614            58,423,467          

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 19,433,216          8,919,080         18,361,230             30,480,273          77,193,799          

Fund Balances at End of Year 20,169,278$        10,054,027$     68,383,074$           37,010,887$        135,617,266$      
                                  

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the City.
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008 (1)

Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

REVENUES:

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes 211,435,422$      -$                  -$                        -$                    211,435,422$      

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes 11,131,712          -                    -                          -                      11,131,712          

Hotel Room Occupancy Taxes 1,103,549            -                    -                          -                      1,103,549            

Community Preservation Surcharges -                      2,107,392         -                          -                      2,107,392            

Penalties and Interest on Taxes  1,055,344            -                    -                          -                      1,055,344            

Licenses, Permits and Fees 4,897,248            -                    -                          30,931                4,928,179            

Intergovernmental 54,187,602          2,045,105         447,753                  22,080,032          78,760,492          

Charges for Services 1,684,061            -                    -                          12,404,681          14,088,742          

Fines and Forfeitures 1,878,183            -                    -                          21,478                1,899,661            

Investment Income 3,976,344            330,080            -                          128,999               4,435,423            

Contributions and Donations -                      4,799                -                          1,390,224            1,395,023            

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 358,957               -                    -                          -                      358,957               

Miscellaneous 989,425               -                    -                          824,565               1,813,990            

Special Assessments 92,265                 -                    -                          65,016                157,281               

    TOTAL REVENUES 292,790,112$      $4,487,376 $447,753 36,945,926$        334,671,167$      

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Government:

Legislative & Executive 1,811,022$          69,657$            -$                        -$                    1,880,679$          

Elections 715,260 -                    -                          37,952                753,212               

Financial Administration 3,016,513 -                    -                          -                      3,016,513            

Administrative Support 3,806,988 -                    -                          5                         3,806,993            

Planning & Development 967,735 723,110            -                          7,334,014            9,024,859            

Public Building Maintenance & Operations 2,893,478 40,735              -                          774,039               3,708,252            

Public Safety:  -                      

Police 16,758,593 -                    -                          2,720,093            19,478,686          

Fire 15,577,228 -                    -                          730,602               16,307,830          

Inspectional Services 1,088,826 -                    -                          2,207                  1,091,033            

Other Public Safety 82,544 -                    -                          -                      82,544                

Education 152,616,308 -                    26,221,553 23,739,615          202,577,476        

Public Works:

Streets and Sidewalks 5,809,703 18,000              -                          4,578,739            10,406,442          

Control of Snow & Ice 3,422,120 -                    -                          -                      3,422,120            

Collections & Disposal of Solid Waste 6,007,903 -                    -                          57,723                6,065,626            

Vehicle Maintenance 2,180,139 -                    -                          7,519                  2,187,658            

Engineering 1,116,480 -                    -                          35,055                1,151,535            

Adminstrative & Support 1,610,850 -                    -                          -                      1,610,850            

Health and Human Services:

Health & Human Services 2,683,110 -                    -                          265,646               2,948,756            

Senior Services 604,960 16,550              -                          220,435               841,945               

 Veteran Services 199,148 -                    -                          -                      199,148               

Culture and Recreation:

Libraries 5,376,346 -                    -                          512,757               5,889,103            

Parks & Recreation 5,215,406 103,612            -                          1,374,121            6,693,139            

Newton History Museum 244,091 6,500                -                          4,990                  255,581               

Retirement Benefits 44,134,609 -                    -                          -                      44,134,609          

Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,397,143 -                    -                          -                      1,397,143            

Property and Liability Insurance 293,834 -                    -                          -                      293,834               

Claims and Judgements 97,254 -                    -                          -                      97,254                

Other 24,080 -                    -                          -                      24,080                

State assessments & Charges 5,512,027 -                    -                          -                      5,512,027            

Debt Service -                      

Principal 5,346,900 800,000 -                          -                      6,146,900            

Interest 2,165,261 213,041 -                          -                      2,378,302            

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 292,775,859$      1,991,205$       26,221,553$           42,395,512$        363,384,129$      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

  OVER EXPENDITURES 14,253 2,496,171 (25,773,800) (5,449,586) (28,712,962)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 3,614,126            -                    300,000                  8,670,161            12,584,287          

Issuance of General Obligation Bonds -                      2,300,000         42,500,000             3,992,000            48,792,000          

Premium from Issuance of Bonds and Notes 235,056               27,385              -                          -                      262,441               

Sale of Capital Assets 27,917                 -                    -                          21,992                49,909                

Transfer Out (8,067,543)           (2,646)               -                          (2,961,548)          (11,031,737)        

    TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (4,190,444)           2,324,739         42,800,000             9,722,605            50,656,900          

Net Change in Fund Balances (4,176,191)           4,820,910         17,026,200             4,273,019            21,943,938          

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 23,609,407          4,098,170         1,335,030               26,207,254          55,249,861          

Fund Balances at End of Year 19,433,216$        8,919,080$       18,361,230$           30,480,273$        77,193,799$        
                                  

(1) Extracted from the audited financial statements of the City.  
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Nonmajor Total

Community High School Governmental Governmental

General Preservation Improvements Funds Funds

REVENUES:

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes 207,245,638$      -$                  -$                        -$                    207,245,638$      

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes 10,197,596          -                    -                          -                      10,197,596          

Hotel Room Occupancy Taxes 1,138,921            -                    -                          -                      1,138,921            

Community Preservation Surcharges -                      2,027,379         -                          -                      2,027,379            

Penalties and Interest on Taxes  1,042,248            7,464                -                          -                      1,049,712            

Licenses, Permits and Fees 5,371,145            -                    -                          393,437               5,764,582            

Intergovernmental 46,362,237          1,993,228         8,260,000               18,948,546          75,564,011          

Charges for Services 1,507,826            -                    -                          12,602,195          14,110,021          

Fines and Forfeitures 1,825,696            -                    -                          24,807                1,850,503            

Investment Income 4,440,056            317,642            -                          203,161               4,960,859            

Contributions and Donations -                      10,000              -                          786,807               796,807               

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 411,789               52                     -                          -                      411,841               

Miscellaneous 363,509               -                    -                          584,476               947,985               

Special Assessments 191,433               -                    -                          23,783                215,216               

    TOTAL REVENUES 280,098,094$      $4,355,765 $8,260,000 33,567,212$        326,281,071$      

EXPENDITURES:

Current:

General Government:

Legislative & Executive 1,631,737$          -$                  -$                        -$                    1,631,737$          

Elections 655,570 -                    -                          19,719                675,289               

Financial Administration 2,848,174 -                    -                          -                      2,848,174            

Administrative Support 3,327,555 -                    -                          5,054                  3,332,609            

Planning & Development 990,691 1,710,156         -                          4,295,103            6,995,950            

Public Building Maintenance & Operations 2,628,694 102,259            -                          241,729               2,972,682            

Public Safety:  -                      

Police 16,286,081 -                    -                          2,707,669            18,993,750          

Fire 15,272,656 -                    -                          1,235,523            16,508,179          

Inspectional Services 950,809 -                    -                          5,409                  956,218               

Other Public Safety 81,919 -                    -                          -                      81,919                

Education 141,727,330 49,050              3,381,659 21,205,256          166,363,295        

Public Works:

Streets and Sidewalks 6,359,317 670                   -                          4,443,984            10,803,971          

Control of Snow & Ice 1,270,134 -                    -                          -                      1,270,134            

Collections & Disposal of Solid Waste 6,144,064 -                    -                          40,746                6,184,810            

Vehicle Maintenance 2,156,162 -                    -                          -                      2,156,162            

Engineering 1,048,319 -                    -                          13,367                1,061,686            

Adminstrative & Support 1,525,029 -                    -                          -                      1,525,029            

Health and Human Services:

Health & Human Services 2,536,046 -                    -                          225,681               2,761,727            

Senior Services 503,037 253,564            -                          332,516               1,089,117            

 Veteran Services 203,367 -                    -                          -                      203,367               

Culture and Recreation:

Libraries 5,058,462 -                    -                          525,649               5,584,111            

Parks & Recreation 4,483,368 2,543,633         -                          1,477,935            8,504,936            

Newton History Museum 229,208 120,430            -                          3,215                  352,853               

Retirement Benefits 42,079,659 -                    -                          -                      42,079,659          

Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,384,342 -                    -                          -                      1,384,342            

Property and Liability Insurance 282,234 -                    -                          -                      282,234               

Health Insurance Subsidy 173,495 -                    -                          -                      173,495               

Claims and Judgements 143,335 -                    -                          -                      143,335               

State Assessments & charges 5,375,365 -                    -                          -                      5,375,365            

Debt Service -                          -                      -                      

Principal 7,672,050 800,000 -                          -                      8,472,050            

Interest 1,984,265 145,050 -                          -                      2,129,315            

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 277,012,474$      5,724,812$       3,381,659$             36,778,555$        322,897,500$      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

  OVER EXPENDITURES 3,085,620 (1,369,047) 4,878,341 (3,211,343) 3,383,571

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers In 3,063,500            -                    -                          6,730,250            9,793,750            

Issuance of General Obligation Bonds -                      -                    6,996,000               3,604,000            10,600,000          

Premium from Issuance of Bonds and Notes 90,087                 2,645                -                          -                      92,732                

Sale of Capital Assets 8,205                   -                    -                          32,547                40,752                

Transfer Out (5,782,878)           (30,000)             -                          (2,479,632)          (8,292,510)          

    TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (2,621,086)           (27,355)             6,996,000               7,887,165            12,234,724          

Net Change in Fund Balances Before Extraordinary Item 464,535               (1,396,402)        11,874,341             4,675,822            15,618,296          

Extraordinary Item

Proceeds of Structured Settlement Contract 2,850,000            -                    -                          -                      2,850,000            

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,314,535            (1,396,402)        11,874,341             4,675,822            18,468,296          

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 20,294,872          5,494,572         (10,539,311)            21,531,432          36,781,565          

Fund Balances at End of Year 23,609,407$        4,098,170$       1,335,030$             26,207,254$        55,249,861$        
                                  

(1) Extracted from audited financial statements of the City.

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007 (1)
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2005 2006

REVENUES:

  Property Taxes, Net of Overlay 192,554,388$    200,165,525$        

  Motor Vehicle Excise 11,467,867        11,298,282            

   Other Taxes 979,194             1,060,052              

   Charges for services 1,379,194          1,639,979              

  Intergovernmental Receipts 39,223,195        41,193,950            

  Interest and Dividends 1,529,059          3,055,801              

  Departmental and Other 8,646,922          10,504,386            

    TOTAL REVENUES 255,779,819$    268,917,975$        

EXPENDITURES:

  Current:

    Education 130,585,252$    134,156,149$        

    Public Safety 31,259,345        30,661,527            

    Health and Social Services 3,140,427          3,133,401              

    Public Works 20,726,832        18,845,176            

    Culture and Recreation 10,048,652        9,823,174              

    Debt Service 6,975,666          6,845,870              

    Employee & Pension Benefits 38,416,941        41,201,741            

    General Government 12,529,775        12,142,202            

    State and County Assessments 5,045,783          5,209,013              

    Other(2) -                     -                         

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 258,728,673      262,018,253          

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES AND TRANSFERS

  OVER EXPENDITURES (2,948,854) 6,899,722

Other Financing Sources (Uses) (515,127)            (427,317)                

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES

  OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (3,463,981) 6,472,405

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 17,286,448 13,822,467

ENDING FUND BALANCE 13,822,467$     20,294,872$          

                                  

(1)    From the City's Audited Financial Statements.

(2)    Includes Capital Outlay.

 

June 30

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (1)

GENERAL FUND
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Free Cash (Uniform System of Accounting) 
 
Under the Massachusetts Uniform System of Accounting an amount known as "free cash" is certified as of the beginning 
of each fiscal year by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue, Bureau of Accounts.  This unrestricted fund balance 
(known as "free cash") is generated when actual revenue collections exceed budget estimates and/or unexpended 
appropriation balances lapse at year end to the general treasury. 
 
A redetermination of free cash by the city comptroller for the purpose of determining available funds for appropriations is 
allowed (but not required) on the last day of the month preceding the month in which the tax rate is determined but no 
later than July 31.  This is done by adding collections of prior years' taxes and receipts from tax title redemptions and sale 
of tax possessions to the amount certified and deducting appropriations made from free cash between the date of 
certification and July 31. 
 
    Free Cash 
 Year   (July 1) 
 
 2010 $8,018,399 (1) 
 2009 6,697,571  
 2008 10,923,805 
 2007 8,483,609 
 2006 7,690,495 
__________  
(1) As of February 15, 2011, a total of $4,733,922 in July 1, 2010 certified free cash has been appropriated and 

$1,500,000 has been designated for appropriation to support the fiscal year 2012 General Fund budget. Two 
appropriations account for 99.5% of appropriated free cash.  They are $2,643,271 for funding of a “Rainy Day” 
Stabilization Fund and $2,065,000 for supplemental snow and ice funding for the current fiscal year.  

 
 
Capital Stabilization Fund 
 
The City established in 1993 a special capital projects fund.  In 2001 this account was utilized to fund improvements to the 
City’s two high schools.  The table below shows the trend in balances in the fund. 
 
 Fiscal Year Balance 
  
 2010    $15,783,210 (1)  
 2009    16,688,591  
 2008 16,356,651 
 2007 11,018,231 
 2006  9,822,842 
  
___________  
(1) Of the $15,783,210 June 30, 2010 fund balance, $5,731,710 was designated to support the fiscal year 2011 General 

Fund budget (funding of debt service related to the new North High School project).  As of February 14, 2011, the 
available balance in the Capital Stabilization Fund was $10,083,537, of which $4,800,000 has been designated to 
support the fiscal 2012 budget. 
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INDEBTEDNESS 
 
Authorization Procedure and Limitations 
 
Serial bonds and notes are authorized by vote of two-thirds of all the members of the city council (subject to the mayor’s veto 
where the mayor has a veto power) or a two-thirds vote of the town meeting. Provision is made in some cities and towns for a 
referendum on the borrowing authorization if there is a timely filing of a petition bearing the requisite number of signatures. 
Refunding bonds and notes are authorized by the city council or the selectmen. Borrowings for some purposes require State 
administrative approval. 
 
When serial bonds or notes have been authorized, bond anticipation notes may be issued by the officers authorized to issue 
the serial bonds or notes. Temporary debt in anticipation of the revenue of the fiscal year in which the debt is incurred or in 
anticipation of authorized federal and state aid generally may be incurred by the treasurer with the approval of the selectmen, 
mayor or city manager as the case may be. 
 
Bonds and notes including refunding bonds are generally authorized on behalf of the City by vote of two-thirds of all the 
members of the City Council with the approval of the Mayor.  Provision is made for a referendum on the filing of a petition 
bearing the requisite number of signatures.  Borrowings for certain purposes require state administrative approval.  When 
serial bonds or notes have been authorized, bond anticipation notes may be issued by the officers authorized to issue the 
serial bonds or notes. Temporary debt in anticipation of the revenue of the fiscal year in which the debt is incurred or in 
anticipation of authorized federal and state aid generally may be incurred by the Treasurer with the approval of the Mayor and 
the Controller of Accounts. 
 
The general debt limit of the City consists of normal debt limit and a double debt limit.  The normal debt limit is 5 percent 
of the valuation of taxable property as last equalized by the State Department of Revenue.  The City can authorize debt 
up to this amount without State approval.  It can authorize debt up to twice this amount (the double debt limit) with the 
approval of the State Municipal Finance Oversight Board. 
 
There are many categories of general obligation debt which are exempt from and do not count against the General Debt Limit.  
Among others, these exempt categories include revenue anticipation notes and grant anticipation notes; emergency loans; 
loans exempted by special laws; certain school bonds, sewer bonds, solid waste disposal facility bonds and economic 
development bonds supported by tax increment financing; and subject to special debt limits, bonds for water (limited to 10 
percent of equalized valuation), housing, urban renewal and economic development (subject to various debt limits), and 
electric, gas, community antenna television systems, and telecommunications systems (subject to separate limits). Revenue 
bonds are not subject to these debt limits.  The General Debt Limit and the special debt limit for water bonds apply at the time 
the debt is authorized. The other special debt limits generally apply at the time the debt is incurred. 
 
 
Types of Obligations 
 
General Obligations.  Massachusetts cities and towns are authorized to issue general obligation indebtedness of these types: 
 
Serial Bonds and Notes.  These are generally required to be payable in annual principal amounts beginning no later than 
the end of the next fiscal year commencing after the date of issue and ending within the terms permitted by law. A level 
debt service schedule, or a schedule that provides for a more rapid amortization of principal than level debt service, is 
permitted.  The principal amounts of certain economic development bonds supported by tax increment financing may be 
payable in equal, diminishing or increasing amounts beginning within 5 years after the date of issue. The maximum terms 
of serial bonds and notes vary from one year to 40 years, depending on the purpose of the issue. The maximum terms 
permitted are set forth in the statutes. In addition, for many projects, the maximum term may be determined in accordance 
with useful life guidelines promulgated by the State Department of Revenue (“DOR”). Serial bonds and notes may be 
issued for the purposes set forth in the statutes. In addition, serial bonds and notes may be issued for any other public 
work improvement or asset not specifically listed in the Statutes that has a useful life of at least 5 years. Bonds or notes 
may be made callable and redeemed prior to their maturity, and a redemption premium may be paid. Refunding bonds or 
notes may be issued subject to the maximum applicable term measured from the date of the original bonds or notes and 
must produce present value savings over the debt service of the refunded bonds. Generally, the first required annual 
payment of principal of the refunding bonds cannot be later than the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes 
being refunded thereby, however, principal payments made before the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes 
being refunded thereby may be in any amount. 
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Serial bonds may be issued as “qualified bonds” with the approval of the state Municipal Finance Oversight Board composed 
of the State Treasurer, the State Auditor, the Attorney General and the Director of Accounts, subject to such conditions and 
limitations (including restrictions on future indebtedness) as may be required by the Board. Qualified bonds may mature not 
less than 10 nor more than 30 years from their dates and are not subject to the amortization requirements described above.  
The State Treasurer is required to pay the debt service on qualified bonds and thereafter to withhold the amount of the debt 
service paid by the State from state aid or other state payments; administrative costs and any loss of interest income to the 
State are to be assessed upon the city or town. 
 

Tax Credit Bonds or Notes. Subject to certain provisions and conditions, the officers authorized to issue bonds or notes 
may designate any duly authorized issue of bonds or notes as “tax credit bonds” to the extent such bonds and notes are 
otherwise permitted to be issued with federal tax credits or other similar subsidies for all or a portion of the borrowing 
costs. Tax credit bonds may be made payable without regard to the annual installments required by any other law, and a 
sinking fund may be established for the payment of such bonds. Any investment that is part of such a sinking fund may 
mature not later than the date fixed for payment or redemption of the applicable bonds. 
 

Bond Anticipation Notes.  These generally must mature within two years of their original dates of issuance but may be 
refunded from time to time for a period not to exceed five years from their original dates of issuance, provided that for each 
year that the notes are refunded beyond the second year they must be paid in part from revenue funds in an amount at least 
equal to the minimum annual payment that would have been required if the bonds had been issued at the end of the second 
year. For certain school projects, however, notes may be refunded from time to time for a period not to exceed seven years 
without having to pay any portion of the principal of the notes from revenue funds. The maximum term of bonds issued to 
refund bond anticipation notes is measured (except for certain school projects) from the date of the original issue of the notes. 
 
Revenue Anticipation Notes.  These are issued to meet current expenses in anticipation of taxes and other revenues.  They 
must mature within one year but, if payable in less than one year, may be refunded from time to time up to one year from the 
original date of issue.  The City has not issued any revenue anticipation notes during the last five fiscal years and does not 
anticipate issuing any during the current fiscal year. 
 
Grant Anticipation Notes.  These are issued for temporary financing in anticipation of federal grants and state and county 
reimbursements.  Generally, they must mature within two years but may be refunded from time to time as long as the 
municipality remains entitled to the grant or reimbursement. 
 
Revenue Bonds.  Cities and towns may issue revenue bonds for solid waste disposal facilities, for projects financed under the 
Commonwealth’s Water Pollution Abatement or Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs and for certain economic 
development projects supported by tax increment financing. In addition, cities and towns having electric departments may 
issue electric revenue bonds, and notes in anticipation of such bonds, subject to the approval of the State Department of 
Telecommunications and Energy. This article is not intended to summarize laws relating to revenue bonds or to notes issued 
in anticipation of them.  Industrial revenue bonds are also outside the scope of this article. 
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CITY OF NEWTON 
DIRECT DEBT SUMMARY (1) 

 

General Obligation Bonds as of June 30, 2010:

    Outstanding:

        School (2) 163,432,000$    

        Land Acquisition (3) 2,000,000          

        General (3) 20,946,000        

        Water (4) 5,400,000          

        Sewer (5) 500,000             

        MWRA (6) 14,733,983        

        MWPAT (7) 9,835,066          

   Total Outstanding 216,847,049$    

This Issue 5,770,000          

Total Direct Debt 222,617,049$    
  

______________ 
(1) Principal amount only.  Excludes lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt and unfunded pension liability.   
(2) Subject to City's debt limit.   
(3) Subject to the City’s debt limit.  
(4) Outside the City’s debt limit.  Debt service for this purpose is fully supported from water rates. 
(5) Subject to City's debt limit.   
(6)  $12,705,253 is outside the City’s debt limit.  Debt service for this purpose is fully supported from water and sewer rates. 
(7) Does not reflect subsidy from Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust; $4,997,300 is outside the City’s debt limit.  Debt 

service for this purpose is fully supported from water and sewer rates. 

 
 
Debt Ratios 
 
The following table sets forth the percentage of debt to assessed valuation and per capita debt at June 30, 2010 and at 
the end of the four most recent fiscal years. The table considers the principal amount of general obligation bonds of the 
City only. The table does not deduct anticipated state grant payments applicable to the principal amount of outstanding or 
debt that may be supported in whole, or part, by non-tax revenues.  (See "Direct Debt Summary".) 
 

General Population Local Debt as a %

Fiscal Obligation Bonds (2000 Federal Assessed Per Capita of Assessed
Year End Outstanding Census) Valuation Debt Valuation

2010 216,847,049$     83,829 20,487,831,700$     2,587$  1.06 %
2009 200,945,636       83,829 20,714,549,200       2,397    0.97

2008 114,485,843       83,829 20,457,629,500       1,366 0.56
2007 74,552,865 83,829 20,667,221,900 889 0.36

2006 68,289,975 83,829 19,866,823,700 815 0.34
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Principal Payments by Purpose 
 
The following table sets forth the principal payments as of June 30, 2010 by purpose on outstanding general obligation 
bonds of the City.  As indicated in the table, of the total $216,847,049 bonds outstanding, $61,069,343 or approximately 
28% of the total outstanding are to be retired by the end of fiscal 2015 and $108,336,049 or approximately 50% of the 
total outstanding are to be retired by the end of fiscal 2020.  
 

CITY OF NEWTON 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Principal Payments by Purpose (1) 

As of June 30, 2010 

Fiscal 

Year School (2)

Land 

Acquisition (3) General (3) Water (4) Sewer (5) MWRA (6) MWPAT (7) Total

2011 7,042,000$      500,000$        1,781,000$    600,000$       25,000$         3,049,760$    834,132$       13,831,892$    

2012 6,530,000        500,000          1,755,000      600,000         25,000           2,780,653      853,177         13,043,830      

2013 6,150,000        500,000          1,735,000      600,000         25,000           2,234,951      812,157         12,057,109      

2014 6,160,000        500,000          1,735,000      600,000         25,000           1,935,067      908,200         11,863,267      

2015 5,645,000        -                      1,665,000      600,000         25,000           1,405,546      932,700         10,273,246      

2016 5,700,000        -                      1,655,000      600,000         25,000           1,099,644      962,300         10,041,944      

2017 5,785,000        -                      1,580,000      600,000         25,000           841,042         992,000         9,823,042        

2018 5,855,000        -                      1,320,000      600,000         25,000           582,440         1,031,800      9,414,240        

2019 5,920,000        -                      1,320,000      600,000         25,000           582,440         1,066,600      9,514,040        

2020 6,015,000        -                      1,295,000      -                     25,000           222,440         916,000         8,473,440        

2021 6,030,000        -                      1,010,000      -                     25,000           -                     506,000         7,571,000        

2022 6,050,000        -                      895,000         -                     25,000           -                     10,000           6,980,000        

2023 6,160,000        -                      825,000         -                     25,000           -                     10,000           7,020,000        

2024 6,320,000        -                      735,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     7,080,000        

2025 6,245,000        -                      475,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     6,745,000        

2026 5,580,000        -                      235,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     5,840,000        

2027 5,135,000        -                      235,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     5,395,000        

2028 5,035,000        -                      235,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     5,295,000        

2029 4,270,000        -                      235,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     4,530,000        

2030 4,310,000        -                      225,000         -                     25,000           -                     -                     4,560,000        

2031 4,470,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     4,470,000        

2032 4,675,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     4,675,000        

2033 4,885,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     4,885,000        

2034 5,115,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     5,115,000        

2035 5,355,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     5,355,000        

2036 5,610,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     5,610,000        

2037 5,875,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     5,875,000        

2038 6,155,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     6,155,000        

2039 4,970,000        -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     4,970,000        

2040 385,000           -                      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     385,000           

Total 163,432,000$  2,000,000$     20,946,000$  5,400,000$    500,000$       14,733,983$  9,835,066$    216,847,049$  
 

_____________ 
(1) Principal amount only.  Excludes lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt and unfunded pension liability.   
(2) Subject to City's debt limit.   
(3) Subject to the City’s debt limit.  
(4) Outside the City’s debt limit.  Debt service for this purpose is fully supported from water rates. 
(5)   Subject to City's debt limit.   
(6)    $12,705,253 is outside the City’s debt limit.  Debt service for this purpose is fully supported from water and sewer rates. 
(7)   Does not reflect subsidy from Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust; $4,997,300 is outside the City’s debt limit.  Debt service for this    

purpose is fully supported from water and sewer rates. 
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Debt Service Requirements 
 
The following table sets forth the required principal and interest payments on outstanding general obligation bonds of the 
City as of June 30, 2010. 
 

CITY OF NEWTON – GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS 
Debt Service Requirements  

As of June 30, 2010 
 

Fiscal This Issue MWPAT Net Debt

Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Subsidy Service

2011 13,831,892$       8,080,919$        -$                    -$                  (571,503)$        21,341,309$      

2012 13,043,830         7,881,863         415,000           205,706        (550,917)          20,995,482        

2013 12,057,109         7,612,623         530,000           200,963        (528,759)          19,871,936        

2014 11,863,267         7,205,992         520,000           185,063        (512,488)          19,261,834        

2015 10,273,246         6,853,023         520,000           169,463        (487,299)          17,328,432        

2016 10,041,944         6,525,787         510,000           153,863        (462,660)          16,768,934        

2017 9,823,042           6,208,345         455,000           133,463        (438,533)          16,181,317        

2018 9,414,240           5,865,518         450,000           115,263        (411,340)          15,433,681        

2019 9,514,040           5,501,825         450,000           97,263          (387,687)          15,175,441        

2020 8,473,440           5,131,256         445,000           79,263          (312,957)          13,816,002        

2021 7,571,000           4,785,346         445,000           59,238          (160,394)          12,700,190        

2022 6,980,000           4,471,563         110,000           39,213          (2,610)              11,598,165        

2023 7,020,000           4,192,388         110,000           35,225          (2,323)              11,355,290        

2024 7,080,000           3,911,113         110,000           31,238          -                       11,132,350        

2025 6,745,000           3,626,663         100,000           27,250          -                       10,498,913        

2026 5,840,000           3,349,681         100,000           23,625          -                       9,313,306          

2027 5,395,000           3,110,569         100,000           20,000          -                       8,625,569          

2028 5,295,000           2,884,394         100,000           16,000          -                       8,295,394          

2029 4,530,000           2,678,369         100,000           12,000          -                       7,320,369          

2030 4,560,000           2,482,506         100,000           8,000            -                       7,150,506          

2031 4,470,000           2,280,169         100,000           4,000            -                       6,854,169          

2032 4,675,000           2,080,463         -                      -                   -                       6,755,463          

2033 4,885,000           1,855,356         -                      -                   -                       6,740,356          

2034 5,115,000           1,620,000         -                      -                   -                       6,735,000          

2035 5,355,000           1,373,419         -                      -                   -                       6,728,419          

2036 5,610,000           1,115,138         -                      -                   -                       6,725,138          

2037 5,875,000           843,925            -                      -                   -                       6,718,925          

2038 6,155,000           559,788            -                      -                   -                       6,714,788          

2039 4,970,000           261,975            -                      -                   -                       5,231,975          

2040 385,000              16,363              -                      -                    401,363             

216,847,049$     114,366,336$    5,770,000$      1,616,093$   (4,829,468)$     333,770,011$    

 
 
Authorized Unissued Debt and Prospective Financing 
 
As of January 31, 2011, the City had approximately $32.7 million outstanding in authorized but unissued debt for various 
municipal capital purposes.  
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Overlapping Debt 
 

The City is a member of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority and the Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority.  The following table sets forth the outstanding bonded debt, exclusive of temporary loans in anticipation of 
bonds or current revenue, of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority and the Massachusetts Bay Transportation 
Authority and the City's gross share of such debt as the fiscal 2011 dollar assessment for each. 

Outstanding Newton's Fiscal 2011 Dollar

Overlapping Entity Debt as of 6/30/10 Estimated Share(1) Assessment(2)

Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (3)

   Water 1,965,302,000$       4.837 % 8,170,620$         

   Sewer 3,902,910,000 4.292 18,034,955

Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority (4) 5,522,119,947 3.406 5,026,100

 
_______________ 
 

(1) Estimated share based on debt service only. 
(2) Estimated dollar assessment based upon total net operating expenses, inclusive (where applicable) of debt service. 
(3) SOURCE: The Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (the “MWRA”) provides wholesale drinking water services in whole or in 

part to 48 cities, towns and special purpose entities and provides wastewater collection and treatment services to 43 cities, towns and 
special purpose entities.  Under its enabling legislation, as amended, the aggregate principal amount of all bonds issued by the 
MWRA for its corporate purposes may not exceed $6.1 billion outstanding at any time. Its obligations are secured by revenues of the 
MWRA.  The MWRA assesses member cities, towns and special purpose entities, which continue to provide direct retail water and 
sewer services to users.  The cities, towns and other entities collect fees from the users to pay all or part of the assessments; some 
municipalities levy property taxes to pay part of the amounts assessed upon them. 

(4) Source: The Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority (the “MBTA”) was created in 1964 to finance and operate mass 
transportation facilities within the greater Boston metropolitan area.  Under its enabling act, the MBTA is authorized to issue 
bonds for capital purposes, other than refunding bonds, and for certain specified purposes to an outstanding amount, which does 
not exceed the aggregate principal amount of $3,556,300,000. In addition, pursuant to certain of the Commonwealth’s 
transportation bond bills, the MBTA is authorized to issue additional bonds for particular capital projects.  The MBTA also is 
authorized to issue bonds of the purpose of refunding bonds. Under the MBTA’s enabling act debt service, as well as other operating 
expenses of the MBTA, are to be financed by a dedicated revenue stream consisting of the amounts assessed on the cities and 
towns of the MBTA and a dedicated portion of the statewide sales tax.  The amount assessed to each city and town is based on its 
weighted percentage of the total population of the authority as provided in the enabling act.  The aggregate amount of such 
assessments is generally not permitted to increase by more than 2.5 percent per year. (See “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY 
TAX” above.) 

 
Contractual Obligations 
 

Municipal contracts are generally limited to currently available appropriations. A city or town generally has authority to enter 
into contracts for the exercise of any of its corporate powers for any period of time deemed to serve its best interests, but 
generally only when funds are available for the first fiscal year; obligations for succeeding fiscal years generally are expressly 
subject to availability and appropriation of funds. Municipalities have specific authority in relatively few cases to enter long-term 
contractual obligations that are not subject to annual appropriation, including contracts for refuse disposal and sewage 
treatment and disposal. Municipalities may also enter into long-term contracts in aid of housing and renewal projects. There 
may be implied authority to make other long-term contracts required to carry out authorized municipal functions, such as 
contracts to purchase water from private water companies. 
 
Municipal contracts relating to solid waste disposal facilities may contain provisions requiring the delivery of minimum amounts 
of waste and payments based thereon and requiring payments in certain circumstances without regard to the operational 
status of the facilities. 
 
Municipal electric departments have statutory power to enter into long-term contracts for joint ownership and operation of 
generating and transmission facilities and for the purchase or sale of capacity, including contracts requiring payments without 
regard to the operational status of the facilities. 
 
Pursuant to the Home Rule Amendment to the Massachusetts Constitution, cities and towns may also be empowered to make 
other contracts and leases. 
 
The City has a limited number of contractual obligations (all of which are subject to annual appropriation by the Board of 
Aldermen).  The City's main contractual obligation is with Wheelabrator Millbury for disposal of solid waste.  This is a 20 
year contract which expires June 30, 2028.   The City is in the process of exploring options relative to a future agreement 
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for the disposal of solid waste.  The fiscal 2009 and 2010 appropriations for collection and disposal of solid waste 
(including recycling) were $6,106,835 and $5,831,261, respectively. For fiscal year 2011 a total of $5,853,887 has been 
appropriated.   

 
RETIREMENT PLAN 

 
Teachers, certain administrative personnel and other professional employees of the City's school department participate 
individually in a contributory retirement plan administered by the Massachusetts Teachers' Retirement Board.  The City 
does not contribute to this plan.  Substantially all of the other City employees participate in the City of Newton Retirement 
system (the System).  The City began funding the System in 1984 on an actuarial basis, as required by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  This funding includes the amortization of prior service cost over a 40-year period.  The 
active City employees contribute at rates ranging from 5% to 10% (depending on their date of employment) of their 
regular compensation, as defined.  The City also contributes the amount necessary to fund the System's administrative 
expenses. 
 
Certain retired employees of the City were exempted from membership in the System.  The City pays retirement benefits 
to these employees from the general appropriation funds of the City.  These employees are not included in the actuarial 
valuation provided by the actuary, and there is no available estimate of their related actuarial liability. 
 
Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System benefits are uniform from system to system.  The System provides for 
retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member's highest three-year average annual rate of regular 
compensation.  Benefit payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service, level of compensation 
and group classification. 
 
Members become vested after 10 years of creditable service.  A superannuation retirement allowance may be received 
upon the completion of 20 years of service or upon reaching age 55 with 10 years of service.  Normal retirement for most 
employees occurs at age 65.  (For certain hazardous duty and public safety positions, normal retirement is at age 55). 
 
A retirement allowance consists of two parts:  an annuity and a pension.  A member's accumulated total deductions and a 
portion of the interest that they generate constitute the annuity.  The differential between the total retirement benefit and 
the annuity is the pension. 

 
The amount shown below as the pension benefit obligation is a standardized disclosure measure of the present value of 
pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in 
the future as a result of employee service to date.  The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of the 
System on a going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due and 
make comparisons among employers.  The measure is the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits and is 
independent of the funding method used to determine contributions to the System. 
 
The total unfunded pension benefit obligation applicable to the City's employees was $208,068,353 at January 1, 2010, 
computed as follows: 

Pension benefit obligation - $462,103,688

Actuarial value of assets available for pension benefits (1) 254,035,335

Unfunded pension benefit $208,068,353

 
_____________ 
(1) Fair value of assets available for pension benefits is $222,586,242.  There is a difference between the actuarial value of assets 

and the fair value of assets because for funding purposes the Newton Contributory Retirement System amortizes investment 
gains and losses over a period that cannot exceed five years in order to avoid excess volatility in funding requirements. 

 
Effective July 1, 2007, the City transferred all system assets, except those in real estate limited partnerships, to the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts Pension Reserve Investment Trust Core Fund. 
 
The City has a policy of updating the actuarial valuation of plan assets and liabilities annually.  The January 1, 2011 
valuation is expected to be issued during the month of April 2011. 
 
Earlier this fiscal year, the Newton Retirement Board voted to extend the deadline for actuarial funding of the system’s 
liabilities from 2028 to 2038.  The statutory deadline for actuarial funding is currently 2040. 
____________ 
Source:  January 1, 2010 Actuarial Valuation of the Newton Retirement System prepared by Buck Consultants. 
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REVENUES: 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

  Retirement Contributions:

    Employer 11,117,331$    12,146,336$    13,258,279$          13,903,775$    15,405,575$    

    Employee 6,407,985        6,689,060        7,775,449              7,704,725        7,661,211        

    Commonwealth 1,033,657        993,222           892,410                 840,710           792,152           

  Interest/Dividends 4,935,278        6,144,067        8,668,084              6,308,072        6,739,203        

  Unrealized Gain 25,395,706      22,779,223      (88,309,069)           24,170,380      21,295,787      

  Less Investment Expense (1,012,182)      (864,876)         (1,177,833)             (1,141,650)      (1,011,407)      

  Transfers 934,213           851,522           1,201,867              999,570           993,065           

    TOTAL REVENUES 48,811,988      48,738,554      (57,690,813)           52,785,582      51,875,586      

EXPENSES:

  Retirement Benefits 25,927,780      26,337,818      27,521,222            29,126,639      30,247,733      

  Refunds, Transfers, Disbursements 1,428,235        1,766,759        1,995,502              1,743,310        2,321,187        

  Administrative 242,832           255,380           266,996                 265,624           264,776           

  Other -                  -                  -                         -                  -                  

      TOTAL EXPENDITURES 27,598,847      28,359,957      29,783,720            31,135,573      32,833,696      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

  REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 21,213,141 20,378,597 (87,474,533)           21,650,009      19,041,890      

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 246,819,028 268,032,169 288,410,766          200,936,233    222,586,242    

ENDING FUND BALANCE 268,032,169$  288,410,766$  200,936,233$        222,586,242$  241,628,132$  

                          

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (1)

CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM AS OF DECEMBER 31,

Fiscal Year

_____________ 
 
(1) Represents statutory filing with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Public Employee Retirement Administration 

Commission.  Does not include adjustment in fair market valuation of certain real estate limited partnership 
investments that are not expected to be available until March 31, 2011. 

 
See Appendix A for additional information on the retirement system. 
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Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 
In addition to pension benefits, cities and towns may provide retired employees with health care and life insurance benefits.  
The portion of the cost of such benefits paid by cities and towns is generally provided on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) recently promulgated its Statement Nos. 43 and 45, which will for the 
first time require public sector entities to report the future costs of these non-pension, post-employment benefits in their 
financial statements.  These new accounting standards do not require pre-funding the payment of these costs as the liability 
for such costs accrues, but the basis applied by the standards for measurement of costs and liabilities for these benefits is 
conservative if they continue to be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis and will result in larger yearly cost and liability accruals 
than if the cost of such benefits were pre-funded in a trust fund in the same manner as traditional pension benefits.  Cities and 
towns that choose to self-insure all or a portion of the cost of the health care benefits they provide to employees and retirees 
may establish a trust fund for the purpose of paying claims.  In addition, cities and towns may establish a trust fund for the 
purpose of pre-funding other post-employment benefits liability in the same manner as traditional pension benefits. 
 
The pay-as-you-go cost to the City for such benefits in recent years has been as follows: 
 

Fiscal  Benefit 

Year  Costs 

   

2010   $14,779,419  

2009     14,141,956  

2008     13,429,363  

2007     13,520,920  

2006     12,560,524  

       
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) recently promulgated its Statement Nos. 43 and 45, which will for 
the first time require public sector entities to report the future costs of these non-pension, post-employment benefits in their 
financial statements.  These new accounting standards do not require pre-funding such benefits, but the basis applied by the 
standards for measurement of costs and liabilities for these benefits is conservative if they continue to be funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis and will result in larger yearly cost and liability accruals than if such benefits were pre-funded in a trust fund in the 
same manner as traditional pension benefits.  Although cities and towns that choose to self-insure all or a portion of the cost of 
the health care benefits they provide to employees and retirees may establish a trust fund for the purpose of paying claims, 
Massachusetts General Laws do not currently provide cities and towns with general legal authority to establish a trust fund for 
the purpose of pre-funding this liability in the same manner as traditional pension benefits.  
 
The City implemented Governmental Accounting Board statement 45 in the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2008. For that year, 
the City recorded a $22 million liability in the government wide financial statements, representing the difference between the 
annual required contribution (ARC) and the pay-as-you-go appropriation for other post-employment benefits. For the year 
ended June 30, 2010 the net other post-employment benefit obligation had increased to $83.5 million and the full actuarial 
accrued liability for such benefits stood at $531.7 million. Subsequent to June 30, 2010 the City established a formal OPEB 
trust pursuant to Massachusetts municipal finance law and contributed $137,000 from the fiscal year 2011 General Fund 
budget.   
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EMPLOYEE RELATIONS 
 

City and town employees (other than managerial and confidential employees) are entitled to join unions and to bargain 
collectively on questions of wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.  

 

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010, the City employed approximately 2,626 full time employees of whom 1,787 were 
employed by the Newton Public Schools, 181 by the police department, 183 by the fire department, 195 by the public 
works department (including water and sewer utilities) and the balance in various other departments of the City.  City 
employees, other than those with managerial and confidential responsibilities, are entitled to join unions and to bargain 
collectively on questions of wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.   Approximately 2,450 full time 
employees are represented by sixteen unions, ten of which are municipal and six of which are school.   

 

All collective bargaining contracts of the City expired on either June 30, 2009 or August 31, 2009, except for the police 
officers’ contract which expired June 30, 2006.  Both the police superior officers’ association and the school teachers’ 
contracts have settled one-year agreements subsequent to June 30, 2009.  The expired police officer contract is currently 
before an arbitrator.  
 

LITIGATION 
 

At present there are numerous cases pending in various courts and administrative agencies throughout the 
Commonwealth where the City is a defendant.  In the opinion of the City, there is no litigation either pending or theoretical, 
which is likely to result either individually or in the aggregate in a final judgment against the City which would materially 
affect its financial position. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 
 CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 

/s/ James Reardon, City Treasurer/Collector  
 
 
 April 5, 2011 

 



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020 

Prepared by the Comptroller's Office 

APPENDIX A



P 

Govemment'Wide Financial Statements 
Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Activities 

Fund Financial Statements 

Component 
Combining 
Combining Statement 

CC` T EHEASIVE 

	

IAL FIN 

	

AZ 

	

PORT 

Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheet 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet Total 

Fund Balances to the Statement of Net Assets 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 

in Ford Balances 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

General Fund - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
Balance - Budget and Actual 

ion Fund - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
glance - Budget and Actual 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Fund Net Assets 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Chang 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of FiduciaryNet Assets 
Statement of Changes in FiduclauryNet Assets 

Financial Statements 

TABLE OF CINKEWS 

s and 

muss, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

A-1

A-3

A-19

A-21
A-23

A-25

A-26

A-27

A-28

A-29

A-30

A-31
A-32
A-33

A-34
A-35

A-36
A-37

A-39





This page left intentionally blank . 



S U LLIVAN 
R0GERS 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the I lt:morablc Board of :Ildcrrncm and tvlavnr 
City of N e\vton, P~-iass:aehuset t 

SULLIVAN, ROGERS & COMPANY, LLC 
C,)rpc)rarc Place 1, Suite 2()4 " 99 Smith Braturtj'tmtt 

BudtngttTn, N''tassathasi.'LU t)1 ??t}3 
l' " 781-22}_j6()() r " 781-22'i-SUtt) 

	

tivtvtn~, ",ulfiv;in-rngcrs.cotr 

We hakle audited the accompanying tm,ancial statements OF the lovcrntncmid acti- vibes, the IXusmess-twc activities ; the 
rcgate discretel}' presented ccalupr~nent Laiits, each major hind . and the ;aggr°cgate remaialing fungi infotYnaticln t~f 

the Cirv of Newton . Nlassachusetts (City), as of and for die fiscal year aided f Line 3(1, ?GICI (except for the Newtc-,n 
ContribUtory Retirement System, the Ne-vvton Coninionwe:alth Foatndation . Inc . and the Newton CoImIlainity Farm . 
Inc ., which :arc as o and far the fiscal year ended December ?1, 2009), w1itch ct~ll_ectively- comprise the City's basic 
financi:al sr-ate ncnts as listed in the table of contents . T11c`c- dnancird statements are the rise onsibilit~, of Ciry 
n1anagCrnVDt. OUr responsibility is to express oplmons can these financial statements b: -:rd on our audit. We clid not 
audit the fin-.aricial sLatements of the Nevrton Commonwealth I'C'Undation, Inc . and the Newton CatTununity. Farm, 
Ii1c ., which represent 

	

and t3 .J`~/(-; 40 .5'~',) anti 6.?` 'a ; - nd 5 / .6~- i, and 2l .6~''o o 

	

the :1SSCr~, net assets and .revenues, 
respecdvely, of the clisscretelr presented component units . Those tmancial stitcrncnts wcre furnisl--icd 1.0 L1s, and our 
Opmiclns, msofar gas they relate to the :a1I1c,unts alclUded for the Ncltton Coiiimomvelaltli Foundation, Inc . and the 
Nextirton Cntninunity Farm, Inc ., arc based on t1ic report of the ot1,_err auditors . 

We condtictec our Ena.Lat iri accord-.1 lice with auditing static ards generally accepted In the Ututcd States of Amcnca aid 
lie standards :applicable to financial audits Ct :)Ilt2aillLd in Gove 7;v.&-n1 -Jt clltin .flcrr~~~T~ tr, issued by (lie Corrlptroller 
General of the United States . Those standards reelui.rc that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about ,vlacthcr the financiail statcmcnts arc free of M.atcii d misstarcment . The f ici inci il sratemcnts of t_11c 
NeN ,ton Cornmo)n%ve-,ilth Foundation, Inc . and the Nevti-ton Conitnuruty Farm, Inca. ~x-care not audited in accordance 

r,~t=Stan :41tflr . 

	

An audit ir1CIT-Idcs c-I-ari1ming, On a test basis, evidence supporting the aninunts and 
dlsclosums In the financial ,taCel7iClitS, 

	

An alldtt alSta 1tiCltIdtrS iasSeSSi?ln the :1CCc'~t111r1I?~ prltlcil7lcs used an ti s1~i111ic1aI'it 

estirnatcs made- by. manla rement, as well as evaluating the overall financial statemeill presentation . t\,'e belicvc that our 
audit and the reports of tlic other aalclitors prtlvidc a rcagoitiihlc basis for our opiluOns . 

In our opinion, bascd on >ur audit and the reports ,,)f other aod;turs, the ttnanuA stiatenlctits referred to above 
present fairly, In all inaterial respect; . the respective financial pt~sitson of the govcrtunental acdvitics, tht:- huy ne;s-tt`pe 
activitieti, the agg) , regAte discretely presented compcmient Ut11CS, e~Wh iTi,l'Or fund, atld tl1C Sl.i4regAtr rCnl11li1111r1 ffind . 
information of file (;its- ao -~f ~1111C ~~, 201{) (except for the Newton Comribtitory Reti-rerncnt System, t}ic Nciv-ton 
Commonwealth hotmdation, Inc . and the Newton Conunainity Faun, Inc ., wluch life as of acid Car the fiscal }, ear 
ended December i1, 20(}9), and the respective changes in financial pr)sirion and cash flo%vs, where applicable, thereof 
and the hudgetili-v C011pi-trisons for The general tuna and c~naltnunit~~ Preservation fund fair t1ie year thin ended ui 
COnfoi-niih' With aCCOuiIiiiIL principle :, f;etlerally - ii~~CChtCd in the United Stare 

	

of 1-neriica . 

.As inure filly ci ,Iscr-ibcd in _Note 17, the City has restated begin?gig net assets of its component units . Vfe have 
audited flit adjutiti-neat a 

	

described in Note 17 that was applied toi restate the fiscal year 2Ctt"~`) fnancial statements . In 
()ur 0I)iliiOn, SLICli adjustment is appropriate arid 112,5 1)CCTi properly applied . 

A-1



Ia kc I 

	

7 ~t 

	

r »2 

	

~i «U 

	

~,~ ~ ~ ~ o &sue J o~ ego# ~2J No emb£2\~ 1\ a o 
c mde~ 6&~ tc~~3~cmdc mml~ ~f ~GJ ±p rd& ~J~ opt S~ i ~ m~ ~7 ~t Rr~ 
~~~aa~ &~,±Kd~a wcn S ~J\ t~eem~S ~Jmhlm~e.~e2 mc~tr «~ rQ m 
~2~ b ~cicp o o~ e4Q;o ~crn&c aml~ Jf add ±p rQ;pJc mp6~7 ~J£6c±3~3~ CGa 
2#Q£ ~Jntm poi ~ o ~~ o tc~crn&~ mml~ JI6~G& ±2ory\~ o c m~ ~~ ~« 2~ r 
§ ~ ~~ ~ g~~ ~a ~ ~ Jo e Q ~~ r ~a ~t 

	

. 

	

»/ ~6~*a 

	

~ CJs odJb ~ m~ ed Q 
c /~cta ~t I~ ep r Q massy\~ c2ade ~ o~~ ~. 
A~~t;2~dp2 7n 7k7~eJQteU~e yrG~ 

	

~c±§~ctatem~~emet micas& 
~/~&/§~~eJo g7e3t~~g Iq pJ2r~p m6=~4mhl2mem~o~elbn£#s~o~ao 
{ ~t~ o=2~ab t~o~67)~ pae aJm~upcm~ltebmEf ~&& r&om~w.S~ ~o~a~, 
~ ~ ~6 ~1g~ a tebayf ~3J #acme #,& J§~~ b teGa c 

	

~t A c ~IdKy~ ƒĠ307\ +~ ~ mdcs 3 m ~ p r+~t& g~ o f ~/& «gory;f £p «Q;teba\~ p/2 »&0m~ S a p 
ap~ri e~c~ 62~ Rao~g~ &§tom 2~~e~ Wc~v ape ar " ~Jp~~ ~G mtc2@~e 
su~cmet 

	

~o~ao y ~c£ 7 ~t a~ Q\#~ ~ 7n {~a~~ yteU~e yrQO 

	

e 
y6c~m~~~dg~r~m~~rm~ta~ttemRh~~p~ `«~e~o~ao ~J~m2`Ere 
~o~a~f£cm~~~ ~~ m~~em~t esoma mom yg~~,tcb~cf ~d&rkem~S,pJm~£ 
~owc~ew ot`~ J~\o~~ ~ ~ ~eba%f p&& R&emeb. ~e~ ~1G~oa~~ ~~ ~ pa de 
~/sa 

	

7oatc~o~t=~~metc~~J~~e~G~ntp~gem ~~s~f%m~G~7 m 
e g 3~~ ~ Boa ~ p ~ dew/ »s 

	

7. 

N~ em~T2\2 1& 

~-a ~ ya~nu28~Iteg mc~~~6\~ ~~a~ tof ~3& @arm~9t«~~ct~/~ mg~c 
tc~~~ Nc~o,~aietmc~'f~~G2 #keme » » ;*hl ~c~ and Jo~3R6~,~ my ~\~6 
y±QJ~f~Jfy~d& #a m~ G ~Jac e QG,~ ~ 623 ~o~a ~ ~J R~~tc&a76~ leg a~ e6f £ 
g 

	

mGO ~ ~ ya& ~&f& ~J#c~la2§~~ 2~~~ef ~/3 #kcm~a. 

	

c~ my ' ;~6y±aJ~ 
£~Jfy~d& &keme a ~Jsc ~ Qa ~J~ ~ 6=3 ~o~~ a ~ x ces om6±~ a m~70m~t~J ~ 2 
d n ~ from pJ e~c~~t/mte~~ 2~\«~ ~Iy; ~J mh£RCI~ m~ m pe Jc~c~ mod& 
#aem~», 

	

c~o~~a 63~~ a~/J~ mtc~~ Q;gee ~aa~~ yte~~ ~tcfyp32 
&acme S ~J 2r~a ~ 62& p ~ ~ ~2,Q3aƒ2;~ mg ~«mod 2c~ /'(sue 8i~ ~a a ~c~ { mtc 
~~ /~/ ~~ ~t «mod m~ I«~ £~ me m p~ Jet efy~3& #acme a ~ mt c~ ~G3 a&cm~ 5 ~c~Gv6~6mhra~ 62&ga~~e y ~~I 7 ~ta~ y;#~d7ƒĠ7n t~~p~ yteU~e 
ykao 

	

~~a ~ ova ~~,te~o ~~ §f~l #re Q ~ m»~&/ es ~a Qr~o mtef ~d3 
#acmeaaa*hl e~ m~&o~aJ#&&lydi«tmhvnt~~~\~2Jmte~~ y$~~e~a 
~peytc~~at£bayfy~G&2»0m~e \~c£'/>w~~t~pa2~o~a~~ode~\ 
a@ 

	

a ~ ~ em 

A-2



A-3



This page left intentionally blank . 

A-4



As management of the City of Newton (the City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this 
and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 . 

Fin ncis 

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $281 .7 million 
assets) . The City has negative unrestricted net assets in the City's governmental activi 
unrestricted net assets in its business type activities . 

tal net assets decreased by $318 million or 10.4% in fiscal year 2010 . Net assets of 
governmental activities decreased by $316 million, a 13.3% decline from fiscal year 2009 . Net assets of 
business-type activities increased by $0.9 million or 1 .4% from fiscal year 2009 . The decline in 

ides net assets is the result of the recognition of $28.0 million in new post retirement health liabilities . 

net assets decreased by $218 million to {$27.1) million at June 30, 2010 . 

I cost of all City services for fiscal year 2010 was $420.1 million, $383 .0 
tal services, and $37.1 million (8.9%) of which was for business type services . 

A total of $88.6 million or 211% of governmental services were financed from program revenue, Ic 
76.9% to be financed from general revenues and interfund transfers of the City. Real estate and personal 
property tax revenue represented the single largest source of general revenue . 

governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $84.9 million . The 
governmental funds fund balance decreased by $50.8 million (37.5%) from the prior year's ending 

ance, primarily due to the use of prior year revenues and other financing sources for the completion 
of the new Newton North I ligh School capital project . 

general fund reported total fund balance of $113 million at the end of fiscal year 2010, an 
$856,733 Q42%) decrease from the total fund balance at June 30 of the prior fiscal year. The and 

of the fund balance for the general fund was $lR9 million or 3.4% of total general fund revenues and 
year. A total of $2.7 million of the unreserved fund 

total bonded debt {bonds and notes) increased by $15 .9 million or 7.9% to $216 .8 million during 
ipally as a result of additional debt issued for the new Newton North High School construction 

of the Financial Statements : 
scion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements . The 

basic financial statements consist of three components : 1) government-wide financial statements ; 2) fund financial 
statements ; and 3) notes to the financial statements . This report also contains other supplementary information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves . 

financial statements : Thegovernment-wide finandal statements are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of the City's finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business . The statement of net assets 
17 and 18) presents information on 

all 
of the City's non-fiduciary assets and liabili ties, with the dif 

tied as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
osition of the City is improving or deteriora 
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seems information showing how the government's net assets changed 
eported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to 

h flows. Thus, revenue and expenses reported in this statemen 
some items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g ., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 

The statement of'eutiedi 
during the most recent fiscal year. 
the change occurs . regardless oftbe amine of 

ial statements distinguish functions and programs of the City that are principally 
ergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions and pr 

all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees or charges (business-type activities) . 
ernmental activities of the City include the broad functions of general government; public safety; e 

and the majo 
a enterprise activities : the water 

years since the City's adoption of the current 
el can be found on pages 118-121 of this report . 

cial statements : A fund is a grouping of related accounts that i 
or specific activities or objectives . The City, like other state and local governments, uses 
and demonstrate compliance with finance-relate legal requirements . _/U of the funds of the 
ee categories : governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

the same functions and programs repartee 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements . 13o wever, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on the near-teras inflows and outflows oj",rpendeble resouroor, as well 
as on balances ofipendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year . Such information may be useful in evaluation a 

-term finan 

ecause the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented forgovernmentalfundr with similar information presented forgoveromental 

ing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
I funds balance sheet and the 
ces provide a reconciliation to 

government-wide financial statements . 
impact of the government's near-term financing decisions . 
governmental funds statement of revenues, expen 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental ac°tivi 

al governmental funds. Information is presented s car and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and c 
the general fund, the counnunity preservation fund and the high school improvements fund, all of which are 
considered to be major funds. Data from the other 17 funds are combined into a single, aggregated prawn 
under the caption non- majorgovernmentaffindr. A brief description and individual fund data for each of the non-major 
governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements beginning on page 71 of this report. The 
governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 21-26 of this report. Trend information may be 
found on pages 122-123 of dus report . 

two different types of proprietary funds. enterprise.fiends are used to report the 
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financia 
enterprise funds to account for water and sanitary sewer activities . Internal service,fonas are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate the costs internally among the City's various functions, including employee health benefits ; 
workers' compensation ; public building insurance ; and general liability self-insurance activities . The services provided 
by these funds predominately benefit the governmental rather than the business-type functions . 

	

Accordingly, the 
internal service funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements . 

A-6



Proprietary hands provide the same type of information as goverrin-kent-wide financial statements, only in more detail . 
The ~proprlctar) , fund financial stateanetits provide separate information fcju: the water and sanitary sewer ,activities, 
wlticil are considered inajor finds of the Citi , . Cotwersely, all intenial service funds are combined into ;a single, 
aggregate presentation in the propi-.ctary fttncl Financial statements . \ brief descnpaon of each fund and individual 
fund data For die internal service Funds i, provided in the form of rcjfrL~Jrl,iz ..,7,rtL>r.~t~>7t~° befrintling on page "8? of thus 
report. The basic proprietary= hind financial statements can be found, on 27-21) of this report . 

Fiduciary funds : Fiduciarv f-tn as are used to account for resources held for the. benefit oi- partics outside the 
gc_ivernment. Fiduciati, fund;; are rr~alincluded in the government-,1,idc financial statements because the resources of 
the funds are rw! available to support the City-'s own functions and activides . The accounting used for fiduciary finds 
is much like that used for hroprietaiT funds . 

The fiduciary funds 1uiancial statements, provide separate inforni :ition fair the pension trust fund of the 

	

t~7 . :111 (-)tlier 
tiduciaryT funds are reported and combined into a single, aggreg ate presentation in the fiduciary funds fin~uicial 
statements under the captions, "y~rivate purpose oust Ehulds" and "`agency fund;", respectively . A brief description of 
each hind and individual find data for the private purpose trust funds and agency funds are provided in the Corm of 
~rr~rzL~%'rr»an~zalE~;+font., br,"inihig on page 96 of this report. The fiduciary funds Financial statements can be found can 
pages 30 and 31 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements : The notes provide additional inforin-ation that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the rvernmsent-%vide and f=und financial statements . The notes to die financial statements can 
be f6ttnd on hagc,s 34 -6Q of this report . 

Other information : In :addition try the basic Financial statements and accompanying notes,, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary iulforn~ation regarding the City's progress ii-i funding its obligation to provide pension 
.end past-rittremeiit lle.alth benefits v, its einhloirees . Such infortTaation is loc2uted on pages 6`a and 7r) of this report . 

The combini,ig statements previously referred to are presented immediately f~~ll~j uag the notes to the basic financial 
statements . 

Government-ride Financial Analvsis: 

Net Assets : The City's t(-jtal assets exceeded total habilitics by $2,S1 .7 million at )tint 30, 2010 . This represents a 
32,8, rmlhon or I0.4 t,''U dc'cllnc from Cot,. l net assets at . ~lnC .al of the prior Car. 

	

TrCi1d Lf?foriT1 :1uot1 for total net 
a ";sets sand its major components over the past tree year period is sttTnniari7ed graphically below . 

NET ASSET TRENDS FOR PRIRIARY 
GOVERNMENT - LAST FIVE YEARS 

NLillionss of 
Dollars 

~tr'2yryj 
2006 

	

?00 7 

	

20r1 fi 

	

2009 

	

2010 

" lawtitcd lira aapat .~ E Resnicted 0 Uilr :strictc-d 
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years . 

sets . . . . . . : . . . . . . . � . . . . . . . . . S 

	

1513715158,374,513 

	

S 

	

2112 )Z 26 

	

S 

	

nJWAU 

	

$ 

	

31,743,374 

	

$ 

	

! 

	

J3JN5 

	

S 

	

246,135,1 -7 
a (excluding 

tat assets} . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

1 Z741459 

	

11512,57'' 154 

	

2,358,439 

	

2,592,172 

	

15,101,898 

	

15,166,326 
t} . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

3MY%M3 

	

: 14: %, 96 

	

6517Z245 

	

6%23%438 

	

443,623,078 

table presents current and prior year data f ; °_garding the City's net assets : 

ss-T 

	

e Ac y~ 

2010 2009 

ts . . . . . __ . . . . ___ 

hTet Assets 
Invested in capital assets 

(net of related debt) 
icted- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _ 
mote,......................... 

The largest portion of the 
and land improvements, boil 
system and construction 
City uses these 
Although the 

debt must 
e 

-no 

65,300,633 
O"e-100 

1 - 

	

1190 

J26 

287AQ 519 

ended June 30, 2010, total unrestricted net assets declined by $2 
Inillion in new 

;ants the investment in c; >ital asses 

	

(e 

150,650,131 
104,838,430 
jZ2Q5i 

efore the anus are not available for future spending . 
investment in capital anus is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources to 
rovided from other sources, since capital assets themselves, cannot be used to liquidate these 

(page 67) for a detailed calculation of the City's investment in capital assets, net of 

ial portion of the City's net assets, $65.9 million, represents resources that are subject to rest 
on how they may be used by parties external to the City, $ 50.5 million (76.6%) of which of which represents 
resources restricted for capital project financing. A summary of the major components of the restricted net assets 
may be found on the face of the Statement of Net Anus, which can be found on page 18 of this r 

I activities unrestricted net 
fired by Governmental 

fled ifo 

	

anon on the past three 

3,912,088 1,481,956 52,720,127 52,664,082 

2,211,079 1,607,932 95105,384 66P08,565 
1371;95 4,058,986 ,-5 12,607,486 

24,794,355 26,200,848 188,' 38 1 

35,284,917 33,349,722 144 1- 

38,62;779 32 ,6 94,954 27' 470 
1 3,497,989 1 5,657,948 V Y - 121sqO8 
9080.161 12,871,360 lhIJQr 272) 

Current liabilities 
(excluding debt} . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 48,808,039 

slides 
{excluding de! 93,394,305 

Current debt . 9A6%500 
Nommmm debt . 11 .1- 90 
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in neta 

ts : e 

The following table presents current and prior year data regarding the City's chan 

Governmental Activ 

YI occupancy taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . 

d i serest on taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
I An of taxes . . . 

	

. . . 

Total revenues . . . . . . . . 

Expenses 
General gmerruncra . . 
Public M&Y 
Education . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

and hur 

	

i 

	

. 
ME 

Total CE 

a in P 

	

is before transfers . . . : : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

(35,0-717) 

{1 ,457,_ 51 

'1, 56} 

	

-, 7 

	

l 2,167 

	

(1,081,109) 

69,889 

	

$ 

	

21,413,394 

	

5 

	

31405,378 

	

S 

	

33a61,33 

	

$ 

	

59,3 1 

	

7 

	

S 
66,341326 732,948 857,561 

1,960,084 30,179,116 245,331 1,260,151 2,205,415 

aid from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as 
tax revenue resulting from the economic recession . 

21621302 
52,168,801 

245,946,308 236,024,500 

	

245,946,308 
26,138,843 27,229,098 

	

26,138,843 2712%098 
10,672,057 10,463,388 

	

17ZO57 10163;88 
16,245,112 16,806,140 

	

12 
7,234,167 4,375,013 

	

- 7,234,167 
13,780,6 , ' 

	

13,623,595 

	

87 
01 2A7 'z^^7 

	

01 970 f2A 

	

Q 1) 

232,771689 226,801860 
gAnno 
1168P95 1J08,1 
38Z934 

1,223,300 

	

1,026,507 
1271902 
2988;14 

2 
110%199 

273,359 

s for the year ended June 30, 2010 declined by $20.3 million (5.0%) from the prior year, 
as a result of a decline in all forms of state and federal grant assistance . 

35,879,345 387,396,980 

Total 

407,701,948 

22,581,716 

Z10104 

Total state and federal grant revenue declined by $31 .5 n-.dMon during the year, primarily as a result of the recognition 
of all state financial support for the new Newton North High School project during fiscal year 2009, however, 

kod state and federal aid also declined by 20.8% over the past year, largely as a result of reduced levels of local 
ggled to balance its resource uses with reduced levels of state 
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Economically sen ;itl%,e local revenues such as invcstmcnt income and motor vehicle excise tax revenues and 
inspectional services pennit rcvenucs continued their decline from prior year levels . 

The follomlling chart illustrates, the distribution of total current year revenues for the primary government, by major 
sourc . 

FY 2010 TOTAL REVENUE BY SOURCE 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

" PropetT Mixes 

	

" other taxes 
* 6 rants and conL ibutlons 

	

CJ Fees, tides a_nd charges for set%ricc 
" in estmew income 

	

" -zUother 

Twal expenses increased by $14.(} million or 3.G"Y" Cluring the ye;i-r . The $28.6 million c xi)cnse associated-,~xZth third 
year iml)lementation of Govenimetit :ll Accoutiting'Statldards Board Starcmcnt 45 accounted for all of the expense 
growth for the he=ar. 

	

,~ sehedtilt~ s~inutlat~.zing tlse cirmuhiu.ve impact c~f the ir~plemcntatic~n of Csi1SB St~ttenle?1t ~l-5 
«1:1 all actlZ-, iues is prc~c1 itcd on pagc 63, of tJuS report. 

'1'lic pcrcentage of total exnendjtures devoted to education, tlie (:it-y's si-gle largest categ~~r-t~ of s endirig, ren~ainzd 
constant at 58.0''1o . Public .safety and pubic works spending deckned slightly and interest or/i debt increased, its a re :~Lih 
of debt sen-ice payments related to the new North 1Ligh School project . 
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Tlhc fo,llowmg chart illustrates the distribudon of expense,, by major function for the primary government for the year 
ended -jLine 30, 2() 1 

FY 2010 TOTAL EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

" General guvertunent 

	

" Public safety 

	

O Education 
O PutIc wotks 

	

/ Hcalilt and h11n1an services " Culture 0tld rccreatirnl 
Interest c-rtl debt 

	

C7 W:lter and sewer 

Governmental activities - Govcrtmlenial activities decreased the Gin's net assets by $33 .6 million or 13.3°-,-, duri11 
tisca1 2(11() . for the reasons cited alitwe . A SLInunary of revenues and mma.jor fi-tnctional expenses is included in the 
rables presented above . In order to assist the reader ii-t understanding more completely the hill cost of the tnajrtr 
services provided by the nits within each of tl-ie broad functional classificatons identified above, r_he Staterrient of 
Activities, presented on pages 1 ̀.-) and ?(-) of this report, provides a detailed accr)unting of all Major service expenses 
mad related revenues . 

As has been the case in all year ;; since fe Cit-y has adopted this reporting model, all ;overnme~ital actII 

	

ervices, 
C:xcept for Lnspecrlonal services, rched 011 SltbSldleS from general revellLIC 

	

it-) one degree or another during fiscal vent 
?(11(x . Inspcc:tic~nal sen~;ce departnicnr __ prc~ rr:zin rcvcnoes exceeded total program expenses by $1 .9 trillion for the 
year . 

Business-qTe activities - I3ltsitless-t}~pe ;activitte , increased the Gin's net assets by $.9 million or 1 .T-V~-~ during fiscal 
yc,ar 2()1 c_i . This is hrinaanly the result of increased user clntrge regentic resulting, from tujo ilcreases in sewer rate,-; 
that were itnhletrcntcd during the fiscal year . 

A-11



As of June 30, 2010, the City's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance totaling $84.9 million, a $50.8 
decrease from the prior year reported financial position . As may be noted on page 23, the $52.3 million 

decline in the financial position of the High School Improvement Fund accounts for all of the change in financial 
position . This is the result of the fact that during fiscal year 2010, resources that were generated from the sale of 
bonds and state grant reimbursements during fiscal year 2009 were expended for purposes of completing the project. 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 the Community Preservation Fund's financial position declined slightly - 
$138,294 . This occurred as a result of a combination of a land court judgment that the City compensate the owner of 
a property taken by eminent domain during fiscal year 2009 another $452,000, and a 46.5% reduction in the amount 
of state matching funds for the community preservation program. 

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City, At June 30, 2010 the general fund reported a total fund 
balance of $19.3 million, an $85C733 (121%) deterioration from the total fund balance for the previous fiscal year . The 
unreserved and undesignated portion of fund balance, however, increased slightly to $10.9 nullion and remained 
unchanged from the prior year at 3 .4% percentage of fund revenues and other financing sources. 

To 

unting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 

provide information on near-term inflows, 
is useful in assessing the City's financing 

ilar, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources 

s of the City's governmental 
sources. Such info 

City of Newton, Massachusetts 
General Fund 

Fund Trends - Fiscal year 2010 and (5) previous fiscal years 
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Total fiscal year 2010 general fund revenues and other financing sources ~ 

da" I-". I r 

	

733% 
Motor vehicle excise taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

10122>34 

	

320s 

us . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

235,495 

	

{492,824} 

Total revenues . . . . . . . . . . . . . .,, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _ 

	

311193311,993,223 9TST% 

of bonds/notes..............:......... 

	

815,357 0.3% 

	

-3116% 
Sale of capital assets . . 

	

. . . . . . . . 

	

18,541 

	

0.0% 

	

66.4I% 
Transfers from other fiends . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

u6,045,656 

	

1 .)°f 

	

_3% 

0/1 S 

8.3 million or 2.8%, to S318.9 

Increase] ss 
Chars e 

4.4% 
1 .1°i® 
5Ass 
3171% 
-1111% 

111% 
18% 
500% 

.01% 
-31.0°I° 
-49,8% 

8310 734 

	

:7 8% 

for the majority of revenue 
ources, however, a non-recurring deferred in lieu of tax payment on a housing development property also 

contributed to the overall growth in fund revenues . Additionally, during fiscal year 2010 the City increased the local 
option hotel room occupancy tax rate from 4% to 6% effective October 1, 2009 and imposed a . 
meals tax effective January 1, 2010 . 

sensitive local revenue sources, as well as unrestricted local aid from the Commonwealth of 
continued their decline from prior year levels . 

I Intel room occupancy taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ; . . . . 1,168,095 R411 59,89E 
s............................ 382,934 Rio; 382,934 

Penalties and interest on taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . : . . 1,002,806 R3% (201A35) 
Licenses and permits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ._ . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1133582 1311 (51110) 
InterIntergovernmental....... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53,332,404 16301 (962A83) 
Charges for services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,647,343 M5513 80,524 
Fines and forefiturcs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2,084,951 0.7% 110,488 
Investment income . . . ._ ._ . ._ . . ._ . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . 887,569 0.3% 
Payments in lieu of taxes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . 3,095,059 1.0% 2,605,951 
Special assessawnts . . 74,274 Ross (2SA09) 
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Total general fund exp 
3.3% over the previous 

ansfers to other 

I I . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

S 

	

13,447,325 

	

4.2% 

	

214,413 

	

1 .6% 
Public safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

34,176,446 

	

10.7% 

	

932,891 

	

Z8% 
7;23148 115% 

-22% 
14% 
1 .1°l° 

ucation . 

	

. . .. . . . . 
TOW works. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

20,84tt!153 

	

611% 
Health and human services . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

3,785,971 

	

1 .2% 
uhurc and recreation . . . :, 

	

. . . .. . . 

	

. . . 

	

10,198,243 

	

3.2% 
is......,.................................... 49,940,948 
nation insurance . 

	

1,350,000 
Property and liability insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

326,169 
100,453 

State ammments and charges . . . . . . 

	

5,619,317 

Principal.;"; . ., 

TranTransfers to other funds . 

	

1 .706 R70 

	

OATI 

	

(5144130) 

	

VA 

accounted for $0.6 mill 

SM............................ 

ig, the single largest component of the General Fund budget, accounted for $7.7 million or 77.8% 
reflecting Newton's priority for education services . 

The second largest area of expenditure growth was interest on debt, which increased by $3.4 million or 15T81%, 
incipally to meet new debt service requirements xements on the new Newton North High School project. 

pay-as-you-go post retirement health and life benefits and the 
tiara to the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System for 1s, 

ion increase in the Commonwealth's on behalf ca 
this reporting category . Newton's con 

It h benefits for retirees 

ed by $15 naiHion or 16% for the year . 
hers' retirement fund accounted for 

A by 18% or $U) million as a result of the settlement 
d public works spending declined by 22% or $0.4 million due to reduced lave 

control expenditures that resulted from a milder winter, 

The vans of the City elected to upelement the Community Preservation Act (CPA), with a 1% surcharge on 
all 

real 
bills, in November 2001 . 

	

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the City realized $3.1 million 
fund revenue - $1.0 million or 24.0% less than total prior year fund revenue . Reduced state matching funds; a 

vestment income on temporarily 
reimbursement related on a housing project accounted for the decline in fund revenues . 
$3 .2 million for the year, $49 million of which was for open space activities ; $1 .2 milon of which was &, historic 
resources projects ; $0.8 million for community recreation ; $12 million was for community housing; and $0.1 milhon 
for administrative and support purposes . Please refer to pages 105-108 for a complete accounting of individual 
project budgets, at their legal level of control, for the July 1, 2009 -June 30, 2010 period. 

totaled $319.7 million, an increase of $9.9 million or 

- 0 7") 100.0% 

15.6% 2,460,255 5.6% 
R4% {232,1 19} -16461% 
0.1% 5.7% 
0.011 (10,056) -15131% 
11% 166,148 10% 

2.3% 901,400 16.9% 
22% 1 41(,792 

99.4% 15,248,267 5.2% 
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The high school improvements fund was established to account for major renovations to the City's Newton South 
I-ligh School and the construction of a new Newton North High School . The fund ended fiscal year 2010 with a 
$16.1 million fund balance. 

ool project architect certified substantial completion of the project and the 
ding was turned over to the City of Newton far use as a public school building for the 2010 - 2011 academic year . 

Certain site work and the demolition of the old North I ligh School building remain to be completed . 

ity's proprietary funds provide the same information found in the gave 

	

ment-wide 
, but in slightly more detail . Restricted proprietary net assets represent capital grant funds whose purposes 

for improvements to the physical infrastructure of the City's water and sewer systems. Proprietary fund 
ested in capital assets, net of related debt represents principally the City's water supply and distribution 

system and the sanitary sewer collection system . 

million at June 30, 2010 . 'This The financial position of the 
resulted from two sewer rate increases the 
the impact of a combination of failing meter readings and refunds owed to customers for prior year overpa 

utility bills 

	

A total of $219 million of be fund's net assets represent investments in capital assets 
ninon represents resources legally restricted for future sewer system capital 

. Unrestricted fund net assets, or those that are available for sewer system improvements, amount to 
on at June 30, 2010. 

The financial position of the CAYs water fund declined slightly from $29.4 million at June 30, 2010 to $210 
one 30, 2010 . This resulted Enna a reduction in water rates for the second half of the fiscal year and the planned use 

off-set the impact of increased sewer rates on utility customers . 

The (11 is currently in the process of replacing all water meters that are used fo 
billings . 

al position of the City's Internal Service Funds increased by $10 million or 17.7% to $13.3 nrillion during 
the year ended June 30, 2010 . Internal service funds are used to account for the City's self-insured group 

; workers compensation; and general liability risk exposures and to fund property insurance pre 
million in insured City buildings and contents . Detailed information on the self-insurance funds is presented 

on pages 82-85. 

.7 million of the total fund equity represents the City's investment in water system capital assets (net of 
another $18 million represents resources legally restricted for future water system capital improvements . 

tricned fund net assets were $3.5 million - approxzimately 50% less than the available balance at June 30, 2009 . 

d sewer fund 

)up health self insurance fund accounted for $1 .7 million (85.0%) of the improvement in financial 
position of the Internal Service Funds . The improvement in the financial position of the fund is the result of 
favorable claims experience in the plan during the year . June 30, 2010 the net assets of the City's Group Health Self 
Insurance Fund totaled $1a9 million - the equivalent of approximately 2.9 months of average claims experience . The 

the reported incurred but unreported claims liability is based upon an analysis of claims run-off trends 
from both health plan administrators and largely the result of increasingly timely chi ms payments to health care 
providers. 

flan of the City's workers' compensation self insurance fund recovered from prior year losses largely 
as a result of positive investment earnings on fund assets under professional management. 

	

TheJune 30,2010 fund 
if $1 .1 million provides a cushion against volatility in investment performance and extraordinary and 

aims experience, the later of which is particularly important because the City does not purchase any 
loss insurance on workers compensation progra 
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dition of the City's building insurance fund c 
estment income does not match the resources withdrawn from the fund each year for commercia 

insurance premiums . At the current rate of resource use, the fund Will no longer be available to finance b 
ithirl four years . 

ibutory retirement system increased by $21.7 million (10.8%) to 
$222 .6 million during the system's fiscal year that ended December 31, 2009, as a result of positive investment 
performance. Calendar year 2009 positive investment performance represents less than 25 .0% of the investment 
losses realized in the prior year . The City made its actuarially required contribution to the fund in full . More specific 

ion about the local retirement system may be found on pages 59-62 of this report . 

follows: 

There were no 
(0.5%) of total ap 

rioted 

governmental and business-type activities, net of 
accumulated depreciation of $1717 millOn, as of June 30, 2010, amounts to $443 .6 million . The investment in 
capital assets includes land and land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, 
infrastructure and construction in progress . 

Land and hroprovernenm . . . . . _ . . 
Buildings and improvements . . . . , - 

d equipment . . . . . . . . . . 

	

1%741669 
Infrastructure . 

	

41,037,324 
ess . . . . . . . . . . 

	

1750761011 

ion 

al fund budget of $291,743,885 ( 
roded budget of $298,047,319 amounts to 

Total supplemental appropriations 

fiscal year 2011 for completion 
June 30, 2010 . Please refer to pages 94-103 for a complete accounting of budget to actual 

heir legal level of control . 

6 VA , 

ar encumbrances and 
.2% and can be summarized as 

34 ; 5 s 14,785 $ 22,458,911 
2,431,391 2,503,680 122,696,005 128,616,926 
2,405,243 2,634,295 22,151,912 20,369,297 

57,100,909 54,815,678 98,138,233 94,316,113 
3,049,917 1 71126,017 

6 ; 979 ?d ; S a) ?IR alk F any 19-A 

Amm- 

Snow and ice control . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 2,002,000 
Capital outlay and improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,914,061 
Pubic safety salaries & overtone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,112,126 
Public building maintenance Be operation . . . . . . . . . . 452,124 
Bond sale casts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 115,243 
All other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 707 PqO 
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Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $69 .9 million or 18.7%. Major capital asset events 
ing 2010 included the following : 

type activity net capital assets increased by $5.0 million, principally due to the ongoing water meter 
replacement program, but also due to water system improve men 
Resources Authority grants and interest free loans. 

pital amen (net) increased by $610 million, principally as a result of construction 
orth high School facility . The new North High School facility has been 

as of June 30, 2010 because the building was not put in use as a 
school building until September 7, 2010, the first day of the 2010 - 2011 school year . 

rnmental ac 
progress at me new 
classified as construction 

Additional information on the 

Lave ill 
suet 

At June 30, 2010 the million (33.4%) from 

erm debt of the City's exi 

1 2010, the City had total long term debt outstanding of $216.8 million, $187 .7 million 
nd $29.1 million for business-type activities . There were no bond anticipation notes 

2010 . All debt is a general obligation of the City, although water and sewer debt service 
payments are made from the resources of the enterprise funds and community preservation fund project debt service 
payments are made from resources of the community preservation fund. 

City of Newton, Massachusetts 
General Obligation Bonds and Notes Outstanding - by Purpose 

Governmental Act`-v®ojes 

found on pages 49-51 of this report . 

Activ' - ŝ 

debt will be repaid in full by the yea 

A 

Total bonds ; d nom 

	

") 

	

S 

	

29,161,750 

	

$ 

	

30,259,834 

S 

8.5 million in new bonds and retired $12.6 
million in existing bonds. 

ed to $1?4 million or 4.5% of fund revenues and other 
or 38.7% 

ease of $15.0 

-58 of this report . In addition, debt 
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According to the City's 
a 

property was $787,150 . 

The City of Newton's fiscal year 2011 general fund operating budget, as amended through this date amounts to 
million. This represents an increase of $11 million or 0.7% from the final fiscal year 2010 budget total. A total of 
$2.6 million of the increased fiscal year 2011 budget represents the City's initial contribution to a "Rainy Day" 
Stabilization Fund . 

ic Factors and Next Year's 

to the U.S Census Bureau, the median family income for the City for calendar year 2005 was 
$124,893 . This compares favorably with the U.S median family income of $55,831 The City's per ca pi 
income was $55,891 compared with $25,035 for the nation as a whole. 

According to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Unemployment Assistance, the 
unemployment rate for the City as June 30, 2010 was 6.5%, which compares favorably with the statewide 
unemployment rate of 910! and a national unemployment rate of 9.5% for this same period . 

for Information 

the City's finances . 
ion should be 

of Assessors, the 2010 median value of a single family home in Newton was 
cial property was $728,200 ; and the median value of industrial 

ort is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for all of those with an interest in 
ons concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 

) the Comptroller, City of Newton, 1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton, 
a.gov. 
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CITY OF NEWI'ON, MASSACHUSETTS 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

30, 2010 

Ital 

4,40: 
492^7 
Wa8 
*A3 

$46,048 
"ggoo 

3,204 wl 
2 -, 

2,~ 

214; 3 

4,402,004 
sps"o 
647,248 
45,493 

14,156,811 
90;00 

3,426,654 
2,305 

53,895 

33 R'l 

70714 

	

70,714 

86,032,133 
64,678,125 
709M4 
541,241 
39,619 

	

461,801 

Sao 
No 

6,371,488 
10,438,056 
14J76P2 
6YtO7 
3J12X7 
495,946 

1,638,350 
581,517 
30212 

9,460,500 
105,000 
2PIX9 
IM1145 

,,) nno 

614,921 6,986,409 
1,407,061 11,845,117 
106Y4 I4,4VJ66 104483 

6,744,487 
3>12X7 

1,210,694 1,696,640 
165,381 1,803,731 

- 
581,517 

376,908 67$P70 
4,371,395 13,831,895 

- 
105,000 

30,389 2,83IP8 
1,011,345 
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See notes to bo 

'0 
1018P5 

965,920 
POA40 
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CITY OF NEWTON, MASSAC'HU-- T7-
STATEMENT OFACTIVIT' S 

27,263,699 4,941,378 
2368,544 514,747 
1m9x4 310M1 
86g8 22j10 

245,946,308 6,727,663 

13272 

9 

04 4,814,799 
129,297 

r. 

11,738 $ 

	

(2,208,060) 
- (928,079) 

(3,924,343) 
(5,237,677) 
(2,110,743) 
(4,036,742) 

(221108) 
(22M2 ;171) 
lAoxi 
1108) 

(18U33,812) 

"66"76 2J0509 p1mul) 
,763,747 (2,763j47) 
,685,880 157,833 481 VXTW%) 
122a44 22P72 (2,100,168) 

421,190 113,836 339,120 AJA8,4) 
91 - 7,447 362A13 POX3) 
336,, 198g9 {1M95} 

{207x8} 522P3 PANS) 
1R1R2 210I81 (50%R2) 

W (36 n . 
110-- 
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Net assets - beginning of year {as rests 

Net assets - end of y 

	

u 

CITY OF NEW 
STATEMENT OF ACfIVI 

Total general revenues and transf 

qyi 

232,774,689 232,774,689 

2;88,314 2,288,314 
9,860,220 9,860,220 
1,168,095 
382,934 382,934 

1,026,507 1,026,507 
3,270,902 3,270,902 

5091;87 5191;87 
9Y 434,313 

27,123 
1,752,802 

21 n^ - 11,92 215,W3777,1086 

(33,641,856) 882,167 (32,759,689) 

r- 112 f)17 6 1 -- - ,L7 I I AAA7 ?7Q 
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T( 

U 

	

kNCES 

TAMFnDm.-

To-rAT,IIABIJITIJ 

7,51 
94_° 
5.03 
3M;75 
33,861 
n"5 

pla7 

(-ql 

IM699 

FE ' lool 

77 - TS 

15,783,210 
441,993 

2,864,447 

----- ----- ------

3% 

53,895 

MAC 
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Capital was {net of accumulated depr 
financial resources an 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE CKnTRNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Wwr amen an not available to pay for current period expendit . Ts and, 
therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds- 

	

23,111,493 

See nun w basic 

herefore, are not reported in 

ciard activities (page 

andir - long-term debt, 
tit due . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

(IAM050) 

Internal service funds are used byroanagement to account for health insurance, 
workers'corryensation, bandit . insurance o .d" 

	

ins 

	

-, : .ice acti ',ies . The assets 
and liabilities of the internal service funds are reported as governments] activities in the 
statement of net awe - 

	

139%199 

84,851,404 

3&350,833 

(187,685,300) 
(40,000) 

(910,000) 
Q8L848) 
(81535970) 
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144 

b,cAD,656 

(IMp3) 

2,-' 

U8 
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to government 
the financial resources 
impact on net assets, Also, I- ) 

and balances - total 

CITY OF NEWI'ON, MASSACHUSETTS 
RECKWILIATICiN OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNME NTAL FUNDS 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

V he loss on 02 disposal of _ ., 

	

._ 
financial 

ro from the change in 
sed capital assets 

- statement of revenues, s 
)j , the recognition of revenue -,). 
d personal property; motor vehic! 

. This amount represents the net change i 

Scare expenses reported in the 

	

t ~ ' ctivitics do not require 
financial resources and, .- . a , t 

	

' --wated in the gov--nment 
'Mass amounts represent the 

	

"t cha 

	

i 

	

:c 

	

s: 
T tal liabilities 

:to BAN) 

government 

of goven 

	

I activities {f _ ° a -, 

al resources . fund 
types 

	

-counts rector 
Q ( fbr between the 

I 

	

vides current financial re c 
of 

	

principal of long-term debt consumes 
ion, however, has any 

a 

	

funds report the effect of issuance costs, 

long-wrnt debt, 
until due . This amount 

of current 
ds . 

(50,765,862) 

{18M4) 

(41006) 

(25,548,000) 
8,548,500 

(154,911) 

(1400a 00) 
191,709 

(28,011119) 
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Current : 
General government : 

Legislate 

I 
Debt or 

I , 
T ate 

See notes to base ial S1 

AL7 . 

CITY OF NEWFON, b4ASSACIPSETTS 

WMI GKOWOO) 

2,273,264 

	

2,273,264 $ 

	

2,296,523 
646,303 763,914 763,914 

ono 82,38c) 

162,988 

(26,OUO _2451 -- wom 
(5,200,429) (7,929,267) 

	

8,242,973 

10,054-027 

	

1 0.05A ()27 

0 $ 

	

?.1" -An $ 

	

10,367,733 $ 

	

8,242,973 

- 5,200 5,200 
2,145,078 4,100,126 1,415,013 2,685,113 
140,050 722,588 92,722 629,866 

2,830 2P4 2,400 430 

345 - 36,545 
52,929 15,640 488,939 

2,989,521 3, 48,191 3,005,175 
1,745,600 1' . - 1,379,612 

1,055,000 
1, - 1,055,000 
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So nc 

" ---ki 

Total 

Tc- - 

1:.-8,63l umxg n5MM3 
182,545 455,783 

98 
222,362 

153,075 

	

4, 

	

321 
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CITY ( 

	

P 

	

)N,1 

	

SSA 

	

LTSETT"S 
Y Flools 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

3,283,- 2_-,,I,- 6,075,501 
863,060 747,569 1A10g9 3J46A 

17$48,082 8,662,740 26,210,822 
150,000 150,000 300,000 

385,446 347,502 -2,948 
19,198 32,633 

	

51,831 
(484,607) (538,894) (1,023,501) 

2,7; 

(155,983) 

	

.. 215,` ) _ 802,302 

460215 

1,318,845 (436k78) 882,167 1,973,056 

- - .11 

	

1. 1 

	

- 

	

It il,t 141 

	

1 1 I)pq t d2 
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NET W WI 

	

11, 

Iriv 

P- 

vir, k uy,,5a) TO P""°. C 

L9,198 

53 

1,017,807 

	

1,907,626 

109 
MI W 
1 
4 

N-F,TE'A9HFROMC 7 1 -T --l 

	

$ 

	

53 
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ASSETS 

'hematiAve 
Interest and diviaencis 

of 

11 = W 

Total liabilities 

See notes to basic financial statements . 

CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
DS 

STATE 

	

.NT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

WIT 3a 2010 

9 
39,187,265 
30,344,224 
17,727,076 

49 

370,710 

229 1 , j 
--------- 

	

------------- - 

9,942 

34,361 

for pension benefits and other purposes . . . . - . . . . . 

	

72? 5R4-')A 

	

$ 

	

Q`722 1 '3 

1228a71 2,426,344 
5,979,786 

- 
25,700 

OAK 

500 217,624 
424 

1,443,934 
764,362 

RAJ 

2.426 144 
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CITY 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCI 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR. 

tes to basic financial statements . 

ITICRU 

56,536 

- 
717,036 

717,036 

Net investment income (loss} . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

overnmental . . . 

rom other systems . . . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

TOTAL ADDITIONS . . . . . . . 

Pension 
st Fund 
12/31/05) 

717,036 

31,276 
458 ,574 

489,8 

283,772 

70 

22,586,2242 $ 

Contributions : 
Employen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . __ . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 13,533,100 
Plan member . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,744,725 
Private donations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21.237,825 

Net investment income : 
Net appreciation/ (depreciation) in fair value of investments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24,170,379 
Interest . . . . . . . . . . ____ . . . . . . . . ___ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ___ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7,148,783 

Total investment income (loss} . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31,319,162 

Less investment expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . _ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (LIQ9; i2,650) 

I 
Retirement benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29,126,639 
Refunds of contributions & transfers to other systems 1,743,311 
Administration expense . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 265,623 
Educational scholarships & awards . . . . . . 

DEDUG11ONS S................................................. 31135373 

S............................................ 21,650,009 

200.936, 233 
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See 

FIRAD NET ASSETS 
seats, net 4 r ' A Wt 

411,334 $ 

1,799 

Commonwealth 
Development 

QwWjQUVj_ __Authoj-T AL__ _ 

391,214 
461,801 

79150 

, -IM8 

	

3.61°" . . 

60140 

7 975 3^". 

6%03 
3,725 

We - 

	

5A"' 

471,467 
394,939 
461,801 

2,086,712 

258,924 2,124,199 
R7 316 

	

3,360,123 

3aA940 $ 5,484,322 
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ty of 
year term, and a twenty-
Aldermen are elected at large, a 
approved by the voters of the City on November 2, 1971, and became effective 

I who 
serves a in, - 

mbets of me Bond of 
The current 

the City have been prepared in actor 
hcable to governmental units . 

I statements present the 
tally accountable or integrated . 

Th ! Wowing cc 
is therefore blended and reported as H A were pan of the 

a and 

componen 

or; two members a 

of the System, and one member appointed by the other four members . The System is present 
nd is reported as a pennon trust fund in the fiduciary funds financial statements . 

vial statement . The System issues a publicly available unaudited financia 
bushed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts' Publi 

That report may be obtained by contacting the System located at 10 
-.ci, u-°tts 02459, 

wing component units are discretely present 
ificance of their relationships with the City . 

ts . 

1975 purse 

	

nt to Chapter 705 of the Massachusetts 
nd moderate income families, t1- 

	

---ly and handicapped residents of 
ty's Director of Planning and Z 

subject to confirmation approval by a majority of the Bond of Aldermen . The Authority don not issue a separate 

of the nature 
ascribed below are considered major 

established for the management of the Newton Commonwealth 
Hill Country Club, The Foundation is governed by a fifteen member 

o confirmation approval by a majority of the Board of Alsicirmen . 
I by the Mayor . Complete audited finaucia' 

ommoriwealth Avenu , IN 
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axis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting 

jot full ction/ service pro 
nd, therefore, are clearly identi 
; property and liability insurance ; heap 

state assessments and charges costs have been allocated to major functions /programs in order to 
present a more accurate and complete picture of the cost of City services, Program revenues inClUde (a) fees, fines, and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the major programs and (b) grants arid contributions that are 

of a particular program, Revenues that are not classified as 
revenues, 

cial Statements : Ttic fund financial sta 
ded component unit . Separate statements for c 

ed . The emphasis of fund financial s 
in their respective governmental fund and pro 

reported in a separate column . 

are specifically asso 
!tirement benefits ; wor 

a non-profit organization, was established in 2005 to preserve the 
tares, The farm, building, and structures are owned by 

tcments may be obtained by wri Comp 
office located at 303 

of net assets and the statement of actin 
blended component units, These statements include the financial activities of the 

Eliminations have been made to minimize double counting of internal 

h taxes, intergovernmental revenues, an 
by fees charged to external parties . 

Internal service funds of the City (which provide services primarily to other funds of the City) are presented, in summary 
funds financial statements . Since the principal users of the internal set-vices are the City's 

s of be K 

	

A service funds am presented in the governmental activities column 
eL The I of these services are allocated to the appropriate function/program 

public safety, education, public 

	

health and human services, and cultute and recreation) in the 

d wi 
s up essentially equal 

governmental subsidies and investment 

rincipal ac 
All revenues and expenses not 

ed as nonopera 
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The City 
sewerage . 

major governmental funds : 

many operating land . It accounts for all financial resources of the government, except 
be accounted for in another fund . 

ounts for the 1% local property tax surcharge that the voters of the City 
approved in November of 2001 for open space, historic resource and affordable housing purposes . The Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts currently matches (in the subsequent fiscal year) local surcharge revenue on a percentage basis that can change 
annually. 

of Aldermen has appropriation authority over 
all 

community preservation funds ; however, 
all 

appropriation 
recommendations must originate with the nine member community preserva 

High School Improvements Fund : This fund accounts for major improvements that are being made to the City's two high 
schools, and are being financed by the sale of long term debt and state grants . 

The non-major governmental funds cons 
and presented in the non-majorgovernmenta 
describes the general use of these fund types : 

ceeds co 
projects funds) that are restricted by law or administrative ac 

s the following major enterprise funds : 

Notes to the Basic Financ 
al Year Ended June 30, 2010 

funds that are aggregated 
on the governmental funds financial statements . The following 

ue sources (other than permanent funds or capital 
for specified purposes . 

account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital 
those financed by enterprise and permanent funds) . 

Thepermanenifindis used to account for financial resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not 
may be used for purposes that support the governmental programs . 

counts for the operation and maintenance of be City's sanitary sewer collection and disposal system. 
arged an annual assessment by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MV,/RA) for dispos 

Water Fund : This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City's water supply and 
The Sty is charged an annual assessment by the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority 

d types : 

ystem, 
ter supply, 

Internal Service Funds : These funds account for group health, workers' compensation, building and general liability insurance 
protection to City departments on a cost reimbursement basis, I 

Pension Trust Fund : This fund is used to account for the activities of the System, winch accumulates resources for defined 
benefit pension benefit payments to qualified employees and retirees and their survivors . This fund is excluded from the 
City's government-wide financial statements . 
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are used to account for resources legally held in trust for the benefit of persons and 
I Since such funds can not be used for purposes of providing City services, they are excluded 

ernment-wide financial statements, 

pendent not-for-profit org 
public school student activities . This fund 

are reports 
are reported as other financ 

C . 

	

Assets, Liabilities and Equity 

ti 

eld on behalf of parties other than the City, such as state and federal 
which the City collects private donations ; the Woo Fire MOO and 

the City's government-wide financial statements . 

ant-wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements : The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary 
ial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time that liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the 
related cash flows take place . Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving 

aloe in exchange, include property, motor excise and hotel room occupancy taxes, 
On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year on which the taxes are levied . 

Derived tax revenues, such as hotel room occupancy taxes, that result from assessments imposed by the City on exchange 
transactions are recognized when the underlying exchange occurs . Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is 
recognized in the fiscal year in which 

all 
eligibility requirements have been satisfied . 

nd enterprise fund financial statements, all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board 
d on or prior to November 30, 1989, are applied, unless those pronouncements conflict with or 

S, 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements : Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when 
measurable and available. The City considers revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, For this purpose, the 
City considers revenues to be available if they am collected within sixty days after year-end . Property taxes, motor excise taxes, 
charges for service, investment income, and in hen of tax payments are considered to be susceptible to accrual . 

ts, entitlements, and donations is recognized when all eligibility requirements have been satisfied and they are measurable 
allable . 

orded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long term 
compensated absences, landfill post closure monitoring costs (and other environmental liabilities) and claims and 

which an recognized as expenditures only to the extent that they have matured . General capital asset acq 
. Proceeds of general long term debt and acquisitions under capital 

restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, 
estricted resources as they are needed . 

stments 
sh and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short term 
ity of three months or less from the date of acquisition . Investments are carried at fair value . 
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Property taxes : The City is responsible for assessment and collection of 
all 

property taxes, The Board of Assessors determine 
the estimated fair value of 

all 
real and personal property, subject to the property tax, each January 1, Taxes are then levied on 

each property based upon the budget that is adopted by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen net of the amount of state aid and 
other revenues . Property taxes are due in quarterly installments - August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1, and subject 
to penalties and 140D interest if not paid by the due date . Taxes due on August 1 and November 1 are estimated based upon 

and May 1 
ithin 

the prior year tax bill since the tax rate is generally not finalized until late November or December . The 
tax bills we adjusted to reflect the actual tax levy . 

	

It is the City's 
one year of the date that the tax is levied . 

Motor vehicle excise taxes : Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the City and are 
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy . The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles 

the fair values of those vehicles . The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1000 

rided Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments 
Permanent fund cash and cash equivalents and investments and cash and cash equivalents associated with certain development 
and water and sewer utility deposits we classified as restricted, Other assets are classified as restricted when their use is 
restricted by third-p" covenants . 

e 

cawsbles 
AD trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for doubtful collections . Outstanding personal property 
taxes, motor excise taxes and parking violations that are three or more years old have been classified as uncollectible for 
financial reporting purposes . 

Band upon an analysis of water and sewer receivable activity over the past three years, 8% of outstanding water and sewer 
user charges receivable have been assigned to an allowance for doubtful collections . Real estate taxes receivable are secured by 
tax liens, and therefore are considered 100% collectible . 

Intergovernmental Various federal and state grants for opera A purposes are applied for and received annually . 
For non-expenditure driven grants, receivables are recognized as soon as 

all 
eligibility requirements have been met . For 

expenditure driven grants, receivables are recognized when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other eligibility 
requirements have been met, 

Inventories 
The amount 
recorded as expen 

3 we billed quarterly band on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties 
are not paid by the respective due date . Water and sewer hens are processed in December of every year 
a hen on the property owner's tax bill . Water and sewer charges and related liens are recorded as 

al year of the levy, Unbilled amounts we estimated based upon actual billing amounts subsequent to 

pries is not material to the government-wide and fund financial statements of the City and therefore is 
at the time of purchase . 

red capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
the date of donation . 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the amen or materially extend the assets' useful 
lives are not capitalized . 
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Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, in 
more than a single year, Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method aver be following estimated useful lives ; 

Inter-fund Transactions 
Inter-fund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers . Loans are reported as 
receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination in the government-wide statements . Services provided, 
deemed to be at market or near market rams, are treated as revenues and expenditures /expenses, Bet 
when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. AD 

transfers and are reported "yon" in be Rind financial statements . Transfers 
ed in the conversion to the government-wide financial statements, while transfers 

between governmental and proprietary funds are reported "net" . 

e 
ed revenue at the governmental fund financial statement level represents receivables that do not meet the available 

terion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting . 
Deferred revenue, if appropriate, is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wick (full accrual) financial 
statements . 

P 
externally imposed by creditors 
through constitutional provisions or e 

received from the U.S . Department of Education, the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts' Department of Education, and various private donors for public education services . 

7-20 years 
20-50 yens 

ears 

Net asses are reported as restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either 
tributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law 

ling legislation . Net anus have been reported as restricted 
for 

be following 

eeds of bonds, notes and grants that are restricted for specific capital 

res di 
ble housing under the Community Preservation program, 

,000 or more and an estimated useful life of 

for open space ; his 

ants amounts accumulated from Massachusetts School Building Authority (MSBA) for future 
e costs associated with school construction, This amount will be amortized ove 

Other specific purposes represent restrictions placed on assets by 

Perpetual funds - non-expendable represents amounts held in trust for which only 
expended. 

cable represents amounts held in oust for -which the expenditures are tea 

be 
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Fund balances have been designated for the following: 

0 

ows to t 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

balances are reserved for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally 
es for a specific future use . Designations of fund balance represent management plans that are 
balances have been reserved for the following purposes : 

brances and continuing appropriations represent amounts obligated under purchase orders, contracts, or 
or expenditure that are being carried forward to the ensu 

Debt service represents amounts accumulated from Massachusetts Sch 
payment of long-term debt service costs associated with school construction . 
the next 17 fiscal years . 

Capital stabilization funds represent amounts accumulated for future capital project Tina 

Perpetual permanent funds represent amounts held in must for which only investment earnings may be expended, 

Other specific purposes represent restrictions placed on assets by outside parties . 

Subsequent year's expenditures represent amounts appropriated by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen for the 
fiscal year 2011 budget. 

term debt 
Government-wide and Propnets a Fund Finan6ial Statements - Long term debt is reported as a liability in the government wide and 
proprietary fund statements of net assets . Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method, Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium or discount . 

Governmental Funds .I,-inan(ial Statements - The face amount of governmental funds long term debt is reported as other financing 
sources in the Governmental Fund Financial Statements . Bond premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond 

aunts are reported as other financing uses . Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds, are 
reported as General Government (financial administration) expen 

Investment Income 
Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and non-major governmental funds is legally assi 

Fund, unless otherwise directed by legal or contractual pr 

Investment income from proprietary funds is retained in the funds . 

Compensate 
Employees are granted vacation leave, special leave (sick, religious observance, personal leave), and enhanced longevity 
benefits based upon collective bargaining agreements and city ordinance . These benefit costs are accrued when earned in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements . A liability is reported in the governmental funds only if the 
benefit had been earned atJune 30 as -a result of a retirement, resignation, or termination, and the benefit is expected to be 
paid immediately after the start of the new fiscal year . Vacation pay is classified as a current liability, while special leave and 
school enhanced longevity benefits are classified as non-current liabilities . 

s 
In addition to providing pension benefits and as more fully described in Note 12, the Ci 
coverage for current and future retirees and their spouses . 
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We o 
nation of basic financial statements in confornnty with GA-AP requires management to make estimates and 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenditures /expenses during the fiscal 
year . Actual results could vary from estimates that were used . 

7roral Column 

0 2 - Stewar 

Notes to the 
Fiscal Year Ended June 

column presented in the government-wide financial statements represents 

I column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate Financia 
not the equivalent of consolidated financial information . 

ability 

vi al finance laws of me Commonwealth of Massachusetts require that the Mayor and Board of Aldermen adopt a 
balanced budget each fiscal year . The City Charter requires that the Mayor submit a recommended budget to the Board of 
Aldermen and that the Board adopt the budget, with or without amendments, within forty-five days following the clay the 
budget is received, The Board of Aldermen may approve, reduce or reject any biz 
majority vote, but may not increase an appropriation without the concurrence of the Mayor, Annual approprian 
recommended and approved for the General Fund and Community Preservation Fund for personal services (salaries and 

(supplies and services), debt service and capital outlay/improvements, and fringe benefits . A singl 
line appropriation budget is recommended and voted for the Newton Public Schools . 

Amendments to the original budget ; transfers between municipal departments ; and transfers between departmental 
appropriation units require prior approval of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, and in the case of a transfer from one 
department to another, the approval of the head of the department from which funds are being transferred is also required . 

The Comptroller's Office has responsibility for making certain that the budget is executed in accordance with the plan 
approved by the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, and monthly appropriation status reports are 
Board. Budgetary control is exercised on a line item basis for all municipal departments and transfers between line ite 
within departmental appropriation units require advance approval of the Comptroller . Encumbrance accounting is used as an 
additional control measure . Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance and do not 

pen 'tutee or liabilities since goods and services have not been received. 

bligated annual appropriation balances generally lapse at year-end, it is the City's policy to continue certain 
the following year under certain limited circumstances . These are limited to amounts voted as special 

ppropriations {generally capital outlay and improvements), capital maintenance funds, property tax revaluation 
dad in the annual budget for settlement of collective bargaining contracts that have not 

An annual budget is adopted in conformity with the guidelines described above . The on 
and Community Preservation Fund budgets authorized $291,743,885 and $8,319,916 
continuing appropriations), respectively, i 
and Bond of Aldermen authorized supplemental appropria 
totaling $65035344 and $2,728,838, respectively, for total budgets of $298,047,319 and $11,04,831 respect 

al fiscal year 2010 General Fund 
es and 

ear, the Mayor 
nity Preservation Fund 

A-46



Total General Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds were $29Q671122, and $5§77,45 in appropriation balances 
were carried forward into fiscal year 2011 to support encumbrances and continuing appropriations . A total of $881,022 of this 

fated for the settlement of outstanding collective bargaining contracts . 

i 
appropriation balances were carried forward into fiscal year 2011 to support encumbrances and continuing appropriations . 

CITY 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

S 

servation Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds were $2,793,475, and $6,836,539 in 

onciliation 

Allowed for purposes of preparing the financial statements on a budgetary basis differ from those used 
to present financial statements in accordance with GAAR A reconciliation of the budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for 
the General Fund and Community Preservation Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 are presented below : 

Budgetary basis as reported on the statement of 
and changes in fund 

balance - budget and actual . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Ad ~ustments 
Net change in recording 60-day receipts . . 

	

. . . . . . . 

	

. . . 
Net change in recording tax refunds payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
To record activity for landfill closure subsidy . . . . . . . . . . . . _ 

Of payments . . . . . 

	

- . . . . . . To record activity of 
Net change in collective bar 

other revenues . . . . . . 
in recording other expenditures- 

Summary of Deposit and Investment 

n the statement of revenues, 
in fund balances- . .,,- . . . - _ 

	

$ 

Investments 

Community 
nervation Fund 

00 (Excluding the Pension Trusl Fund) 
The municipal finance laws of the Camnmnwealth authorize the City to invest temporarily idle cash in bank term degas 
certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government, with maturities of one year or 
less ; U.S, treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more than 90 days ; money market accounts ; and the 
state treasurer's investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust 

and 

es Expenditures Expenditures 

28498%467 3 2,791,954 

823,318 
(314,795) - 

77,498 77,498 
WaMAR 28,008,442 

1,169,091 
(881,707) 

(199,643) 452POC 

311 .non 923 $ 317 QR? All > 3.243 954 
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a 

Ile 
regulations . The Treasurer of the 
vale of pool shares . 

laws allow the City to invest private purpose trust funds in securities other than mortgages or collateral 
loans that are legal far the investment of funds of savings banks under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts . 

Investments for the City are reported at fair value . 

ash and short term investment pool that is available for use by 
all 

funds with unrestricted cash and 
m 

- 
eats . The deposits and investments of private purpose and pensions trust funds are held separately from those of 
itv bands . 

mm:ar ry 

The City's investments at June 30, 2010 are presented below. All investments are presented by investment type, with debt 

- .- . . . . ~ - - 

	

$ 

Corporate bonds . . . . . . . . . . . 
Money market mutual funds . . . . 
Mutual bond funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

it, . . . . . . . . 
Is . . . . . . . . . 

Total investments . . 

3 .1 . 

s . . . . . . . . . . 

ustodid we 
d uncollaterahzed . 

Fair 
Value 

8,288,036 
14,010 

241,985 
41 A00 

accordance with applicable state law,,, and 
I is the same as the fair 

oats may not be recovered . The 
010, $71,922,867 of the City's bank balance of 

4,162,198 $ 

	

355,307 

	

2,948,577 
845,477 207,688 637,789 
375A91 

	

25,219 205,101 145,171 
1,716,071 

	

1,716,071 

	

- 

17%068 179, 
597,349 334,201 263P58 

76,239,449 76,239,449 

NO 

A-48



Investments - Interest 

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment, The City does not have a poky for interest rate risk of debt securities . 

risk hot investments is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure 

of the counterparty, the City will not be able to 
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party . The City does not 
have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments . As of June 3Q 201Q $T7nj33 of the City's investments of $92,700,534 
were uninsured, not registered in the name of the City and exposed to custodial credit risk as follows : 

Investments - 

U.S . Treasuries...... 
U.S. Agencies . . . . , . 
Corporate bonds, . . . . 
Money market mutual funds . . . . . . . . . 
Mutual bond funds . . . -- . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

ides . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
al funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Certificates of deposit ., . . . . . 

Debt Secu 

40,236 $ 

1102986 
375,490 

1,008,577 
179,068 

	

179168 
3,755,630 

14P10 
59TY9 

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other count 
cos not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities . As of June 30, 20 

stments in debt securities are as follows : 

scale of Moody's and Standard and Poor's (national credit rating o 

Held by 

867,323 
1,02>6 
375,190 

will not fulfill As ob 
0, the credit quality ratings of the 

100,310 $ 

	

J -) $ 

104,009 

	

$ 

	

j o0 '% 1 n 

	

. 

	

__ 7 1 an 

	

- 

	

83,787 

1,716,071 
179,068 

Corporate bonds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . SAO 
[Money market mutual funds . .: . . 1,716,071 
Mutual bond funds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 179,068 
Certificates of deposit . . . . . . . . . . . . 597,349 

pools. . . . . . . 76,)3 9 AAO 
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in 7W Fund (The System) 

in now 10), include a combination of public and private real estate 
limited partnership investments, which represents 13.7% of the Pension Fund's total investments . The structure, risk profile, 

flity of these investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments . 
of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value can be 
ion between the parties to a sales transaction . The City has determined the value of these 

Uscurs, based upon independent year end appraisals . 

The Systc 
debt securities 

s - Custodial Credit 

Custodial credit risk for deposit 
The System does not have a po 
to custodial credit risk. 

Total debt see 

ant Trust (PRIT) meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance 
lations . Ile Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee and provides regulatory 

of is the same as the fair value of the City's position in pool shares . 

December 31, 2009 are presented below . All investments are presented by investment type, with 
anted by maturity. 

the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System's deposits may not be recovered . 
custodial credit risk of deposits . As of December 31, 2009, the System is not exposed 

Total other investments . . . . 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
2010 

s............... 

17 1 7?7 AM 

estment 

200,049 $ 200,049 
39,187,265 39,187,265 
287741 ', 2.877.4 

42,261729 $ 

131,889,445 
19,750,048 
11591176 
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i 
estrr. 

	

'it . The System's policy is that at least 15%, but no more than 30% of the portfolio must be invested in fired 
S. 

- Custodial Credit Risk 

to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments . The cus 

pooled funds as opposed to individual seen 
reW 

of CC 
ratings of the System's debt securities are as follows ; 

f Moody's and Standard and Poor's 

ecuri6es will adversely affect the 

to a debt security wi 
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eivables 

2010, rccebables for the individual major governmental funds 
in the aggregate, including applicable allowance ,, for amounts esInand to be uncoUccuble, are as follows : 

8 $ 

	

(290,199) $ 
9 

	

2,890>,319 
4,632,467 

	

"632J6 
1 

45,493 

	

45,493 
6,048 

	

846,048 
566,653 

Real estate tax deferrals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ., . . . 

unity preservation surcharges . . . . . . . . 
Charges for services . . . . . . . . . 
Special assessments . . . 

Intergovernmental, 

C_ ASS 

Allowance 
f 

Un " 

r"I 

liens . . _ . . . . . . . . . . . ._ 

	

. . . 

	

,,, 

	

,, _ 

	

$ 

	

455,783 

	

$ 
a . . . 

	

14,461,630 (1,150,967) 13,310,763 

al service an 

s........................... 

Departmental and other- . . . - - _ . . . . . . . . . ln'151124 (2111535) 
Intergwomr 
Loans....,.....,.....�..........,.............. 22,647 

)1 , 
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Notes to the Bade 
Fiscal 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that we not c( isidwed to be 
; liabilities of the current period . Atjune 30, 2010, the various components of ( 

	

d revenue reported 

Real estate and personal property taxes . . . . 
Real esf 

	

:e 

	

deferrals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

1896119 
4,627,580 

19,029 

r -memo {COmmurn 
n rental (other saw and F c 

been recorded in the Ffigh Soho ' 

	

r( 
been recognized as revenue in the comers ,racial statements. 

Governentq , 

3,a 3, 99 
Z896019 

High School project . The , ant amou t 
d anount, The City has rec ' 

	

` 

	

.',2'8, 

	

E such 
for the remair-A b I 

	

OL 

re 
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Eh no , 

rid ' 

ental ac for the fiscal ye; 

ri 

	

intenance and operations . . 

Ed, 
Stn 
tin 

1A L 

N C, 

I C 

I 
10,825,652 
IA77996 
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tal assets `am-
W, ar 

na d 

	

mclawd : 

rv,]~ 

A-55



iior 

Note 6 - Inter-fund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 

fiscal year en 

General Fund 
General Fund 

	

Scovell education - private purpose trust fund 
Total due from fiduciary funds 

of state chapter 
of fiscal year 2011 sewer receipts . 

bursements . 

follows : 

_it blo- . ., 

	

- 

	

J 

	

maj( - -( 

	

_rnn .-mal fund 
G nc ral Fund 

	

Strc( : it . 

	

3verrierits - non mi ;or I Dv = : . ..nQ fund 
Sewer - sewer major enterprise fund 
Total due from other funds 

6,117 f4l 
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Note 7 - Short-Term b 

Short term debt may be aUthOri 

r the fiscal year end 

issued to fund current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through the 
(I'AN's), or to finance capital 

of permanent long-term debt, through the issuance of bond (I 

has no short term debt outs 2010, and did not issue or robe any short term debt during the Fiscal 
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I 
A renoval 

)0 
I .and amp&i 

renovp6aT 
INUSM60V 
I%bhc WOE s 
Street light im 
land acdul5iti 

coast, uc 
SAM new consm 
Sc 

	

A mnovxmn 
I 

	

, menr . 
wwkS L,-; 

	

1. - 
A new consm in 

	

, - 
adores . : : . . . . . . . . . . 0 () 

my rmovs 
renovaHons . . . . , 

hoof at1W 
Fire station renovation 

tin design. 
I 

0~ 

Un 
NIodL -
SO )I 

I 
I'Mc , 

of up to 
-- of the law is designated as hein 
VA" 

	

The City's long term debt at_ji-ine 30, 7~10 along 
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2014 

242 
2023 

2 - ?5 
2' 
2 '7 

2031 

2034 

2036 
2037 

7,511,300 
7,526,000 

2018 7,340,800 
2019 7,410,600 

7,31 

6,985,nOO 
7a7 l 

with the Massachusetts Water P Hution Abatement Pust 
of the City='s remaining sanity 

term of the loa 

	

. At June 30, 20)1(), a balance of $1,307 
,554 and an interc a 

	

' 

	

* ' 

	

of $39,944 have been recorded in the general 

I obhga 
servation ; $1,10 

; $500,000 for fire equipment; and $453,000 for 

6,208,151 
5,953,353 
5,677,028 
5,376,233 
5,070,163 
4,761,315 
4,461,813 

15,593,065 
15,305,664 
13,936,313 

I 

10,340,663 
9j 5c 
8J76, 

2181,395 
2,676,3 70 

	

7,1 
7,016,507 

2,: V,169 
2,0 463 
1,P55.357 6,740,357 

6,1 
4,970,000 261,975 5,231,9-~ 

2040 

	

385,000 16,364 . -__....... . . . . . ..J.... . 
lbal 

	

$ 

	

87,685,100 $ 110,931,278 

ears is as follows 
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s Payable - Water Enterpri 

M a . . 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 

2017 

' )2, . 
775,806 

	

(258V02) 517,1 
0.00 
0.00 
Mo 

1,810,213 
UO 

	

2,0(S 15 
2,0 5O 

	

1 - 

	

- 

ater rd. 

I)MICIP-11 
2,992,656 $ 

	

1 
2,734,052 

To , , 

ehabiht-,iti( 

	

. 

	

. 

	

t, 

	

I 

i fil 

	

and 
. - may 

	

, 
)i, at cf 

1,7 . jJ43 
1,499,540 
IQJ. 

No ,) 
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ands Payable - Sewer F 

Interest 

5.16 

	

4,001,766 

	

{31" ' 

	

3,6"'),OOG 
(362,070) 4,751,331 

91,565 

	

( 1 0) 

	

86,435 
121,880 
452,320 

MO 
06/14/2007 0.00 
08/23/2007 OJ)O 
11/29/2007 OTO 
09/09/2008 0.00 
02/19/2009 KOO 794,475 
03/01/2010 (100 

W4.0 

11 r , 

- gar en 
.vans . At June 30 

bligation debt for sewer system 

ubsidized loo 

	

-its with the NRVPAT for additional sanitary sewer system 
d inflow reduction projects . At June 3t 2010 ' 

	

City had $8,527,766 in loans outstanding under this pro 
I subsidies on these loans for die year ended June 30, 2010 were $385,446 and $199,066, resp 

635,ra~ 
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2621) 

Tool 

xpected to be funded ft 

30, 2010 the City had a tool of $29§85977 m authorized and unis-u - A ' It mY A i su-" as follows : 

I and interest for sewer enterprise fund debt is as follows : 

2,560,000.00 

1,072,137 
196,493 1,052,493 

1,038, 

241,137 

Or- 

1,400,000 
2 

153P 
0 

igno, 
,218 

10 1 
no; 0- 3 

(2 .2`;s 4~ ') 

	

1 ')33,657 
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ad notes pall ; 

.l absent 
n 

Internal service f 
liabilities are inc' 
funds accreted -'-- 

The outstanding long-te 

	

i 
from the community preset 

excess of $254000 per year, 

is predominantly serve tha 
; part of the gover! i 

ous risks of loss related to genera 
The 

g changes occurred in long-term liabilities : 

Balance 

	

Balance 
(line 30, 

9 ' . ~ 
105PO( 

1,011,385 

i 

	

ental funds . Accor 
activities rush above . At fiscal 

is included above . 

-Ints related - C 

	

i-t-mal service funds 

	

A community preservation fund, the governmental activities 
; wre generally 

The City has met 
ers act - 

	

s processors and a transfer of risk does not occur. 
and I'larvard-Pilgrim, under which it makes actual cla 

r end, $6,684,861 of the internal service 

ally, workers' compensation, 
for general liability risks, however, Chapter 2S8 

cr claim in all matters except actions relating 
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tatements 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010 

Balance at 

actuarial valuation of the program, arid basec 
current liability based upo 

! includes an estimate 

flan 

enefits and member contribution rates are 

$ 

	

, - ,773,8C -$ 

	

(46,525,641) 

	

$ 

	

4,412,246 
4,412,246 46,320,935 (4(,820,754) 3,912,427 

(;tiara-' Year 
glance at 

The June 30, 2010 plan valuation is bawd upon the use of a combination of the paid loss development method arid the 
ison Paid Loss method . US Life Tables 2001 Vital Statistics for Males and Females have been used to 
values for long term claims, using a 5.0% annual rate of interest . 

Balance at 

	

Claims s I 

	

Balance at 
P 

	

' ~mr- of 

	

C' ;rages 
F 

in 

-- . 

	

$ 

	

6,288,6 - 

	

$ 

	

2,112,495 $ (1,721,731) $ 6,679,405 

a paid 

The System provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, pursuant to Massachusetts 
General Law Chapter 32, up to a maxirrium of 80% of the average of a member's three highest consecutive years' regular 

dition to regular compensation, benefits are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service arid 
come vested after ten years of creditable service . A normal retirement allowance may 

of set-vice or carton reachrric, aryc 55 with 10 vcars of set-vice . Normal retir -'r--
ecs who attain norm 

c 
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recognize _' 
the employe 
and payable . 

Investment- of the System are staged at fair value . 

Cost of living adjustments 
B time period 

1997 must be approved arm 

exceed 3% on the first $1 

asis of Accounting 

Syste 

,nsion . A member's accumulated 
( a between the total retirement benefit and the annu 

flowing : 

Total 

bled members . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

150 
eneficiahes currently receiving 

cments are prepared using the full accrual f--,s of ace-r__ 
riod in which the contributions are due . Employt-- c, 

	

:--tions -,) ---e pltn are n- -c 
x made a formal cornruitment to provide the contributi( s 

	

Benefits and refunds are r( 

- d c System on an a( - Liarial reserve basis . This funding include both current year sere 
-U 11abilily. It is I' - - cy Df the YNCFLB to contract for ar ar -' acl----`--~, valuation 

ritributions are ., 
ecessary on the basis of actual experience, 

	

active member contribution rates ar°_ I-
- 5% of regular compens ,, 

1996 - 8% of re 1: 1 

	

-- c( mpensation and july 1, 

dditional 29/0 of annual regul- c(-, . 
nd any increase in other benefits imposed by the Com 1( 

	

11 

the Commonwealth, Cost of living adjustnic -ti 1 after 
: System, These adjus 

Bible for the adoption of a formal a ; c 

	

allocation polio 
the investment policies, and the 

	

I 

	

! 

	

. n nt of an investment consultant. t o assist with the evaluation of 
rformance . All * 

	

cstment acj . 

	

of he NCRB are subiect to oversight by the Commonwealth of 

. 

	

meat Board transferred investment management responsibility for 
all 

Newton ' : 

	

U 

red in real estal 

	

" -nited nartriershins- with early withdrawal Denald 
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dons to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30 
and equaled the actuarially required con 

The required contribute 
ion for each fiscal y-r . 
tinned as part. of the J 
assumptions included a 

Actuarial 

Asset valuation method : 

Investment rate of return : 

creases : 

adjustments : 

Act -- 
Accrued 

Assets 

	

Entry Age 
Date 

	

J 

2,717 $ 

	

443a10 $ 

	

190,893 

	

56 .9 9,/o $ 82,014 

	

232.8% 

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as 

20 years 

100% 

(A/ B) 

440 per year from 2009 to 201A starting in 201 
and 5.25% for groups I and 4, respectively 

- 1306143 
t tune 3 

1, 2008 actuarial 
of return on 

the current 

Funded 

	

Covered 

	

of Covered 
Payroll 

(C) ((R~N~/C 

entary information (EST) following notes to the Fin -,In(-,i I 
er the actuarial values of plan assets are 
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follows : 

sponsibi 
I 

pension expenditure 

annuity Savings Fund . . . . . 

Total . . . t`?A2 

e to the City, and who began mark prior to 
ory pension benefit equal to 72% of their highest annual rate of regular 

ant benefits for these individuals are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis by the City, and there is no 
ility for these benefits because the City deems the amount to be immaterial to the financial 

statements . Expenditures for non-contributory retirement beriefirs for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 20 
contributory retirees are eligible for an annual cost of li 

ement benefit . 

tire ant yate 

school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachu ; }tts Teachers 
d administrative expenses p * 

	

by the Teachers 
mount of these on-behalf pa - 

	

ants totaled approximatel 
, 

	

ccordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and 

") as a sin 
MGL assigns authority to estab 
accomplished through the collective 
no assets legal" se 

ME - 

2010, 

;ally required reserves as of 

Z :99 
- 14/1 

t >a 
158,083 

	

Retired members' contribution account 

59,645 

	

Military leave of absence contribution balance 
120,040,468 

	

Remaining net assets 

insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors 
lover defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit (OPF',B) plan . Chapter 3 

aft provisions . Changes to plan design and contribution ra 
The Plan does not issue a stand alone financial report 

Plan . 
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Annual OPEB cost . 
e . 

dy co- 

	

--,--a enough money to the 

costs of administering the I i 

	

i are paid by 

ing table allows the components of the Cit)',,, 
plan, and changes in the City net OPEB obligad 

1,120 
101) 

ion cost contr 

annual Percent- 

	

Wt 
C.'EB Cost 

	

of AOPEBC 

	

OPE 

alCUlated based on the annual 
With the 
Z basis, is 

wr a period not 

3* . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $ 

	

35,440 

	

3T919 $ 

	

22,01 
June 3% 2W9 . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . . 

	

46,999 

	

30.1 'Yo 

	

54,868 
June 30, 

	

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

43,384 

	

31 .4°l° 

	

83,473 
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Mows: 

his. 

Healthcare/ 

Actuarial 

	

Value of 
Assets 

am 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

the 

Unfunded 
Funded Covered 

Payroll 

(C) 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future . Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, 
and the healthcare cost trend . Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual rec 

plover are Subject to continual re 
about the future . The schedule of 

'end information that shows w 
clative to the actuarial accrued 

i " 

	

xa 

	

sns - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the flan as 
od by the c nployer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and 

of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan members to that point . The actuarial methods 
Lions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 

actuarial value of asses, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations . 

ethods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows : 

Arr - ` 

	

'o method : 

amortization period : 

	

28 years 

e : 

	

2.00,4/o 

3306 for 2010; 4.9% for 2011 ; 00% for 2012 ; 7.2% Or 201 
in 2015 and then decreasing by 1 

11, as a 

175,729 303% 
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0 tal Activities : 
slative & Executive.. . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . --- $ 
Elections . . - . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . 
Financial administration . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . . 
Administrative support, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

ck development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Public building maintenance & operation . . . . . . . . . . . -- 
Poke . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - 
. . . I ~ I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Inspectional services . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . 
Other public safety . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Education- . . . . . . . 
Streets & sidewalks, . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

of solid waste 

	

. . . . 
ce- . . . . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

o the 

nljpe Actin=ides : 
Water . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

mental activi 

Total 
Y 

Total AOPEBC . . . 

	

. . . . . . . . . . . . I I . . . . . . . . . . 

	

$ 

C - business-type activities . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 
563,572 
277,180 

la71624 

276,899 
33t720 
62C433 

Z17 'e, 

A-70



&a Comn-mmyealt1i of 
closure of the Rumford Avenue landfill . 

compliance 

VVith the excep 
of the new North 

and regulations mandated that the laity close 

Additionally, the City has entered 
for 

well as certain state 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantin 
amounts, if any, will be immaterial, 

contract for the renovation of hire Station #7, and a $3,100,000 contract 
clings, 

ral and compliance audits, 
tried at thi 

claims are pending. Litigation is subject to many uncenah-aies and the outcome of 
Although the amount of liability, if arty at 

Uld not materially affect the financial position of the City at 

bushed a schedule 
1998, which was j 

landfill 
ate is based upon current costs 

technology or changes in state/federal law and 

rth High School building, c 

e federal grant programs have been 
10, these programs, as 

of 
h it is expected such 
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ate 15 - Invested in Capital Ykssets, 

Invested in capital assets, net of related 

Amounts available for expen 
and undesignat 

Private 

The bq 
Foundation, 

Mated depreciation . . . . _ _ , _ . . . . . . . . . . . $ 

	

378,35 
total long-term debt outstanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

(187,6 
Add: long-term debt outstanding not related to asset acquisiti 
Add: grant receivable to fund cap 

usiness- Type AcKhMs 

pital assets, net of related debt . . . . . . . . . . . 

	

. . . . . . 

	

19J 2 t- t-"' 

red depreciation . _ _ . $ 

	

33,826,213 

	

$ 

	

31,446,032 

	

$ 

	

65,71a& 

s : 

e expenditure of certain 
prohibits the expenditure of unreq 
ilable for cxpcn 

as expendable permanent funds in the Statement 
Funds Balance Sheet. Arnounts available for 
in trust for other purposes in the Fiduciary Funds 

11, due to the Newton Schools 
's basic financial statements . 
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The City impl,.nented :.c folk 

Star- 

--to 19 - Future Implery - 

evaluating the effect that 

Notes to the Bade 
Fiscal Year Ende 

be i-rnplernented during Fiscal year 2011 . The City 
will have on its basic financial statements . 

sPective re rs of implementation, 

of this Statement had no 

pkawnwd 
will have on its basic financial 
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(Date of Delivery) 

 
 

James Reardon, Treasurer 
City of Newton 

Newton, Massachusetts 
 

 
$5,770,000 

City of Newton, Massachusetts 
General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds 

Dated As of their Date of Delivery 
 

We have acted as bond counsel to the City of Newton, Massachusetts (the “City”) in connection 
with the issuance by the City of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”).  In such capacity, we 

have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we have deemed 
necessary to render this opinion. 

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and 
covenants of the City contained in the certified proceedings and other certifications of public 

officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows: 

 1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the City and, except to the 
extent they are paid from other sources, the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable 

from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in the City, subject to the limit 
imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws. 

 
 2. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the 

Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific 
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes.  

However, such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate 
alternative minimum taxable income.  In rendering the opinions set forth in this paragraph, we 

have assumed compliance by the City with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon 

be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The City 
has covenanted to comply with all such requirements.  Failure by the City to comply with certain 

of such requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross income for 
federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  Except as 

expressed in paragraph 4 below, we express no opinion regarding any other federal tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 
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 3. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and 
the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  We express no opinion 

regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax 
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds under the laws of any state other than 

Massachusetts. 

 4. The Bonds are qualified tax-exempt obligations within the meaning of Section 

265(b)(3) of the Code. 

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any 

obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any action taken or 
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the interpretation thereof, that may 

hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason. 

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be subject to 

bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ 
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their 

enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

 

 

Edwards Angell Palmer & Dodge LLP 
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APPENDIX C 

PROPOSED FORM OF 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

 This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and 
delivered by the City of Newton, Massachusetts (the “Issuer”) in connection with the issuance of 
its $5,770,000 General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011 Bonds dated April 14, 2011 
(the “Bonds”).  The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:  

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being 
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and in order to 
assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule.  

SECTION 2. Definitions.  For purposes of this Disclosure Certificate the following 
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:  

 “Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and 
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  

 “Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Certificate. 

 “MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board as established pursuant 
to Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or any successor thereto or to the 
functions of the MSRB contemplated by this Disclosure Certificate.  Filing information relating 
to the MSRB is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 “Owners of the Bonds” shall mean the registered owners, including beneficial owners, of 
the Bonds. 

 “Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

 “Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.  

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.  

(a) The Issuer shall, not later than 270 days after the end of each fiscal year, provide 
to the MSRB an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate 
documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the 
Issuer may be submitted when available separately from the balance of the Annual Report.  
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(b) If the Issuer is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date 
required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send a notice to the MSRB, in substantially the form 
attached as Exhibit B.  

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports.  The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or 
incorporate by reference the following:  

(a) quantitative information for the preceding fiscal year of the type presented in the 
Issuer's Official Statement dated April 6, 2011 relating to the Bonds regarding (i) the revenues 
and expenditures of the Issuer relating to its operating budget, (ii) capital expenditures, (iii) fund 
balances, (iv) property tax information, (v) outstanding indebtedness and overlapping debt of the 
Issuer, (vi) pension obligations of the Issuer, and (vii) other post-employment benefits liability of 
the Issuer, and 

(b) the most recently available audited financial statements of the Issuer, prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, with certain exceptions permitted by 
the Massachusetts Uniform Municipal Accounting System promulgated by the Department of 
Revenue of the Commonwealth.  If audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year are 
not available when the Annual Report is submitted, the Annual Report will include unaudited 
financial statements for the preceding fiscal year and audited financial statements for such fiscal 
year shall be submitted when available. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, 
including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which (i) are 
available to the public on the MSRB internet website or (ii) have been filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission.  The Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so 
incorporated by reference.  

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.  

(a) The Issuer shall give notice, in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5, 
of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds: 

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies. 

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material. 

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties. 

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties. 

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform. 

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed 
or final determination of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other 
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material 
events affecting the tax status of the Bonds. 
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7. Modifications to rights of the Owners of the Bonds, if material. 

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers. 

9. Defeasances.  

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if 
material. 

11. Rating changes. 

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer.* 

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer 
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary course 
of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination 
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if 
material. 

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a 
trustee, if material. 

(b) Whenever the Issuer obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event 
described in Subsections (a)(2), (6), (7), (8) (with respect to bond calls), (10), (13) or (14), the 
Issuer shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under applicable 
federal securities laws. 

(c) Upon the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsections (a)(1), (3), (4), 
(5), (6), (8) (with respect to tender offers), (9), (11) or (12), and in the event the Issuer 
determines that the occurrence of a Listed Event described in subsections (a)(2), (6), (7), (8) 
(with respect to bond calls), (10), (13) or (14) is material under applicable federal securities laws, 
the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of 
the event, file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB. 

SECTION 6. Transmission of Information and Notices.  Unless otherwise required by 
law, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided in 
electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and shall be accompanied by identifying 
information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

                                                 
* As noted in the Rule, this event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: (i) the appointment of a 

receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any 

proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over 

substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the 

existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or 

governmental authority, or (ii) the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation 

by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 

business of the Issuer. 
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SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Issuer's obligations under this 
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance in accordance with the terms of 
the Bonds, prior redemption or payment in full of all of the Bonds.  If such termination occurs 
prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such termination in the 
same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate and any provision of this 
Disclosure Certificate may be waived if such amendment or waiver is permitted by the Rule, as 
evidenced by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities law (which may include bond 
counsel to the Issuer), to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not cause the 
Disclosure Certificate to violate the Rule.  The first Annual Report filed after enactment of any 
amendment to or waiver of this Disclosure Certificate shall explain, in narrative form, the 
reasons for the amendment or waiver and the impact of the change in the type of information 
being provided in the Annual Report. 

 If the amendment provides for a change in the accounting principles to be followed in 
preparing financial statements, the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made shall 
present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of 
the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting 
principles.  The comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the 
accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the 
presentation of the financial information in order to provide information to investors to enable 
them to evaluate the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations.  To the extent reasonably 
feasible, the comparison shall also be quantitative.  A notice of the change in the accounting 
principles shall be sent to the MSRB. 

SECTION 9. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any 
provision of this Disclosure Certificate any Owner of the Bonds may seek a court order for 
specific performance by the Issuer of its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default 
under this Disclosure Certificate shall not constitute a default with respect to the Bonds, and the 
sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply 
with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action for specific performance of the Issuer's 
obligations hereunder and not for money damages in any amount. 
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SECTION 10. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit 
of the Owners of the Bonds from time to time, and shall create no rights in any other person or 
entity.  

Date:  April 14, 2011 CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 
 
 By______________________________ 
 Treasurer 

 ______________________________ 
 Mayor 
 
  
 

[EXHIBIT A:  Filing Information for the MSRB] 
[EXHIBIT B:  Form of Notice of Failure to File Annual Report] 


	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	SUMMARY STATEMENT
	NOTICE OF SALE
	OFFICIAL STATEMENT
	INTRODUCTION
	THE BONDS

	CITY OF NEWTON, MASSACHUSETTS
	PROPERTY TAXATION
	CITY FINANCES
	INDEBTEDNESS
	RETIREMENT PLAN
	EMPLOYEE RELATIONS
	LITIGATION

	APPENDIX A: City of Newton - Fiscal 2010 Audited Financial Statements
	APPENDIX B: Proposed Form of Legal Opinion
	APPENDIX C: Proposed Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate



